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Central Conveyor (CC-4): Technological Structures & Construction of 20000 tonne capacity over ground 

Arrangement of Belt Laying in Progress at coal storage bunker for 9.50 MTPA NCL BINA KAKRI 

Nigahi 10.00 MTPA OCP CHP Project in Madhya Pradesh Project is under progress 
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The Members, 

Madhucon Projects Limited 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 34th Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of Madhucon Projects Limited will be 
held on Friday, 27th September, 2024 at 03:00 P.M (IST) at 
the Registered Office of the Company situated at 1-7-70, 
Madhu Complex, Jublipura, Khammam-507003 to transact 
the following business; 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company in IND AS format for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2024 together with the Reports 
of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon; and 

b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Gompany in IND AS format for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2024 together with the report of 

the Auditors' thereon. 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. K. Venkateswarlu 
(DIN: 09713108), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Re-appointment ratification of Mr. Mohammad Shafi, 
(DIN: 07178265) as Joint Managing Director of the 

Company: To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modifications, the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT as recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the board, 
subject to approval of the members of the Company in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 
203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force) and consent of the board members 

be and is hereby accorded for reappointment of Mr. 
Mohammad Shafi, (DIN: 07178265) as Joint Managing 
Director of the Company for the period of 3 years w.e.f. 
30th May, 2024 on monthly remuneration of 
Rs.3,00,000/- (Three Lacs Only). 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all 
such acts and deeds as may be necessary, proper or 
expedientto give effect to this resolution.” 

Ratification for continuation approval of Mr. Ramadas 
Kasarneni (DIN: 02182093) as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company beyond the Age of 
75 (seventy five) years. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 

modifications, the following resolutionasa Special 
Resolution. 

MADHUCON 

“RESOLVED THAT as recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the board 
and subject to approval of the members of the Company 
by Special Resolution in pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder 
(including any amendments thereto or re-enactment 
thereof, for the time being in force) and consent of the 
board members be and is hereby accorded for 
continuation of directorship of Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni 
(DIN: 02182093) on attaining the age of 75 (seventy five) 
years on 10-06-2024 as Non-executive Independent 
Director of the Company beyond the age of 75 (seventy 
five) years till the expiry of his current term till 12th 
August, 2026. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company and / or Company Secretary of the 
Company be and are hereby severally and/or jointly 
authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as 
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to 
this resolution.” 

To appoint and approve the remuneration of the Cost 
Auditor for the financial year ending on 31st March, 
2025, 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being In force), the remuneration of Rs,1,50,000,00 
(Rupees One Lakh fifty Thousand only) inclusive of all 
taxes payable, M/s AS RAO & CO., Cost Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 000326), the Cost Auditors of the 
Company to conduct audit of cost records made and 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ending 
31st March, 2025, as recommended by Audit Committee 

and approved by the Board of Directors be and is hereby 
ratified, 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 

the Company be and Is hereby authorized to do all acts 
and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on Working 
Capital Loans & Unsecured Loans of the Company: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the total interest 

provisions on Rs. 333.69 Cr. and Rs. 33.71 Cr. Working 
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Capital Loans and Term Loan respectively aggregating 
to Rs. 367.40 Cr. for the full financial year 2023-24 be not 
applied and provided for in the books of accounts of the 
Company on the basis that the Company has submitted 
the One Time Settlement proposal to all Working Capital 
Banks and Financial Institutions. Company is working for 
the approval, with required improvements, 
modifications, ifany, as may be mutually agreed upon by 
and between the Company and Working Capital Banks / 
Financial Institutions." 

By Order of the board 

for Madhucon Projects Limited 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 06-08-2024 

D. Malla Reddy 
Company Secretary 

NOTES: 

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Special Business 
to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is 
annexed hereto. 
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only by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company/ 
Depositories. Members may please note that this Notice 
and Annual Report 2023-24 will be available on the 
Company's website at https:// 
www.madhucon.com/investors/ annual-reports/, 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and 
NSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and 
www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of 
KFintech at https //evoting, kfintech.com., 

The Company has provided the facility to Members to 
exercise their right to vote by electronic means both 
through remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM. 
The process of remote e-voting with necessary 
instructions is given in the subsequent paragraphs. 

The Company has appointed Mrs. Vendra Madhumita, 
Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. ACS 
52965) (PCS No. 19626), to act as the Scrutinizer, to 
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent 

manner and they have communicated their willingness 
to be appointed and will be available for the said 
purpose. 

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual 

General Meeting ("Meeting") is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him/her-self 

and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received by the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 
Proxy form is attached herein, Aperson can act as proxy 
on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and 
holding in the aggregate not more than 10% (Ten 
percent) of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. Amember holding mare than 10% 
(ten percent) of total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as 
proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any 
other person or shareholder as per rule 19 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, 

In line with the MCA Circulars, the notice of the 34rd AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2023-24 are being sent 

6. Members who have not registered their é-mail address 
are requested to register the same in respect of shares 
held in electronic form with the Depository through their 
Depository Participant(s) and in respect of shares held in 
physical form by writing to the Company's Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies Private 
Limited, (Unit: Madhucon Projects Limited) Selenium 
Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Gachibowli Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad-500 032. 

7. Brief profile of the Directors proposed to be appointed / 
re-appointed is given as under as per the provisions of 
Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations. 

Name of Director Mr. Mohammad Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni 
Shafi 

Date of Birih 78-01-1560 40-06-1950 
Nationality Indian Indian 

Dale of Re- 30-05-2024 73-08-2021 
appointment 
Qualifications Diploma-Civil BE-Electronics 

Enginger 

Expartise In. Jt. Managing Independent Director, 

Functional Area Director, expertise Business Professional 
Business in Technical , 

Administration & 

Financial 

Sharas hald in the NIL NIL 

Company 
List of Directorships 

hald in other NIL NIL 

Companies 
Chairman/Member 
Carmmittes of 

Boards of other NIL NIL 
Companias in which 

he/she is a Director 

10. 

Members holding shares in physical mode are also 

requested to register / update their e-mail address with 
the Company / KFintech for receiving all 
communications from the Company electronically. 

Members who are holding shares in physical form are 
advised to submit particulars of their bank account, viz. 
name and address of the branch of the bank, MICR code 
of the branch, type of account and account number to 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies 
Private Limited (Unit: Madhucon Projects Limited), 
Selenium Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500 032. 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 21st 
September, 2024 to Friday 27th September, 2024 

(both days inclusive), 
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11. Members are requested to note that, dividends FY. 

2016-17 if not en-cashed for a period of 7 years from the 
date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the 
Company, are liable to be transfer to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund ("IEPF”) on due date in 
April, 2025. 

12. Members seeking any information with regard to the 
accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM are 
requested to write to the Company on or before Friday, 
20th September, 2024 through email to 
cs@madhucon.com. The same will be replied by the 
Company suitably. 

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE: 

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 102(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013: 

The following explanatory statement sets out all material 
facts relating to the special business mentioned under Item 
Nos, 3 to 6 of the accompanying Notice. 

Item No, 3: Re-appointment ratification of Mr. Mohammad 
Shafi, (DIN: 07178265) as Joint Managing Director of the 
Company: 

Mr. Mohammad Shafi, (DIN: 07178265) was appointed as the 
Jt, Managing Director of the Company for the period of 3 
years w.e.f. 29th May, 2021 vide 31st Annual General 
Meeting of the company, held on 30th September, 2021. 
Accordingly, tenure of the period of 3 years was completed by 
29th May, 2024. The Board approved re-appointment of Mr. 
Mohammad Shafi, (DIN: 07178265) as Joint Managing 
Director of the Company for the period 3 years w.e.f. 30th 
May, 2024 on the base of recommendation of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee Meeting held on 18th May, 2024 
and now proposed to seek Members approval of the same, in 
terms of the applicable provisions of the said Act and Rules 
made there under. 

Mr. Mohammad Shafi, (DIN: 07178265), is not disqualified 
from being re-appointed as a Director and Joint Managing 
Director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 
2013, He has communicated his willingness with consent to 
act as Joint Managing Director of the Company. He satisfies 
all the conditions as set out in section 196(3) of the said Act 
and Part-| of Schedule V thereof and hence, is eligible for re- 
appointment. His brief profile is provided at notes to the 
Notice pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 

Save and except Mr. Mohammad Shafi, (DIN: 07178265) and 
his relatives to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any, 
in the company, none of the ather Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company are their relatives, in any way, 
concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution. 

The Board recommends Ordinary Resolution set out in item 
No. 3 for the approval of members. 
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Item No. 4: Ratification for continuation approval of Mr. 
Ramadas Kasareni (DIN: 02182093) as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company beyond the Age of 75 
(seventy five) years. 

Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni (DIN: 02182093) was appointed as 
the Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for 
the period of 5 years w.e.f. 13th August, 2021 vide 31st 
Annual General Meeting of the company, held on 30th 
September, 2021. Accordingly, Special Resolution in 
pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made 
thereunder (including any amendments thereto or re- 
enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and consent of 
the board members be and is hereby accorded for 
continuation of directorship of Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni (DIN: 
02182093) on attaining the age of 75 (seventy five) years on 
10-06-2024 as Non-executive Independent Director of the 
Company beyond the age of 75 (seventy five) years till the 
expiry of his current term till 12th August, 2026, 

No director, key managerial personnel of the Company are 
their relatives except Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni (DIN: 
02182093) to whom the resolution relates, is interested or 
concerned in passing the proposed aforesaid resolution. 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in 
item No. 4 for the approval of members. 

Item No. 5: To appoint and approve the remuneration of the 
Cost Auditor for the F.Y. ending on 31st March, 2025: 

Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation 
of Audit Committes approved the appointment and 
remuneration of M/s AS RAO & CO., Cost Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 000326) as the Cost Auditors of the 
Company to conduct the audit of the Cost Records of the 
Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2025. 
In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor as approved by Board of Directors, has to be ratified 
by the Shareholders of the Company. Accordingly, the 
Shareholders are requested to ratify the remuneration of Cast 
Auditor for the financial year ending 31st March, 2025, as set 
outin the Ordinary Resolution Item No. 5. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company is concerned or interested financially or otherwise, 
inthe said Resolution. 

Item No. 6: Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on 
Working Capital Loans & Unsecured Loans of the Company: 

Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on Working Capital 
Loans and Unsecured Loans: 

The board members discussed in this connection and that the 
Company has submitted the One Time Settlement (OTS) 
proposal to each of the Working Capital Banks and is working 
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with them. The Company is hopeful to gat it approved with 
suitable modifications, if any. It was further deliberated that as 
the Cornpany has put up OTS proposal with each Working 
Capital Bank against their respective outstanding, Interest 
provision on working capital loans and unsecured loans was 
not made. 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company is concerned or interested financially or otherwise, 
inthe said Resolution. 

By Order of the board 

for Madhucon Projects Limited 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 06-08-2024 

D. Malla Reddy 
Company Secretary 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING: 

41. Use the following URL for e-voting from KF intech 
website: https://evoting.kfintech.com. 

2. Members of the Company holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 20th 
September, 2024, the cutoff date, may cast their vote 

electronically. 

3. Enter the login credentials i.e. User ID and password 
mentioned in your email. Your Folio No./DP ID Client ID 
will be your User ID. However, if you are already 
registered with KFintech for e-voting, use your 
existing User ID and password for casting your votes. 

4. After entering the details appropriately, click on LOGIN. 

§. You will reach the Password change menu wherein you 
are required to mandatorily change your password, The 
new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters 
with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (az), 
one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@, #,$ 
etc.). It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. 

6. Youneed to login again with the new credentials. 

7. Onsuccessful login, the system will prompt you to select 
the EVENT i.e., Madhucon Projects Limited. 

8. On the voting page, the number of shares (which 
tepresents the number of votes) held by you as on the 
cut-off date will appear. If you desire to cast all the votes 
assenting/dissenting to the resolution, enter all shares 
and click 'FOR''AGAINST' as the case may be or 
partially in 'FOR' and partially in‘ AGAINST", but the total 
number in 'FOR' and/or ‘AGAINST’ taken together 
should not exceed your total shareholding as on the cut- 

10. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

= 
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off date. You may also choose the option 'ABSTAIN' and 
the shares hald will not be counted under eitherhead. 

Members halding multiple folios / demat accounts shall 
choose the voting process separately for each folio / 
demat account. 

Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and 
click on SUBMIT. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
Click OK to confirm else CANCEL to modify. Once you 
confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
During the voting periad, Members can login any number 
of times till they have voted on the Resolution. 

. The Portal will open for voting from 9.00 a.m. on 
Tuesday, 24th September, 2024 and closes at 5.00 p.m. 
on Thursday, 26th September, 2024 with E-Voting 
Sequence number (EVSN—8261), 

Members of the Company who have purchased their 
shares after the dispatch of the Notice but before the 
cutoff date (20th September, 2024) may contact 
KFintech at Tel No. 1800 309 4001 (toll free) to obtain 
login id and password or send a request to 
einward.ris@kfinech.com. 

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and e-voting 
User Manual for shareholders available at the download 
section of https://evoting.kfintech.com or contact 
KFintech at Tel No. 1800 309 4001 (toll free). 

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ 

CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9th December 2020 on “e-voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-voting process 
has been enabled to all the individual demat account 
holders, by way of single login credential, through their 
demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPsin order 
to increase the efficiency of the voting process. 
Individual demat account holders would be able to cast 
their vote without having to register again with the e- 
Voting service provider (ESP) thereby not only 
facilitating seamless authentication but also ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number 
and e-mail ID with their DPs in order to access e-voting 
facility. 

The voting results declared along with the Scrutinizer's 
Report shall be placed on the Company's website 
www.madhucon.com and the website of the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent viz., evoting@kfintech.com 
immediately after the declaration of the result by the 
Chairman or a person authorized by the Chairman. The 
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 
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Procedure to login through websites of Depositories: 

NSDL CDSL 

1. Users already registered for IDeAS facility of 

NSDL 

a, Click on URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com. 

b, Click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under 'IDeAS' 
section. 

ce, Enter your User ID and Password for accessing 
IDeAS, 

d. On successful authentication, you will enter your 
ID@AS service login. 

e. Click on "Access to e-Voting". 

Click on Company name or e-voting service provider 
and you will be re-directed to KFintech website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

Users not registered for IDeAS facility of NSDL 

To register, click on URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

Select "Register Online for IDeAS”. 

Proceed to complete registration using your DPID, 
Client ID, Mobile Number, etc. 

d. After successful registration, please follow steps given 
under Sr. No. 7 above to cast your vote. 

3, Users may directly access the e-voting module of 
NSDL as per the following procedure: 

a. Click on URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

b. Click on the button “Login” available under 
“Shareholder / Member” section. 

c. Enter your User ID (i.e. 16-digit demat account number 
held with NSDL), login type, Password / OTP and 
Verification code as shown on the screen 

d. On successful authentication, you will enter the e- 
voting module of NSDL 

a. Click on Company name or e-voting service provider 
and you will be re-directed to KFintech website for 
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1. Users already registered for Easi/Easiest facility of 
CDSL 

a. Click on URL: 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi 

b. Enter your User ID and Password for accessing Easi / 
Easiest. 

c. Click on Company name or e-voting service provider 
for casting the vote. 

2. Users not registered for | Easi/Easiest facility of 

CDSL 

a. Toregister, click on URL 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ home/login 

b. Proceed ta complete registration using your User ID, 
Client Id, Mobile Number, etc. 

c. After successful registration, please follow steps give 
under Sr. No. 1 above to cast your vote. 

3. Users may directly access the e-voting module of 
CDSL as per the following procedure; 

a. Click on URL: www.cdslindia.com 

b, Provide demat account number and PAN 

c. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on 
registered mobile & email as recorded in the demat 
account 

d. On successful authentication, your will enter the e- 
voting module of CDSL. 

e, Click on Company name or e-voting service provider 
and your will be re-directed to KFintech website for 
casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

|___ casting the vote during the remote e-voting period 

Procedure to login through their demat accounts / website of Depository Participant 

NSOL CDSL 

Individual shareholders holding shares of the Company in Demat mode can access e-Voting facility provided by the Company 
using login credentials of their demat accounts (online accounts) through their demat accounts / websites of Depository 
Participants registered with NSDL/CDSL. An option for “e-Voting" will be available once they have successfully logged-in 
through their respective logins. Click on the option "e-Voting" and they will be redirected ta e-Voting modules of NSDL/CDSL (as 
may be applicable). Click on the e-Voting link available against the name of Company or select e-Voting service provider 
“KFintech" and you willbe redirected to the e-Voting page of KFintecnh to cast your vote without any further authentication. 

Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use "Forgot User ID" / “Forgot Password” options 

available on the websites of Depositories / Depository Participants. 

Contact details in case of technical issue on NSDL website Contact details in case of technical issue on CDSL website 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022 
23058738 or 22-23058542-43, 
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 34th Annual Report of the Company together with the 
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY ( Rs.in Lakhs) 

5. Na, Particulars Standalone Year ended | Consolidated) Year ended 

31.03.2024) 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2024) 31.03.2023 

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) 

1 Income from Operations: 

(a) Net Sales/ Income from Operations 95124,33 90080,64 11637527 116230 .46 

(b) Other income 25442.41 13404,78 30140.46 90153,51 

Total Income 120566.74 103485,.42 146515,.73 | 206383,97 

2 Expenses: 

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 81834.01 77911.03 94955,68 103075.48 

(b) Changes in Inventory of Finished goods, . . . - 

Work-in-Progress and stock-in-trade . 5 - - 

(c) Employee benefits expense 1874.02 1939.41 2279.01 2996.83 

(d) Other expenses 37553.88 24411,64 49043.43 35419.83 

(e) Financial Costs 724.02 202.97 4142.37 4712.18 

(f)} Depreciation and amortization expense 611,26 581,96 3181.01 79893 .93 

Total Expenses 122597,19 105047,00 163601.50 | 226098.25 

3 Profiv(Loss) Before Exceptional Items (1-2) (2030.45) (1561.58) (7085.77) | (19714.28) 

4 Exceptional Items Share of (Loss) from Associate Co., , 

4 Profit(Loss) Before Tax (3-4) (2030,45) (1561.58) (7085.77) | (19714.28) 

6 Tax Expense 

a) Current Tax = = - - - 

b) Income Tax Refund Received - - (7,36) 8.91 

c) Deferred Tax (1003.51) (2007.69) (1003.51) (2007.69) 

Total Tax (a+b) (1003.51) (2007.69) (1010.87) (1998.78) 

7 Net Profit(Loss) After Tax (5-6) (1026.94) 446.11 (6074.91) (17715.60) 

Share of Loss transferred toNon-Controlling Interest - - (1563.24) (3345.59) 

Profit/(Loss)after Tax after Non-Controlling Interest - 446.11 (4511.66) (14369.91) 

Share of Profitor Loss from Associated Companies 

Profit(Loss) after Tax after Share of Minority on es ae ~ —— 

Interest & Associated Companies (1026.84) RAGE (tel 4:66) (14369.9 1) 

8 i. Other Comprehensive Income 47,35 43,10 47.35 43.10 
ii. Amount notre -classifiable to P&L - - - 

Share of Other Comprehensive Income . _ 7 Q 

transferred to Non-Cantrolling Interest 

9 Total Comprehensive Income (7+8) (979.59) 489.21 (4464.31) (14326.8 1) 

10 Paid up equity share capital(Face Value of Rs.1/- each) 737.95 737.95 737.95 737,95 

11 Other Equity 51700.68 52680.27 | (151012.64) | (192690.36) 

12 (1) Earning per share of Rs.1/ each (notannualized) 

(a) Basic (1.39) 0.60 (6.11) (19.47) 

(b) Diluted (1.39) 0.60 (6.11) (19.47) 
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Extract of Annual Return: 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2021, the annual return as referred under section 134(3)(a) of the Act for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is 
available on the Company website at www.madhucon.com/invester/Ann 

Indian Accounting Standards: 

The Company has followed Indian Accounting Standards and accounting principles generally accepted in India in 
preparation of financial statements for the financial year 2023-24. 

Dividend: [Section 134(3)(K)] 

No dividend was declared on equity shares for the year ended 31.03.2024 due to Loss. 

Board Meetings: 
The Board met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2023-2024. The following are the dates of meeting convened in 
different Quarters of the financial year. 

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Meeting No. Date Meeting No, Date Meeting No. Date Meeting No. Date 

600 13-05-2023 601 16-05-2023 602 11-06-2023 603 12-08-2023 

604 11-11-2023 605 10-02-2024 _ -- -- _— 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3) (c) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, itis hereby confirmed: 
i. That in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024; the applicable Accounting 

Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

ii. Thatthe Directors have selected Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, atthe end of the 
financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. 

iii. That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities. 

iv. Thatthe Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2024 ona “Going Concern’ basis. 
v. That the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and are operating effectively. 
vi. That the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

Adequacy of Internal Financial Control: 
The Company has structured and implemented framework for Internal Financial Controls (“IFC”) in terms of the explanation 
to Section 134(5) (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company 
has sound IFC for the year 2023-24, The Company is continuously monitoring and identified the gaps if any, and implements 
improved controls wherever the effect of such gaps would have a material effect an the Company's operations. 

Declaration from Independent Directors on Annual Basis: 

The Company has received Declarations of independence as stipulated under section 149(7) of Companies act 2013 and 
regulation 25 of the listing regulations from Independent directors confirming that he /she is not disqualified from continuing 
as independent Director, the same annexed to this report as ANNEXURE-A. 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the policy for Remuneration of Directors, KMP & other 
Employees and the criteria has been formulated by the Committee for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a Director, The Company's policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided 
in Section 178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report. 

Share Capital: 
The paid up share capitalis Rs. 7,37,94,940/- of Rs. 1/- each. There were no other changes that have been made in the share 
capita of the Company during the year under review. The Details of Share Capital are given in the notes to the Financial 
tatements. 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013: 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
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Related Party Transactions: 
The transactions entered with the related parties by the Company for the year under review with respect to rendering of 
services were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business, Hence Section 188(1) is not attracted to the 
Company. Thus disclosure in FormAQC-2 is not applicable to the Company. There are no material related party transactions 
during the year under review with the promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel. 

Material Changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company: 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end 
of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report. 

Particulars regarding Energy Consumption, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo: 
The particulars prescribed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are 
furnished as ANNEXURE-I to this report. 

Risk Management: 
Periodic assessments to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on the risks in advance to enable 
the Company to control risk through a properly defined plan. The risks are taken into account while preparing the annual 
business plan for the year. The Board is also periodically informed of the business risks and the actions taken to manage 
them. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR Committee of the Board of 
Directors was formed to recommend: 

The policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and 
Implementation of the CSR Projects or Programs to be undertaken by the Company as per CSR Policy by the Board of 
Directors. 

Formal Annual Evaluation: 

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the performance evaluation of the Board was carried out during the year under review. 

Report on the Performance/Financial Position of the Subsidiaries Companies: 
The details containing the salient features of the consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary Companies are provided 
at Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial statements at Serial No. 2.37 as per the provisions of Section 129 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Consolidationof Accounts: 
In compliance with Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Ind AS 28 Investments in Associates and joint ventures and IndAS 110 Consolidated Financial 
Statements, Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024, duly audited by the Statutory Auditors which forms part of the Annual Report. The Annual Accounts of the 
Subsidiary Companies and the related information will be made available to shareholders, who may be interested in 

obtaining the same at any point of time as they have been kept for inspection by any shareholder at the Registered Office of 
the Company and also at its Subsidiary Companies. 

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed and resigned during the Year, 

a) Change in Key Managerial Personnel during the year: NIL 

b) Changein Directors during the year: 
1. Mr. Mohammed Shafi was reappointed as Joint Managing Director for the period of 3 years w.e.f. 30th May, 2024, 
2. Continuation of Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni, as a Non-Executive Independent Director beyond the Age of 75 

(seventy five) years till the expiry of his current tem till 12th August, 2026. 

CEO and CFO Certification: 

In accordance with the Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Managing Director and Director Cum CFO of the Company have submitted a certificate for the year ended 31st March 
2024 to the Board of Directors which forms part of the Annual Report. 

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Company has established Vigil Mechanism for Directors / Employees to report their genuine concerns or grievances. 
The Audit Committee of the Company oversees the vigil Mechanism through the Committee. It provides for adequate 
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safeguards against victimization of directors/ employees who avail of the mechanism, It also provides for directaccess to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee. In case of repeated frivolous complaints, the suitable action will be initiated by the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

we under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of 
Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been 
set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary 
trainees) are covered under this policy. 

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company received no complaints on sexual harassment. 

Deposits: 

The Company had not accepted or invited any Deposits and consequently no deposit has matured / become due for re 
payment as on 31st March 2024. 

Audit Committee: 
Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The details pertaining to composition of Audit Committee are 
included In the Corporate Governance Report 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

The Committee focuses on shareholders' grievances and strengthening of investor relations. The Committee coordinates 
ie spiwiGee of the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. There were no complaints panding for redressal as at 31st March, 

Statutory Auditors and their Report: 
P, Murali & Co,, Chartered Accountants (FRN 0072578) were reappointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
period of 4 (Four) Financial Years w.e.f. FY 2022-23 to FY 2025-26 and expressed their willingness to hold the office up to the 
conclusion of the 36th Annual General Meeting was approved by the Shareholders at their 32nd Annual General Meeting of 
the Company, held on 29th September, 2022.. 

Cost Auditors: 

The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee appointed AS RAO & CO., Cost Accountants (Registration 
No. 000326) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records made and maintained by the Company 
pertaining to Works Contracts, Construction of Roads, etc. for financial year commencing on 1st April, 2024 and ending on 
31st March, 2025. 

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report: 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s V. Madhumita and Associates, Company Secretaries (ACS 52965 and CP 
No.19626) has been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 to carry out the 
Secretarial Audit and issue report thereon. Secretarial Audit report issued for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 by 
M/s V. Madhumita and Associates, Company Secretaries is annexed to this Report as ANNEXURE II. 

Listing With Stock Exchanges: 

The Company's securities have been listed with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), and National Stock Exchange (NSE). 
Listing fee has been paid to BSE and NSE within the prescribed time limit as set in Regulation 14 of Listing Regulations for 
the Financial Years 2023-2024 and 2024-2025. 

Particulars of Employees: 

The alana has not employed any individual whose remuneration falls within the purview of the limits prescribed under the 
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Depository System: 

As the Members are aware, your Company's shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form and your Company has 
established connectivity with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) & National Securities Depository Limited 
asda In view of the numerous advantages offered by the depository system, the members are requested to avail the 
ag a perenne of the Company's shares on CDSL or NSDL. The ISIN allotted to the Company's Equity shares is 
INE378D01 
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Prevention of Insider Trading: 
Your Company has In place code of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by designated persons and code of 
practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information which is in adherence to the SEBI 
(Prohibition of insider trading) Amendment Regulations, 2018. The disclosures received pursuant to this code and the 
Regulations are disseminated to the Stock Exchanges within prescribed time limit. The Report of compliance officer was 
placed before the Board. The code is available at the company's website at the following link www.madhucon.com 

Corporate Governance and Shareholders Information: 
As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on Corporate Governance 
forming part of this Report, together with the Practising Company Secretaries Certificate regarding the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance Is given ina separate section in the Annual Report. 

Appreciations: 
The Directors wish to express their appreciation for the assistance and continued co-operation received from the Central and 
State Governments, Banks, Financial Institutions, JV partners, clients, consultants, sub-contractors, Customers, Suppliers 
and also the Directors wish to thank all the employees for their dedicated contribution, support and continued co-operation 
throughout the year at alllevels. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Madhucon Projects Limited, 

(N. Seethaiah)(Mohammad Shafi) (Mohammad Shafi) 

Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Joint Managing Director 
Date: 06-08-2024 DIN: 00784491 DIN: 07178265 

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3) (F} THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8 (3) OF COMPANIES 
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 
The Company is engaged in Civil Construction Activity which is not a predominantly power intensive. However, energy 
conservation measures are taken up wherever required. 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

The Company is constantly updating its technology in the areas wherever necessary for improving the productivity, efficiency 
and quality of its performance. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO: NIL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ANNEXURE - | 

Industry Structure and Developments: 

India's high growth imperative In 2023 and beyond will significantly be driven by major strides in key sectors with infrastructure 
development being a critical force aiding the progress. Infrastructure is a key enabler In helping India become a US $26 trillion 
economy. Investments in building and upgrading physical infrastructure, especially in synergy with the ease of doing business 
initiatives, remain pivotal ta increase efficiency and costs. Indian Prime Minister also recently reiterated that infrastructure is a 
crucial pillar to ensure good governance across sectors. 

The government's focus on building infrastructure of the future has been evident given the slew of initiatives launched recently. The 

US$ 1.3 trillion national master plan for infrastructure, Gati Shakti, has been a forerunner to bring about systemic and effective 
reforms in the sector, and has already shown a significant headway. Infrastructure support to the nation's manufacturers also 
remains one of the top agendas as it will significantly transform goods and exports movement making freight delivery effective and 
economical. 

The "Smart Cities Mission" and "Housing for All" programmes have benefited from these initiatives. Saudi Arabia seeks to spend up 
to US$ 100 billion in Indiain energy, petrochemicals, refinery, infrastructure, agriculture, minerals, and mining. 

The infrastructure sector is a key driver of the Indian economy. The sector is highly responsible for propelling India's overall 
development and enjoys intense focus from the Government for initiating policies that would ensure the time-bound creation of 

world-class infrastructure in the country. The Infrastructure sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, and urban infrastructure 
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development, In other words, the Infrastructure sector acts as a catalyst for India's economic growth as it drives the growth of the 
allied sectors like townships, housing, built-up infrastructure, and construction development projects. 

To meet India's aim of reaching a USS 5 trillion economy by 2025, infrastructure development is the need of the hour. The 
government has launched the National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) combined with other initiatives such as 'Make in India' and the 
production-linked incentives (PLI) scheme to augment the growth of the infrastructure sector, Historically, more than 80% of the 

country's infrastructure spending has gone toward funding for transportation, electricity, and water, and irrigation. 

While these sectors still remain the key focus, the government has also started to focus on other sectors as India's environment 

and demographics are evolving. There is a compelling need for enhanced and improved delivery across the whole infrastructure 

spectrum, fram housing provision to water and sanitation services to digital and transportation demands, which will assure 
economic growth, increase quality of life, and boost sectoral competitiveness. 

In Interim Budget 2024-25, capital investment outlay for infrastructure has been increased by 11,1% to Rs. 11.11 lakh crore (USS 
133.86 billion), which would be 3.4 % of GDP. As per the Interim Budget 2023-24, a capital outlay of Rs. 2.55 lakh crore (US$ 30.72 
billion) has bean made for the Railways, an increase of 5.8% over the previous year. Starting with 6,835 projects, the NIP project 
caunt now stands at 9,142 covering 34 sub-sectors, as per news reports. Under the initiative, 2476 projects are under the 
development phase with an estimated investment of US$ 1.9 trillion. Nearly half of the under-development projects are in the 
transportation sector, and 3,906 are in the roads and bridges sub-sector. 

The Indian Railways expects to complete total revenue of Rs. 2,64,500 crore (US$ 31.81 billion) by the end of 2023-24, India's 
logistics market is estimated to be US$ 317.26 billion in 2024 and is expected to reach US$ 484.43 billion by 2029, growing ata 
CAGR of 8.8%. India intends to raise Its ranking in the Logistics Performance Index ta 25 and bring down the logistics cost fram 
14% to 8% of GDP, leading to 4 reduction of approximately 40%, within the next five years. 

AA\ and other Airport Developers have targeted capital outlay of approximately Rs. 98,000 crore (USS 11.8 billion) in airport sector 
in the next five years for expansion and modification of existing terminals, new terminals and strengthening of runways, among 
other activities. 

India currently has the fifth-largest metro network in the warld and will soon overtake advanced economies such as Japan and 
South Korea to become the third-largest network. Metro rail network reached 810 kms and is operational in 20 cities. Atalmost 20 
kms, Mumbai monorail is the third largest route in the world after China with 98 kms and Japan with 28 kms. 

FDI in construction development (townships, housing, built-up infrastructure, and construction development projects) and 

construction (infrastructure) activity sectors stood at US$ 26.54 billion and US$ 33.52 billion, respectively, between April 2000- 
December 2023, 

Indian logistics market is estimated to touch US$ 320 billion by 2025. The overall infrastructure capex is estimated to grow at a 
CAGR of 11.4% over 2021-26 driven by spending on water supply, transport, and urban infrastructure. Investment in infrastructure 
contributed around 5% of the GDP in the tenth five-year plan as against 9% in the eleventh five-year plan. Further, US$ 1 trillion 

investmentin infrastructure was proposed by the India's planning commission during the 12th five-year plan, with 40% of the funds 
coming from the private sector. 

Overall, the infrastructure sector is the winner in this year's Budget. However, its success lies in its effective implementation and 
focusing on projects with quick turnaround time. 

Opportunities and Strengths: 

The Government of India is taking every possible initiative to boost the infrastructure sector and is expected to invest highly in the 
infrastructure sector, mainly Transportation, Urban Development & Industrial Projects. Many steps have been taken to improve 
funding avenues to the infrastructure sector. There are huge opportunities for the industry in the future. Your Company is having 
opportunities and strengths with an order book position of Rs. 5964 Crores. 

Seqment-wise performance: 

1. Transportation Division: 

Your Company has executed many transportation projects such as highways, tunnels, railways, flyovers atc across PAN India. 
Besides, work amounting Rs. 2178.07 Crore was done till March, 2024 out of the total work amounting to Rs. 2,448.92 Crore. 
Balance work of Rs. 270.85 Crore is outstanding as on date, 
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Irrigation Projects: 

Your Company executed many Irrigation projects such as Canals, Dams, Tunnels, Spillways, Pump house and Lift Irrigation 
Projects across PAN India. At present various Irrigation Projects having a tolal value of Rs. 1,872.37 Crore are under progress 
across PAN India. Out of which work amounting to Rs. 1,284.72 Crore was already executed till March, 2024, while work 
amounting to Rs. 587.65 Crore ls the balance outstanding to be executed. 

Outlook: 
Future outlook of infrastructure industry in India: 

The outlook for the Infrastructure sector appears positive since the country is looking forward with a strong mandate to stimulate 
economic growth. 

Some of the recent governmentinitiatives and investments in the infrastructure sector are as follaws: 

The Central government has increased its capital expenditure (capex) allocation to US$ 133.9 billion (Rs. 11.11 trillion) for the 
fiscal year beginning April 1, 2024, with a focus on advancing India's infrastructure, as part of a strategic move to stimulate 
economic growth. An increase of 11.1% from the previous year, the FY25 interim budget allots US$ 133.9 billion (Rs. 11.11 trillion) 
for capital expenditures, or 3.4% of GDP. With a 37% increase in the current fiscal year, capital expenditures (capex) are on the 

rise, which bolsters ongoing infrastructure development. In Interim Budget 2024-25, capital investment outlay for infrastructure 
has been increased by 11.1% to Rs.11.11 lakh crore (USS 133.86 billion), which would be 3.4 %of GDP. 

Goals for India's economic growth to become a USS 5 trillion economy. In order to anticipate private sector investment and to 
address employment and consumption in rural India, the budget places a strong emphasis on the development of roads, shipping, 
and railways. India's ambitious plan calls for spending US$ 1.723 trillion (approximately Rs. 143 trillion) on infrastructure between 
FY24 and FY30, with a particular emphasis on power, roads, and developing industries like renewable energy and electric 

vehicles. 

Indian Prime Minister emphasized that India is committed to attaining net-zero carbon emissions by 2070, and that the country's 
ambitious goal of 500 gigawatts (GW) of renewable capacity by 2030 should be met. In order to make this possible, he unveiled a 
plan to raise the proportion of gas in India's energy mix to 15% by 2030, which will involve spending roughly USS 67 billion over the 
course of the following five to six years. 

The government has decided to allocate Rs. 2.76 lakh crore (US$ 33.4 billion) towards the Ministry of Roads for 2024-25. Acapital 
outlay of Rs. 2.55 lakh crore (US$ 30.72 billion) has been made for the Railways, an increased of 5.8% over the previous year. The 
allocation for solar power grid reached Rs. 8,500 crores (US$ 1.02 billion) from the previous allocation of Rs. 4,970 crores (USS 

598.80 million), The Interim Budgat 2024-25 allocated Rs. 1,11,876.6 crore (US$ 13.5 billion) for the Department of Telecom. The 
government announced Rs. 77,523.58 crore (US$ 9.3 billion) to the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs. 

Three significant economic railway corridor initiatives—energy, port connectivity, mineral and cement, and high traffic 
density—will be carried out by the railway industry. Additionally, in order to improve passenger safety, convenience, and comfort, 
forty thousand standard rail bogies will be converted to Vande Bharat standards. In the aviation sector, the number of airports has 
doubled to 149, and currently, 1.3 crore passengers are transported on 517 new routes. Indian airlines have taken the initiative to 
order more than a thousand new aircraft. As part of the PM Awas Yojana (Grameen), two crores more houses to be taken up in the 
next five years. Despite COVID challenges, the target of three crore houses under PM Awas Yojana (Grameen) will be achieved 

soon, 

Anetwark of 35 Multimodal Logistics Parks is planned to be developed as part of Bharatmala Pariyojana, with a total investment of 
about Rs. 46,000 crore (US$ 5.5 billion), which once operational, shall be able to handle around 700 million metric tonnes of cargo. 
Of this, MMLPs at 15 prioritized locatians will be developed with a total investment of about Rs, 22,000 Crore (US$ 2.6 billion). 

Your Company is giving major thrust in various infrastructure projects to reap the benefit of growth in infrastructure sector. 

Road Ahead: 

The roadmap to India's infrastructure is exciting and futuristic, and it will not be an exaggeration to say that the new decade seems 

to be a promising one. 

With a 37% increase in the current fiscal year, capital expenditures (capex) are on the rise, which bolsters ongoing infrastructure 
development and fits with 2027 goals for Indla's economic growth to become a US$ 5 trillion economy. In order to. anticipate private 
sector investment and to address employment and consumption in rural India, the budget places a strong emphasis on the 
development of roads, shipping, and railways. 

Global investment and partnerships in infrastructure, such as the India-Japan forum for development in the Northeast are also 
indicative of more investments. These initiatives come at a momentous juncture as the country aims for self-reliance in future- 
ready and sustainable critical infrastructure. 

India, itis estimated, needs to invest US$ 840 billion over the next 15 years into urban infrastructure to meet the needs ofits fast- 
growing population. This investment will only be rational as well as sustainable, if we additionally focus on long-term maintenance 
and strength of our buildings, bridges, ports, and airports. 
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As a result of digitalisation and opportunities that tier II and Ill cities present for economic growth, the divide between metro and 
non-metros is blurring, moving to the new era of Infrastructure growth. Commercial real estate properties have witnessed 
exponential growth in demand across Tier II & III cities as Information technology and Information technology enabled services 
and banking financial services and insurance focused organizations are increasingly decentralizing their operations to adapt to 
the new normal. 

The residential sector has witnessed good sales, and launches have also shown signs of an uptick during 2022, total sales in the 
top-7 cities was projected to exceed 360,000 units in 2022. 

Civil Aviation Ministry's "Vision 2040" report states that there will be 190-200 functioning airports in India by 2040. Delhi and 
Mumbai will have three international airports each, while top 31 Indian cities will have two operational airports each. 220 

destinations (airports/heliports/water aerodromes) under UDAN are targeted to be completed by 2026 with 1000 routes to provide 
air connectivity to unconnected destinations in India. 

India's Infrastructure forms an integral part of the country's economic ecosystem. There has been a significant shift in the industry 
that is leading to the development of world-class facilities across the country in the areas of roads, waterways, railways, airports, 
and ports, among others, The country-wide smart cities programmes have proven to be industry game-changers. Giveniits critical 
role in the growth of the nation, the infrastructure sector has experienced a tremendous boom because of India's necessity and 
desire for rapid development. The expansion has been aided by urbanisation and an increase in foreign investment in the sector. 

The infrastructure sector has become the biggest focus area for the Government of India. India's GDP is expected to grow by 8% 
over the next three fiscal years, one of the quickest rates among major, developing economies, according to S&P Global Ratings, 
India and Japan have joined hands for infrastructure development in India's Northeast states and are also setting up an India- 
Japan Coordination Forum for development of Northeast to undertake strategic infrastructure projects for the region. 

India being a developing nation is set to take full advantage of the opportunity for the expansion of the infrastructure sector, and itis 
reasonable to conclude that India's infrastructure has a bright future ahead of it. 

Risks and Concerns: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has the major effect on timely completion of various projects. The availability of construction labor force 
is expected to affect the projects for some time. On the other hand, other construction delays continue to be a concern factor which 
stems from number of factors outside the contral of the project sponsors, which includes land acquisition, regulatory approvals, 
inflation, and litigation etc., which can delay the timely completion of the project and increase In cost of project. This can, in turn, 
lead to additional funding, additional cost of fund etc. 

As the sector is driven by infrastructure projects to a large extent, it is expected to be hit severely by the current levels of 
uncertainty, dismal business and consumer sentiments, loss of income as well as the diversion of government funds towards ather 
sectors. 

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy: 

Your Company has adequate system of Internal Control developed by our in-house Internal Audit team consisting of qualified and 

experienced accounting, costing and technical professionals to ensure that the resources of the Company are used efficiently and 
effectively, all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are 
authorized, recorded and reported correctly, financial and other data are reliable for preparing financial information and other data 
and for maintaining accountability of assets. 

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance: 

During the year under review, your Company has achieved a total income (standalone) of Rs.1,20,566,74 Lakhs against 
Rs.1,03,485,42 Lakhs and Earming per Share (EPS) of Rs. (1.39) against Rs. 0.60 of the Previous Year. 

Human Resources/Industrial Relations: 

Your Company has recruited competent Professionals at all levels of management for all verticals of the Company as a part of 
corporate restructuring process and strengthening its Business Verticals to meat the pace of growth of your Company. The 

Industrial relation is very cordial. 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In Compliance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosura Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the company 
sets forth the report on the Corporate Governance on the matters as mentioned in the said schedule and practices followed by 

the company. 

1. COMPANYS PHILOSOPHYON CORPORATEGOVERNANCE: 

The Company's philosophy on corporate governance oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, 

ethical corporate behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, 

investors and the society at large. It is imperative that our Company's affairs are managed in a fair and transparent manner. 
We ensure that we evolve and follow not just the stated corporate governance guidelines, but also global best practices. 
We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose timely, adequate and accurate information regarding our financials 

and performance, as well as the leadership and governance of the Company. The Company is in compliance with all 

requirements stipulated under SEB| (LODR) Regulations, as applicable, with regard to corporate governance. 

BOARDOFDIRECTORS: 

i. Composition and Category of the Directors as on 31st March, 2024 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Tha Companies act, 2013/and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company endeavor to have an optimum combination of Executive 

and Non-Executive Director with one woman director to maintain the independence of the Board and separate the 

functions of Governance and Management through Board and Committees. 

As on 31st March 2024, the Board consist of 8 (Eight) Directors. There is 1(Qne) Managing Director, 1(@ne) Joint 

Managing Director, 2(Two) Executive Directors and 4 (Four) Non-executive Independent Directors Including 1 (One) 

chairman and 1(one) Woman Director. 

SiLNo. | Name of the Director Designation Category 

1 Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni Chairman Non- Executive & Independent Director 

2 Mr. N. Seethaiah Managing Director Executive & Non-Independent Director 

3 Mr. Mohammad Shafi Joint Managing Director | Executive & Non-Independent Director 

4 Mrs. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari | Woman Director Non- Executive & Woman Independent Director 

5 Mr. P. Madhava Rao Director Non- Executive & Independent Director 

6 Mrs. Geeta Battula Director Non- Executive & Independent Director 

7 Mr. K. Vankateswarlu Director cum CFO Executive & Non-Independent Director 

a Mr.Samba Siva Rao Jasty | Director-F& A Executive & Non-Independent Director 

i. Number of Board Meetings held during the year: 

The Board met 6 (Six) times during the financial year 2023-2024. 

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Meeting No. | Date Meeting No. | Date Meeting No. | Date Meeting No. | Date 

600 13-05-2023 601 16-05-2023 602 11-06-2023 603 12-08-2023 

604 11-11-2023 605 10-02-2024 a = = = 

ill, Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting. 

The particulars of attendance of Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting by Directors for the financial year 

ended have been set out here below: 

SL. Name of the Director Board Meetings attended Atiandance at previaus AGM 

No. during the financial year held on 29-09-2023 

(2023-2024) 
i Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni 6 Yes 
2 Mr. N. Seethaiah 6 Yes 

a Mr. Mohammad Shafi 6 No 

4 Mr. P. Madhava Rao 4 Yes 

5 Mrs. Ch, Lakshimi Kumari 4 Yes 

6 Mrs, Geeta Battula 3 No 

7 Mr, K. Venkateswarlu 6 No 

8 | Mr. Samba Siva Rao Jasty 3 Yes 

iv. Number of other Boards or Board Committees In which he/she is a member or Chairperson. 
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None of the directors are members of more than ten committees or chairman of mere than five committees in public 

limited companies in which they are directors, Necessary disclosures have been obtained from all the directors 

regarding their directorship and have been taken on record by the Board. 

The names of the Directors and the details of other chairmanship / directorship / committee membership of each 

Director as on 31st March 2024 is given balow: 

Sl. Name of the Director Pasition No. of Committee Committee 
No. Directorships | Membershipin Chairmanship 

in other other in other 

Companies Companies Companies 

1 Mr. N. Seethalah Managing Director 4 0 0 

2 Mr. Mohammad Shafi Whole-time Director 4 0 0 

3 Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni Chairman and 

Independent Director 0 0 0 

4 Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kurnari Independent Director ie] 0 o 

5 Mr.P. Madhava Rao Independent Director 1 0 0 

6 Mr. K. Venkateswarlu Executive Director 0 0 0 

7 Mrs. Geeta Battula Independent Director 0 0 0 

8 Mr. Samba Siva Rao Jasty Executive Director 0 0 0 

vy. In terms of sub regulation (i) regulation 10 part C of Schedule V a certificate from the Company Seeretary in 

practice was obtained to the effect that none of the directors on the Board of the company have been debarred 

or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board / Ministry of corporate 

affairs or any such statutory authority. 

3, CODEOF CONDUCT: 

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has suitably 

modified the ‘Code of Conduct for Board of Directors, Senior Management and Key Managerial Personnel’ (Cade of 

Conduct) and is available on the Company's website. The Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 

Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct as at 31st March 2024, 

4. AUDITCOMMITTEE: 

il. Brief description of terms of reference: 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee has been 

constituted consisting of qualified and independent Board members for providing accurate and transparent financial 

reporting to the Board and shall have the powers and roles to perform the functions as mentioned in Listing 

Regulations and respectively read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

ii, Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson: 

The Audit Committee comprises of the following members as on 31" March 2024: 

1. Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari, Independent Director as Chairperson 

2. Sri Madhava Rao P, Independent Director as Member 

3. Sri. Ramadas Kasarneni, Independent Director as Member 

4. Mrs, Geeta Battula, Independent Director as Member 

ii. Meeting and attendance during the year: 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 18 (2) of the Listing Regulations the Audit Committee 

met 5 (Five) times during the financial year under review, on 13-05-2023, 16-05-2023, 12-08-2023, 11-11-2023 and 

10-02-2024 and the attendance of the members of the Audit Committee as recorded is as under: 

SL, No, Name of the Director Status No, of meetings attanded 

1 Smt. Ch, Lakshmi Kumari Chairperson 3 

Mr, P, Madhava Rao Member 3 
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3 Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni Merber 5 

4 Mrs. Geeta Battula Member 

Head of Finance & Accounts Division and Internal Auditors attended the meetings of the Audit Committee as Invitees. 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Listing Regulations, The Audit Committee reviews the information from 
time to time as specified in the aforesaid clause. 

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

Brief description of terms of reference: 

The terms of refarenca of Nomination and Remuneration Committee ara as follows: 

1. 

a 

To determine the Company's policy on specific remuneration package for Executive Directors including 

compensation payment, if any, on behalf of the Board of Directors and Shareholders 

. To review, assess and recommend the appointment of Executive Director from time to time and also 

rmuneration package including Employees Stock Option Scheme to the Board of Directors. 

Any other function as may be delagated by Board of Directors. 

Composition and Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the following non-executive independent directors 

as on 31*' March 2024: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari, Woman Independent Director as Chairperson 

Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni, Independent Director as Member 

Mr. P. Madhava Rao , Independent Director as Member 

This committee recommends the appointment/reappointment of executive directors and the appointments of 

employees from the level of vice-president and above along with the remuneration to be paid to them. The 

remuneration is fixed keeping in mind the persons track record, his/her potential individual performance, the market 

trends and scales prevailing in the similar industry. 

Attendance during the year: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 1 (One) times, during the financial year under review, on 28-06- 

2023, The attendance of the meeting by the members of the Committee as recorded is as under: 

SL. No, Name of the Director Position No. of meetings Attended 

1 Smt. Ch. Lakshimi Kumari Chairperson 1 

2 Mr. PF Madhava Rao Member 1 

3 Mr. Ramadas Kasameni Mamber 1 

Remuneration Policy: 

The Policy provides for the following: 

a) 
b) 

¢) 

d) 

@) 

u) 

Attract, recruit, and retain good and exceptional talent; 

List down the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes, and independence of the directors 
of the Company; 

Ensure that the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees is performanca 

driven, motivatas tham, recognizes their merits and achievements and promotes excellence In thelr performance; 

Motivate such personnel to align their individual interests with the Interests of the Company, and further the 

interests of its stakeholders; 

Ensure a transparent nomination process for directors with the diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, 
perspective and gender in the Board; and 

Fulfill the Company's objectives and goals, including In relation to good corporate governance, transparency, 
and sustained long-term value creation for its stakeholders. 

Criteria for performance evaluation as laid-down by nomination and remuneration committee 

The performance of Directors is evaluated by the Board (excluding the Director being evaluated) on the following 

criteria, as laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
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Evaluation Criteria: 

+ Active Participation in Board discussions and deliberations 

+ Contribution to development of strategy and risk management 

: Guidance on corporate strategy, risk policy, corporate governance practices 

‘ Independence and unbiased decisions/opinions etc. 

v. Details of Remuneration to Executive Directors: 

Of the total 8 (Eight) Directors, 4 (Four) are Executive Directors. The remuneration payable to these directors is 

determined by the Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration committee. This is subject to 

the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The non-executive directors have drawn sitting fees 

from the Company for attending the meetings of the board and the committees. Details of Remuneration of the 
executive Directors for the financial year 2023-2024 are as follows: 

Sl. Director Consolidated Perquisitas, Performance Sitting Total 
No. Salary Allowances Bonus/ Faas (Per 

(Per Month) and other Incentive/ (Rs.) Annum) 
(Rs.) Benefits Commission/ (Rs.) 

Stock Option i 

1 Mr. N. Seethaiah 

Managing Director §,00,000/- - - - 60,00,000 

2 Mr. Mohammad Shafi 

Whole-time Director 3,00,000/- - - - 36,00,000 

3 Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni, 
independent Director < 5 $ 95,000 95,000 

4 Mr. P. Madhava Rao, 
Independent Director = " : 50,000 50,000 

5 Mr. Ch. Lakshimi Kumari, 

Independent Director is # - 65,000 65,000 

6 Mr. K. Venkateswarlu 

Director cum CFO 2,12,750/- . = - 25,53,000 

6 Mrs. Geeta Battula 

Independent Director ~ . . 50/500 50,000 

5 Mr. Samba Siva Rao 

Jasty - Director (F&A) 2,00,000/- : - - 24,00,000 

vi. Details of shareholding of Directors as on 31* March 2024: 

As on 31st March 2024, the Company had 4 (Four) Executive Directors, 4 (Four) Non-Executive Independent 

directors, the one executive director holds equity shares in the Company. The other non-executive directors do not 

6. 

hold any shares in the Company. The details are as follows: 

SL. Name of the Director Status No.of Sharesheld| Percentaga(%)of 

No. total shares 

1 Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni Chairman & 
Independent Director Nil Nil 

2 Mr. Nama Seethaiah Managing Director 23802 0.03 

3 Mr. Mohammad Shafi Whole-time Director Nil Nil 

4 Mr, P, Madhava Rao Independent Director Nil Nil 

5 Smt. Ch. Lakshimi Kumari Independant Director Nil Nil 

6 Mrs. Geeta Battula Independent Director Nil Nil 

7 Mr. K. Venkateswarlu Director cum CFO Nil Nil 

8 Mr, Samba Siva Rao Jasty Diractor (F&A) Nil Nil 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIPCOMMITTEE: 

The Committee is empowered to oversee the redressal of Shareholders/Investors Complaints/ Grievances pertaining to 
share transfers/non-racelpt of Annual Reports/dividend payments, issue of duplicate share certificates, transmission of 
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shares and other complaints etc. 

i, Composition of the Committee: 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of the following Members as on 31st March 2024. 

5. Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari, Independent Director as Chairperson 

6. Mr. P Madhava Raa, Independent Director as Member 

7. Mr. Mohammad Shafi, Whole-time Director as Member 

il Attendance during the year: 

The Shareholders/Investors Grievances Committae/ Stakeholdars' Relationship Committee met 4 (Four) times during 
the year on 13-05-2023, 12-08-2023, 11-11-2023 and 10-02-2024, attendance of members of the Committee as 

recorded is as under: 

SI, No. Nama of the Director Position No, of meetings attended 

1 Smt. Ch. Lakshmi Kumari Chairperson a 

2 Mr. Mohammad Shafi, Member 4 

3 Mr. P, Madhava Rao Member 2 

ii, Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: Mr. D. Malla Reddy, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. 

iv. Number of Shareholders’ Complaint received during the year under report: 

All the requests and complaints received from the shareholders were attended to within the stipulated time and 
nothing was pending for disposal at the end of the year. During the period under review, the Company has not 

recelved the Complaints from Shareholders. 

vy. Number of Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of Shareholders as on the date of approval of Directors 

Report- Nil 

vi Number of Pending Complaints as on the date of approval of Directors Report - Nil 

vil, E-mail ID for redressal of Shareholders’ Griavances: 

The Company has created a separate e-mail ID: cs@madhucon.com for the Grievance Redressal Division / 
Compliance Officer exclusively for the purpose of registering and redressal of complaints by investors/ 
shareholders. 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

I, Location and Time for the last three Annual General Meetings held and 

ii. Special resolutions passed in the last three Annual General Meetings held: Two Special Resolutions passed for the 
re-appointment of Independent Directors at 33° Annual General Meeting held on 29"" Saptember, 2023. 

The particulars of previous 3 (Three) Annual General Meetings of the Company held is set out here under: 

Particulars Date & Time Vanue Special Resolution passed 

33 AGM 29-09-2023 Venue: Registered Office: Yeas / 2(Two) Special Resolutions 

(2022-2023) 3.00 PM Madhu Complex, 1-7-70, passed for the re-appointment of 

Jublipura, Khammam Independent Directors. 

3277 AGM 29-09-2022 Venue: Registered Office: Yes / 2(Two) Special Resolutions 

(2021-2022) 3.00 PM Madhu Complex, 1-7-70, passed for the re-appointment of 

Jublipura, Khammam Independent Directors. 

31° AGM 30-09-2021 Deemed Venue: Regd. Office: Nil 
(2020-2021) 3.00 PM Madhu Complex, 1-7-70, 

Jublipura, Khammam 

Postal Ballot: 

During the year no resolution was passed through postal ballot. 
None of the business which Is proposed to be transacted at the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing of 
a resolution through postal Ballot process. 

Meeting of Independent Directors 

Pursuant to the companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there under and Secretarial Standard-l issues by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and SEB| (LODR) Regulations, 2015 a meeting of the Independent Directors 

of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 was held on 10" February, 2024. 
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8. DISCLOSURES: 

vie 

vi. 

vill. 

Related Party Transaction (RPT): 

There has been no materially significant Related Party Transactions (RPT) with the Company's promoters, 
directors, the management, their subsidiaries or relatives which may have potential conflict with the interests of the 
Company at large. The necessary disclosures regarding the transactions are given in the notes to accounts, The 

Company has also formulated a policy on dealing with the Related Party Transactions and necessary approval of the 

audit committee and Board of directors will be taken wherever required in accordance with the Policy. 

The Company has also formulated a policy for determining the Material RPT and the details of such policy for dealing 
with RPT are disseminated in the website of tha Company under the following link: http://www.madhucon.com/corporate 

investors.html 

Disqualification of Directors: As on March 31, 2024 none of the Directors of the Company were disqualified under 

section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013. Certification by a company secretary in practice to the effect that none 

of the directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. As required under 

Schedule V Part C Regulation 10 Sub-regulations (i) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 disclosure was also made 

appropriately (Annexure — A). 

There is no non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by SEBI or Statutory 

Authority on any matters relating to capital markets during the last three years. 

Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Company has an established mechanism for Directors / Employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, 

actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the code of conduct or ethics policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards 

against victimization of directors/emplayees who avail of the mechanism, The Company has formulated a Policy of 

Vigil Mechanism and has established a mechanism that any personnel may raise Reportable Matters within 60 days 

after becoming aware of the same, All suspected violations and Reportable Matters are reported to the Chairman of 

the Audit Committee at e-mail ID, whistleblower@madhucon.com, Key directions/actions will be informed to the 
Managing Director of the Company. 

The CFO cum Director and Managing Director has issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Listing Regulations 

certifying that the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement and these statements represent a true and 
fair view of the Company's affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report. 

Practising Company Secretaries Certificate on Corporate Governance as required under Schedule V, Part C of Listing 

Regulations annexed forming a part of Corporate Governance Report, 

Subsidiary Companies: 
The financials of all the subsidiary companies have been duly reviewed by the audit committee. The Board is also 

periodically informed about all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary companies. 

The Company has also formulated a policy for determining the Material Subsidiary and the details of such policy are 
disseminated in the website of the Company under the follawing link: 

http://www .madhucon.com/corporate/investors.html 

SEBI Prevention of Insider Trading: 

With SEBI imposing the responsibility of "Prohibition of Insider Trading” in the Organizations, Board has designed a 

Code of Conduct strictly in accordance with the Model Code of Conduct prescribed under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations 2015. The Code, besides other relevant matters, prohibits an insider from dealing in the shares 

of the Company, while in possession of the unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company. As on 

the date, there have been no violations of insider trading regulation, 

Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management: 

The standards for business conduct provide that the directors and the senior management will uphold ethical 

values and legal standards as the Company pursues its objectives, and that honesty and personal integrity will not 

be compromised under any circumstances. The Board of Directors has adopted a code of conduct for all Board 

members and senior management of the Company and affirmed its compliance on annual basis for the Financial 

Year ended 31st March 2024. In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 46 of the Listing 

Regulations are disseminated in the website of the Company under the fallowing link: 

http://(www.madhucon.com/corporate/investors.html 

Discretionary requirements under Listing Regulations: The Company has complied with all the discretionary 

requirements of Corporate Governance stipulated under Part E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. Certificate to 

this effect has been issued by Mrs. Vendra Madhumita, Practicing Company Secretary and the same has been 

incorporated as an Annexure to the Report. 
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION: 

The quarterly financial provisional un-audited results of the Company published in the leading daily newspaper within 

45 days from the end of the respective quarters and fourth quarter duly audited within 60 days as per tha Regulation 

33 of Listing Regulations. 

The financial calendar events of 2023-2024 relating to quarterly un-audited and quarterly and yearly Audited financial 

results ara as follows: 

Financial Results Reporting for the : For 2022-23 were announced on 

ist Quarter ended 30" June, 2023 12th August, 2023 

2nd Quarter ended 30th September, 2023 11th November, 2023 

3rd Quarter anded 31st Dacamber, 2023 10'" February, 2024 

4th Quarter and financial year ended 31st March, 2024 18th May, 2024 

The financial provisional un-audited results are published in a leading daily newspaper in English and in Regional 

language having nationwide circulation viz. Financial Express and Mana Telangana alee “a disseminated in the 
website of the Company under the following link: 032024 

These financial provisional results and shareholding pattern are submitted to National Stock Exchange in https:/ 
www.cannact2nse.com/LISTING/ and to Bombay Stock Exchange in http://listing.bseindia.com 

The performance of the quarterly, half yearly and annual together with financial results of the Company released time 
to time in media by the press statements and also displays on Company's website. 

10. GENERALSHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION: 

A) NSE: 

B) 

Financial Year: 
The Company follows the financial year commencing from 1° April to 317! March on consistent basis. 

Listing on Stock Exchanges: 

Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

Stock Code No.: BSE — 631497 

National Stock Exchange (NSE) 

Stock Code No,: NSE— MADHUCON 

ISIN: INE 378D01032 

Market Price Data: 
High and Low during each month in last financial year 2023-2024: 

High and Low of Market Price of the Company's Equity Shares Traded on the BSE & NSE during the 12 months 
period ended 31st March 2024 are as under- 

Period High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) No. of Shares No. of Trades 

April, 2023 5.15 4.60 2,43,287 429 

May,2023 4.75 4.10 §,69,933 980 

June, 2023 6,00 5.15 3,90,073 930 

July, 2023 5.50 5.10 5,11,683 1255 

August, 2023 6.20 5.05 2,62,563 1760 
September, 2023 6.35 545 481,250 734 

October, 2023 §.55 4.95 5,645,108 891 

November, 2023 8.20 7.45 3,08,717 373 

December, 2023 9.90 7.00 9,48,904 1471 

January,2024 11.25 6.90 24,98,900 3590 

February, 2024 11.20 8.90 8,17,301 1226 

March, 2024 9.25 6.60 11,60,406 2043 

BSE: 

Period High Low Traded Quantity No. of 
(Rs.) (Rs.} No. of Shares Trades 

April, 2023 5.41 3.28 3,54,940 761 

May, 2023 4.74 4.11 174,415 396 

June, 2023 6.58 4.05 §,96,455 1523 
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July, 2023 5.63 §.00 1,99,914 490 

August, 2023 6.22 5.01 3,18,012 593 

September,2023 6.50 5.10 1,30,547 291 

October,2023 5.79 4.93 2,19,001 564 

Novemberz2023 9.76 §,55 16,82,793 2536 

December,2023 10.14 6.96 9,88,525 1095 

January,2024 11.29 6.99 10,76,404 1638 

February,.2024 11.16 8.56 2,67 592 621 

March, 2024 9.24 6.60 219,862 482 

vi. Registrar and Transfer Agents: 

Mis KFin TechnologiesPrivate Limited 

(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) 

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31- 32, Gachibowli, 

Financial District, NanakramqudaHyderabad, 

Telangana-500032 

PhoneNo.040-67161605 

vii. Share Transfer System: 

All the Share Transfers that are received will be processed by the Registrarand Share TransferAgents (RTA) and approved 

and registered by the Board of Directors within 15 days from the date of lodgment and de-mat requests are normally 
confirmed within an average period of 15 days from the date of lodgment for transfer. 

viii. Others: 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form should communicate tha change of address, if any, directly to the 

Registrars and Share Transfer Agent of tha Company. 

It has become mandatory for transferees to furnish a copy of Permanent Account Number for registration oftransfer of 

shares held in physical mode. 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form, who have not availed nomination facility and would like to do so are 

requested to avail the same, by submitting the nomination in Form No. $H.13. the form will be made available on 

request. Those holding shares in electronicform are advised to contact their DPs. 

A) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024. 

Equity Share Equity Shareholders Equity Shares Amount 

holding of Numbers [% of Shareholders InRs. % af holding 
nominal Value of 

Rs, 1/- each 

i- 5,000 19311 96.02 94,08,280 12.75 

5,001 - 10,000 387 1.92 29,51,031 4.00 

10,001 - 20,000 194 0.96 28,55,910 3.87 

20,001 - 30,000 77 0.38 19,56,481 2.65 

30,001 - 40,000 29 0.15 10,42,711 1.41 

40,001 - 50,000 24 0.12 10,65,540 1.44 

50,001 - 1,00,000 45 0.22 31,72,958 4.30 

1,00,001 - Above 44 0.23 5,13,42,029 69.58 

Total 20,111 100,00 7,37,94,940,00 100.00 

ix. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

7,36,14,130 Equity Shares equivalent to 99.75 % of the total equity share capital have been de-materialized and 

1,680,810 are in physical form equivalent to 0.25% as on 31st March 2024. 
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Electronic/Physical No. of Holders No. of Shares % to Equity 

NSDL 8690 53716089 72.79 

CDSL 11374 19898041 26.96 

Physical 47 180810 00.25 

Total 20711 7,37,94,940 100.00 

Shareholders are raquested to convert their physical holding to demat /electronic form through any of the DPs to avoid 

any possibility of loss, mutilation ete., of physical share certificates and also to ensure safe and speedy transaction In 

securities. 

x. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity - No 

Outstanding instruments. 

xi. Plant Locations — Not applicable since the Company is not engaged In manufacturing activities. 

xii. Address for Investors Correspondence: 

For any assistance In respect of status on Dematarialization of Shares, Transfer, Transmission, Transposition, Issue 
of Duplicate Certificates, Change of Address etc., members are requested to contact the following Registrar and 

Transfer Agent of the Company. 

M/s. KFin Technolagies Pvt. Ltd 
(Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited) 

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31- 32, 

Gachibowli, Financial District, 
Nanakramguda Hyderabad, 

Telangana-500 032 
Phone No.040-67161605 

For any queries regarding shares held in Demat Form, members are requested to contact their respective Depository 

Participants, 

For any other information about the Company, members are requested to contact the following officer of tha Company. 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer: 
Mr. D. Malla Raddy 

Corp. Off: “Madhucon House", Plot No.1129/A, 

Road No.36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad — 500 033 IndiaTelephone: 
(040) 23556001 /2/3/4 

Fax No: (040) 23556005 

E-Mail; cs@madhucon,com 

11, LISTING FEES: 

Listing fee has been paid to BSE and NSE within the prescribed time limit as set in the Listing Regulations for the Financial 
Year 2024-2025. 

12. RECONCILIATIONGFSHARECAPITAL AUDIT: 

The Quarterly Audit on Share Capital will be conducted by Practicing Company Secretary in accordance with circular of SEBI 

No. D&C /FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated 31" December 2002 and Certificates will be issued accordingly. 

13, DECLARATIONOF COMPLIANCEWITHTHECODEOF CONDUCT: 

| hereby confirm that the company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management personnel, 
affirmations that they have complied with code of conduct for Board Members and senior Management personnel in respect 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Nama Seethaiah 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00784491 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date : 15-06-2024 
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V MADHUMITA & ASSOCIATES 
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 

CE COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

TO THE MEMBERS OF MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

1. |, Vendra Madhumita, Company Secretary in Practice, the secretarial auditor of Madhucon Projects Limited ("the 

Company") have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended March 31, 

2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments from time to time (the "Listing Regulations"). 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 

2 The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. This responsibility 

includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions 

of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations, 

uD : 

3, My examination is limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 

compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statements of the Company. 

4. | have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing 

reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

OPINION 

a Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to me and 

the representations provided by the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule V of the 

Listing Regulations during the year ended 31st March 2024, 

6. |, further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For V. Madhumita and Associates 
Company Secretaries 
Sdi- 
Vendra Madhumita Place: Hyderabad 
Proprietor Date: 17 June, 2024 
(ACS 52965; CP 19626) 
UDIN: A052965F000579898 
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Annexure -A 

V MADHUMITA & ASSOCIATES 
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 

Oo - UALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)}(i) of the SE is ni: Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

Ta, 

The Members of 
Madhucon Projects Limited 
H.no,1-7-70, Jublipura, 
Khammam-507003, 

Telangana, India. 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures recelved from the Directors of MADHUCON 
PROJECTS LIMITED having CIN: L74210TG1990PLC011114 and having registered office at H.No.1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam, 
Telangana - 507003 IN (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing 
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para - C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, |, 

hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of tha Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31® March, 
2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

Sr.No | Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company 

Te POTLA MADHAVA RAO 00385838 24/12/2005 

2. SEETHAIAH NAMA 00784491 15/03/1980 

ai RAMADAS KASARANENI 02182093 13/08/2018 

4. CHINTHAPALLI LAKSHIMIKUMARI 06942473 09/08/2014 

5. MOHAMMAD SHAFI 07178265 30/05/2015 

6. VENKATESWARLU KOTHAPALLI 09713108 11/11/2022 

7. GEETA BATTULA 10205129 28/06/2023 

8. SAMBA SIVA RAO JASTY 09526475 28/06/2023 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of avery Director on the Board is the responsibility of tha management of 
the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiancy or effectiveness with which the managament has conducted the affairs 
of the Company. 

For V. Madhumita and Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Sdi/- 
Vendra Madhumita Place: Hyderabad 
Proprietor Date: 17 June, 2024 
(ACS 52965; CP 19626) 
UDIN: A052965F000579799 
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MD/CFO/GM (Finance & Accounts) Certification 

In relation to the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as at March 31, 2024, Mr, Nama Seethalah, 
Managing Director and Mr.K. Venkateswarlu, DirectocumCFO of the Company certify that: 

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best 

of our knowledge and belief: 

1. That the Financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 
material factor contain statements that might be misleading; 

2, These statements together presenta true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

B. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered Into by the Company during the year 
which is fraudulent, illegal or violates the Company's code of conduct. 

CG. We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 
design or operation of such internal control if any of which we are aware and steps that we have 
taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

D. Further, we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee 

1. Significantchanges in internal control over financial reporting during the year, wherever applicable; 

2. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and correct information has been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements in INDAS format, wherever applicable and 
3. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in Company's internal control 
system over financial reporting, wherever applicable, 

(K. Venkateswarlu) (N Seethaiah) 
Director cm CFQ Managing Director 
DIN: 09713108 DIN60784491 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 18-05-2024 
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4 
i V MADHUMITA & ASSOCIATES 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2024 

YB [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

Hz The Members, 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: L74210TG1990PLC011114 
Regd. Office: H.No.1-7-70, Jublipura 

Khammam 

Telangana- 507003 

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Madhucon Projects Limited 

(hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me 
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 

opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 

other recerds maintained by the company and also the information provided to me by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby 

report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 

on March 31, 2024 (i.e. from April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024) complied with the statutery provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper board- processes and compliance- 

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company for the financial year ended on 31° March, 2024 according to the 

provisions of: 

a) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

b) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made 

thereunder; 

c) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
d) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 

External Commercial Borrowings; 

28



—_— 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED =} 
MADHUCON 

The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not applicable during the period under review 

ii, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, 

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; Not applicable during the period under review 

vy. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; Not applicable during the period under review 

vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client; 

vii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2021; Not applicable during the period under review 

viii, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 

2018; Not applicable during the period under review and 

ix. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

x. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations,2021. 

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following: 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) 

(ii) Equity Listing Agreements entered into with the BSE Limited, National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Directions, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company Is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The appointment and 

changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, including Committees 

thereof, along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance 

(except for meetings conducted at shorter notice after complying with the necessary provisions) and a 
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 

before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board and/or Committee meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the 

minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or respective Committee of the Board, as the case 

may be. 

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, and guidelines. 
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| further report that that during the audit period, the following specific activities took place in the 

Company having a major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulations, guidelines etc.: 

(a) The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend relating to Financial Years 2009-10 

and 2010-11 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

(IEPF). 

(b) The company has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial institutions 

(c ~~
 

(d) 

(e 

(f) 

(g 

(h 

(i) 

() 

—
 

—
 

However, dues in case of some banks were settled through “One time settlement’. 

Managerial remuneration paid by the company during the year is in excess of the 

limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

The company has not conducted Internal Audit during the period under review (ist 

April 2023 ta 31st March 2024). Internal Auditor was not appointed till the date of 

signing of this report. 

In case of “Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL)", a step-down subsidiary of the company, 

CBI has filed FIR against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 under 
Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement 

Directorate has, aided the premises of “the company" on 11-06-2021 and the 

Investigation is still pending. 

As per the press release dated 02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022 The Directorate of 

Enforcement has provisionally attached immovable properties and other assets 

belonging to Madhucon Group of companies, its directors and promoters in a case 

against M/s Ranchi Expressway Ltd, under the provisions of PMLA, 2002. Further 

investigation is going on. 

SREI Equipment Finance Limited filed to "NCLT" for restoration of application of 

Corporate Insolvency Resolution process (CRIP) against the Company, which has 
been admitted vide its order dated 08.12.23. Later on, the financial creditor and the 

Company have initiated the process of settlement on 18.01.2024 by restructuring the 

existing loan and submitted a joint memo stating the same to "The Hon'ble National 
Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) on 05.02.2024, On 28.03.2024 the SREI Equipment 

Finance Limited filed withdrawal memo seeking leave of this “NCLT" to withdraw the 

company petition, NCLT by an order dated 28.03.2024 allowed the company petition 

stands disposed of as withdrawn. 

In case of M/s. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited a step-down subsidiary of the 

company, the NCLT by an order dated 22.08.2023 admitted the Corporate Insolvency 

resolution process against which the NCLAT has passed an order and directed the 

COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 18.06.2024. 

In case of Barasat - Krishnagar Expressways Limited a step-down subsidiary of the 

company, the NCLT by an order dated 28.11.2023 admitted the Corporate 
Insolvency resolution process against which the NCLAT has passed an order and 
directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 26.06.2024 

The company has subsidiary and step-down subsidiaries which has not complied with 

the applicable provisions of the Company Act, 2013 

| further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on 

examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the 
Company has complied with the specific industry/sector related laws as applicable except 
the following: 
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(a) Employees Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and the rules made there under as applicable is 
under Implementation 

Provident Fund commissioner-| of Madhapur, Hyderabad had initiated Proceedings against 

the Company for the recovery of past old dues relating to the-years 2013 - 2014 & 2020 - 

2021. The Honourable High Court of Telangana Issued Stay on the Proceedings. 

| have relied on the information supplied and representation made by the Company and its officers, 
agents, fer systems and mechanisms followed by the Company for compliance under the applicable 

Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company and my Annexed letter is to be read along with this 
report, 

For V Madhumita & Associates 

Company Secretaries 

Place: Hyderabad Proprietor 
Date: 17'" June, 2024 Vendra Madhumita 
UDIN: A0Q52965F000579777 CP NO: 19626, ACS No: 52965 

IA IT REPORT (FORM MR-3 

To, 

The Members, 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: L74210TG1990PLC011114 

H.No.1-7-70, Jublipura 

Khammam 

Telanagana- 507003 

My Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1, The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to 

Madhucon Projects Limited (the ‘Company’) is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. 

2. Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and 

procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

4. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India. 

5. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company's management is 

adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion. 

6, Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance whether the statements 

prepared, documents or records, in relation to Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Company, 

are free from misstatement. 

7. Wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

Disclaimer 

8. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

9. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts and Statutory Dues of the Company as commented by the Auditors. 

Vendra Madhumita 
CP NO: 19626, ACS No: 52965 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited 

Report on the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited (“the company”), which 

comprise the standalane balance sheet as at 31%! March 2024, and the standalone statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone 
statement of cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the 
possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified opinion section of our report, the aforesaid 
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended 

(‘the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2024, its loss and other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion: 

1. We refer to the carrying value of Equity Investments of Rs 1,03,662.52 lakhs held in subsidiaries/other 
companies and other investments of Rs 5624.18 lakhs held in subsidiaries/other companies, some of these 

have been incurring losses and in case of some of the subsidiaries, net worth was fully or substantially eroded 
/ Going Concern is affected. We are unable to comment upon the carrying value of Equity investments and 
other investments whether any provision for impairment in the value of Equity Investments and other 
investments is required; the effect of same upon the profitability could not be ascertained in the absence of fair 
valuation, 

In the case of Madhucon Infra Limited, a subsidiary, the management basing on the valuation Reports on 
“Investment in Madhucon Infra Limited" concluded that the value of this Investrnent Is Nil and has written off 

an amount of Rs. 30,550.68 Lakhs being 25% of the Investment held, instead of writing off complete value of 
investment. For the balance 75% of the Investment no provision for impairment is made in the books of 
account as at 31st March, 2024. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the basis of such partial write off. 

2. “The Company" has written off loan given to Madhucon Infra Limited a subsidiary amounting to 
Nil/Rs.4,263.07 Lakhs for the quarter ended/ Year ended 31St March, 2024 respectively, being partial amount 
of loan, instead of writing off the total outstanding of Rs.12,918.41 lakhs. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the basis of such partial write off. 

3. "The company has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial institution amounting to Rs 
33,369.17 lakhs and Rs 3,370.51 lakhs respectively as per books of account and the same were classified as 
NPA by the lenders. Interest on these loans have not been provided for the FY 2018-19 ta FY 2023-24, Dues 
in case of some banks were settled through “One time settlement” and an amount of Rs. 12,503.97 Lakhs, 
being the benefit of OTS, has been accounted during the quarter ended 31st March, 2024. 

Further, in case of other banks except in case of Canara bank, OTS agreements have been entered. Balance 
confirmation in respect of the loan from Canara Bank has not been obtained. 

4. "The Company “has written back Trade Payables amounting to Rs. 8,103.63 Lakhs and Rs.9,542.19 lakhs for 
the quarter ended 315! March, 2024 and for the Year ended 315' March, 2024 respectively — refer to note no. 
2.16 of financial statements. 
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“The Company "has written back Other Payables (including Interest payable) amounting to Rs 1,921.36 lakhs 
and Rs 2,089.20 lakhs for the quarter ended 31°! March, 2024 and for the Year ended 31°! March, 2024 
respectively. 

“The Company" has written off advances to Other Parties amounting to Nil/Rs. 393.95 Lakhs for the quarter 
ended/ Year ended 31* March, 2024. 

The company Is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 3.73 Lakhs relating to 
Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund 
(IEPF). 

Undisputed Statutory dues in case of following are outstanding: 

S.No, Name of the Status Nature of Due Period Rs. 

in Lakhs 

4 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Dividend Distribution 2011-12 to 2016-17 139.93 

Tax & Interest on it 

2 The Employees Provident funds Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 70.24 
land Miscellaneous provision act 

1952 

3 Works Contract Tax Works Contract Tax 2014-15 to 2017-18 396.86 

9, 

10. 

11 

12. 

13. 

14. 

In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior approval from the lender banks and 
financial Institutions, managerial remuneration of Rs. 138.68 Lakhs pald by the company during the year is In 
excess of the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

The Turnover, Output GST and Input GST credits as per the books of account are subject to reconciliation 
with the GST returns filed. 

. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 1* April 2023 to 31° March 2024. 

The Company has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable properties (lands) held. 

SREI Equipment Finance Limited filed to “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (The Hon'ble NCLT) 
for restoration of application of Corporate Insolvency Resolution process (CIRP) against “The Company”, 
which has been admitted vide its order dated 08.12.23. 

Subsequently, “the Company" filed an appeal with “The Hon'ble NCLT" and the impugned order dated 
08.12.2023 of “The Hon'ble NCLT" was set aside and remanded back to the “The Hon'ble NCLT" for fresh 

review vide order dated 12.12.2023. Later on, the financial creditor and "the Company" have initiated the 
process of settlement on 18.01.2024 by restructuring the existing loan and submitted a joint memo stating the 
same to “The Hon'ble NCLT" on 05.02.2024. 

SREI Equipment Finance Limited has approved for Restructuring of existing loan dues for a final settlement of 
Rs. 4,952.00 Lakhs, vide its letter dated 02.02.2024. As per agreed terms & conditions, "the company” has 
paid upfront payment of 20% of Restructured loan and one instalment, total amounting to Rs. 1685.65 Lakhs 
as of 31st March, 2024. 

On 28.03.2024 the SREI Equipment Finance Limited filed withdrawal memo seeking leave of this "The 
Hon'ble NCLT" to withdraw the company petition. "The Hon'ble NCLT" by an order dated 28.03.2024 allowed 
the company petition stands disposed of as withdrawn. 

In case of "Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL)", a step-down subsidiary of the company, CBI has filed FIR 
against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal 
Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate has raided the premises of “the company” on 11-06-2021 
and the investigation is still under progress. 
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15. As per the press release dated 02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022 The Directorate of Enforcement has provisionally 
attached 105 immovable properties and 28 other assets worth Rs.96.21 Crore and Rs.80.65 Crore 

respectively belonging to Madhucon Group of companies, its directors and promoters which included the 
properties of Madhucon Projects Limited and group companies in a case against M/s Ranchi Expressway Ltd, 
under the provisions of PMLA, 2002. 

16. In case of Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) a step down subsidiary of Madhucon Projects Limited, “The Hon'ble 
National Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) by an order dated 22.12.2023 admitted the Corporate Insolvency 
resolution process (CRIP), for a petition filed by State Bank of India. Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) has made 
an appeal to "The Hon'ble NCLAT" and “The Hon'ble NCLAT" has deferred the impugned order given by 
NCLT and posted the next hearing an 07.06.2024. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.1.40 lakhs and has Trade Receivables of 
Rs.8,073.69 lakhs in the above step down subsidiary for which provision has not been made. 

17. In case of Mis. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited a step down subsidiary of Madhucon Projects Limited, 
“The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 22.08.2023 admitted the Corporate 
Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which “The Hon'ble NCLAT has passed an order and directed 
the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 18.06.2024 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.10 lakhs and advances of Rs. 42.82 lakhs in the 
above step down subsidiary for which provision has not been made. 

18. In case of Barasat — Krishnagar Expressways Limited a step down subsidiary of Madhucon Projects Limited, 
“The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) by an order dated 28.11.2023 admitted the Corporate 
Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which "The Hon'ble NCLAT has passed an order and directed 
the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 26.06.2024. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.1.40 lakhs in the above step down subsidiary for 
which provision has not been made. 

19. In the absence of confirmation of some of the Trade payables, Trade Receivables and various advances/loans, 
we aré unable to comment on the extent to which such balances are payable/recoverable. Some of the 
payables to parties are shown by netting off with the other receivables. 

20, Balance confirmation of current accounts, which have become Dormant, are not obtained in case of Bank 
Branches at various project sites. 

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 

We draw attention to “Note No. 2.45" to Standalone Ind AS financial statements - "The Company's" current 
liabilities exceeded current assets amounting to Rs. 92,331.50 Lakhs and “The Company” has defaulted in 
payment of dues to banks and financial institution. All these events Indicate a material uncertainty existing 
that may cast a significant doubt on “The Company's" ability to continue as a going concern. However, the 
management believes the use of going concern assumption on the preparation of the Ind AS financial 
statements of “the company" is still appropriate in view of, settlement of dues under OTS In case of some 
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banks and having received approvals for restructure of loan for settlement of dues by the financial 
institution and its continuing discussions with its other lenders to obtain approval for and an appropriate 
debt resolution plan and also, that "The company” will continue to be in operation in the foreseeable future. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

Ind AS financial statements of the current period. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be included in our audit 

programme. 

1) The carrying value of Equity investments held and other investments held in its subsidiaries, which 
have been incurring losses and in case of some of these companies, net worth was fully or 
substantially eroded. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

We have examined the key controls in place for Investments made in subsidiaries. We assessed the networth 
of subsidiaries on the basis of latest available Ind AS financial statements. It is concluded that, we are unable 
to comment upon the carrying value of Equity investments and other investments, as to whether any provision 
for impairment in investments is required. In case of subsidiary, Madhucon Infrastructure Limited, the 
company has obtained a valuation report, based an which 25% of the investment is written off instead of 
writing off complete value of investment. For the balance 75% of the Investment no provision for impairment is 
made in the books of account as at 31st March, 2024. 

2) “The Company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial institution, all the loans 
outstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks and Financial Institution, Interest on these loans 
have not been provided for the financial years 2018-19 to 2023-24, 

How the matter was addressed in our audit : 

The company has settled the dues in case of SBI, IDBI Bank and Bank of India through OTS and 
entries for the same has been passed in the books of account accordingly. 

In case of other banks", except canara bank, the company has entered into OTS. (Refer Clause 3 of 
Basis for Qualified Opinion). 

“Other banks includes ICICI Bank, Punjab National Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank. 

In connection with our audit of the Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and 

Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including 
Annexure to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's 
Information, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard. 

3) Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in "the Act" with respect to the 
preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of “the Company" in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
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policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either Intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 

or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial 
statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fram error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company te cease to continue as a going cancern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial 

Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (il) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the Standalone Financial Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 

in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the 

matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our Knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion proper books of 
account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of 
those books; 

c) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion the Balance 
Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows 
and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 
as per Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended. 

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion, the aforesaid Ind 
AS financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 
the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under. 

e On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024, and taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*' March, 2024, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’. 

2 In view of losses incurred by “the company" and in the absence of prior approval from the lender banks and 
financial Institutions, managerial remuneration of Rs, 138.68 Lakhs paid by the company during the year is 
in excess of the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

h) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i, The Company has disclosed the pending litigations which would impact its financial position in its notes 
to Ind AS financial statements. 

ji. The Company does not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

iii. The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 3.73 Lakhs relating 
to Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from Unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF). 
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iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 

in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 

are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any 

person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded 

in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guaranteé, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (il) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 
softwares for maintaining Its books of account for the financial year ended 31° March, 2024, 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the softwares. Further, during the 
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

For P. Murali & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 0072575 

A. Krishna Rao 
Partner 

Membership No. 020085 
UDIN: 24020085BKAUHM9560 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 18-05-2024 
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Annexure A to the Auditors Report 

Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors Report to the Members of M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited on 

the Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31*' March 2024, we report that: 

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

a) 

b) 

c) 

d) 

a) 

b) 

® The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

« The Company doesn't have any intangible assets. 

As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at 

regular Intervals; as informed to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, 
the frequency of verification is reasonable. 

The Company has not produced Title Deeds In respect of certain immovable properties (lands) held, 

as such we are unable to provide the details as required. 

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management the Company has not revalued 

any ofits Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) during the year. 

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Inventory has been physically 

verified during the year by the Management and in our opinion, the frequency of verification Is reasonable. As 

per our observations the coverage and procedure of such verification was appropriate, and there are no major 
discrepancies found on and above 10% aggregately of such classes of inventory. 

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 crore, in aggregate, at any 

points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 

ii, The Company has not made investments and has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, and has provided 
guarantee or security, unsecured, to companies, firms or limited liability partnerships during the year. 

a) (A)Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has given loans and advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided security to 

subsidiaries. 

(B)Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has given unsecured loans and unsecured advances in the nature of loans to parties other than 

subsidiaries as listed below: 
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(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in nature of 

Loans 

Aggregate amount during 

the year 

Subsidiaries & Stepdown 

Subsidiaries 

1,457.60 90.32 

Joint ventures* 96.20 
Associates” 

Others 200.07 

Balance outstanding as at 
balance sheet date 

Subsidiaries & Stepdown 
Subsidiaries* 

4,335.00 10,112.67 5,570.13 

Joint ventures” 5 570.55 2,833.83 
Associates* 
Others 12,262.85 229,79 

b) 

¢) 

qd) 

e) 

*As per the Companies Act, 2013 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, 

in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans during the 
year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

During the year, the company has granted loan of Rs. 1,457.34 Lakhs to its subsidiary (madhucon infra limited) 

and has written off Rs. 4,263.07 Lakhs from the outstanding loan. 

According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the Company, in the case of interest free loans and advances in the nature of loans given, the repayment of 

principal has not been stipulated, 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the Company, as there is no specification of repayment schedules in respect of loans granted, we are 

unable to comment on whether any loans were overdue for more than ninety days. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the Company, there is no loan and advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the year, which 

has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same 

parties. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii/)(e) is not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 

of the Company, the Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

All Parties Promoters Related Parties 

Aggregate amount of loans/ 

advances in nature of loans 

~ Repayable on demand (A) 

- Agreement does not 

specify any terms or period 

of repayment (B) 
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1,564.95 - 1,564.95 

Total ( A+B ) 1,564.95 - 1,564.95 

Percentage of loans/advances in | 100% - 100% 
nature of loans to the total loans 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 

provision of sections 185 and 186 of the Act to the extent applicable, in respect of loans, investments guarantees 

and security. 

v. During the year The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. 

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records as 

specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are 

of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have 

not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 

complete. 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined by us, 

in respect of the Statutory dues: 

a) There are some delays in depositing undisputed statutory dues for the current year in case of Provident Fund, 

ESI , Goods and Service Tax, TDS. Undisputed amounts payable in respect of Statutory dues which were 

outstanding for more than six months from the date they became payable are as follows: 

§.No. Name of the Status Nature of Due Period Rs. 

in Lakhs 

1 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Dividend Distribution Tax | 2011-12 to 2016-17 139.93 

& Interest on it 

2 The Employees Provident funds Provident fund 2013-14 ta 2020-21 70.24 

and Miscellaneous provision act 

1952 

3 Works Contract Tax Works Contract Tax 2014-15 to 2017-18 396.86 

4 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Tax Deducted at source | 2023-24 11.57 

5 The Income Tax Act, 1961 Interest on TDS paid 2018-19, 2021-22 542.99 
to 2022-23 

b) Details of dues of Sales tax, Entry tax, Service tax which have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2024 on 

account of disputes are given below: 
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Name of the Statute | Forum where dispute is | Period to which the amount | Amount involved 

pending relates (Rs.in lakhs) 

Entry Tax Hon'ble High Court 2015-16 & 2016-17 8.85 

Service Tax Settlement Commission 2010-12 1,655.75 

Provident fund Hon'ble High Court 2015-16 to 2016-17 1,083.64 

viii, There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

iX. a) Based on the examination of books of account and related records and according to the information and 

explanations given by the management, the company has defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 

institutions and banks during the year [ Refer Clause 3 of Basis for Qualified Opinion], as follows: 

Delay in Principal and Interest payments: 

Amount in Rs.Lakhs 

Nature Name of the | Amount — not | Principal or| Neo. of days | Remarks, if 

Lender paid on due | Interest delay or | any 
date unpaid 

Cash credit Canara Bank 5758.56 Principal 181 and | The loan has 

above days become NPA 

Cash credit ICIC| Bank 16,032.85 Principal 181 and | The loan has 

above days become NPA 

Cash credit Punjab National 4991.80 Principal 181 and | The loan has 

Bank(Formerly above days become NPA 

Oriental Bank of 

Commerce) 

Cash credit Kotak Mahindra | 2036.26 Principal 181 and | The loan has 

Bank above days become NPA 
Term loan SREI* 4000.00 Principal 181 and | The loan has 

above days become NPA 
Interest on ICICI Bank 4107.30 Interest 181 and | The loan has 

loans above days become NPA 
Interest on Canara Bank 193.00 Interest 181 and | The loan has 

loans above days become NPA 

Interest on Punjab National 249.40 Interest 181 and | The loan has 

loans Bank (Formerly above days become NPA 
Orient Bank of 
Commerce) 

Interest on SREI** 508.69 Interest 181 and | The loan has 

loans above days become NPA 
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* SREI has approved for restructuring of existing loan for final settlement for the FY 2023-24 - refer to note no. of 

financial statement. 

xi. 

xii. 

xiii. 

xiv. 

b) 

c) 

q) 

e) 

f) 

a) 

b) 

a) 

c) 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or other lenders. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the Company has not raised any 

term loans during the year. 

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term 

basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes. 

On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the Company has not 

taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 

joint ventures or associate companies. 

The Gompany has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) during the year. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 

of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 

No fraud by the Company and on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 

as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. 

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Campany during the 

year and up to the date of this report. 

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with 

respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions 

have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Indian 

accounting standards - refer to note no. 2.39 of financial statements. 

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, "the Company” does not have adequate internal audit 

system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b)Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 01* April, 2023 to 31% March, 2024, 
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xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 

Directors or persons connected with its directors. As per the provisions of section 192 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

xvi. a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

d) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). 

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 1,419.19 Lakhs during the financial year covered by our audit and 

Rs, 979.62 Lakhs cash losses for the Immediately preceding financial year 2022-23. Further we state that the 

effect of an Unquantified Qualification (Refer Clause 3 of Basis For Qualified Opinion) on the figure of cash losses, 

has not been taken into consideration for the purpose of making comments in respect of this clause. 

xviii, There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Campany during the year. 

xix. According ta the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 

expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 

accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans 

and based on our examination of evidence supporting the assumptions, we conclude based on the information 

obtained fromm the management and audit procedures performed that material uncertainty exists as on the date of 

the audit report indicate that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 

sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, which depend on the 

outcome of the management plans on the discussions with its lenders to obtain approval for and implementation 

of appropriate debt resolution plan - Refer to note no. 2.45 of financial statements. 

xx. In view of the losses incurred by the company, it is not covered under the provisions of section 135 of the companies 

act 2013. 

xxi, The qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) 

reports of the companies included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the details of the companies 

and the clauses of the CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks - 
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5 Name CIN Halding Clause number 

No Company/subsidiary of the CARO 

/Step down subsidiary report which is 

Associate/Joint Venture | qualified or 
adverse 

1 TN(DK) U45200TG2006PLC048941 | Step down subsidiary (vii), (ix), 
EXPRESSWAYS (xiii), (xiv) 
LIMITED 

2 TRICHY-THANJAVUR U45200TG2006PLC049815 | Step down subsidiary (vil), (ix), 

EXPRESSWAYS (xiii) (xiv), (dix) 
LIMITED 

3 CHHAPRA-HAJIPUR U45209TG2010PLC068742 | Step down subsidiary (vii), (ix), 

EXPRESSWAYS (xiii), (xiv) 

LIMITED 
4 BARASAT- U45203TG2011PLC073469 | Step down subsidiary (iv), (vii), 

KRISHNAGAR (ix), Galli), Osiv), 
EXPRESSWAYS (xix) 

LIMITED 
5 VIJAYAWADA- U45208AP2011PLC077676 | Step down subsidiary (iv), (vil), (<i) 

MACHILIPATNAM 
EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 
6 RAJAULI- U45203TG2012PLC080775 | Step down subsidiary (vii), (xix) 

BAKHTIYARPUR 
EXPRESSWAYS 
LIMITED 

7 MADURAI-TUTICORIN | U45203TG2006PLC050114 | Subsidiary (iv), (vil), (IX), 
EXPRESSWAYS (xiii), (xiv), 

LIMITED (xvii), (xix) 

8 NAMA HOTELS | U55101TG2007PTCO56818 | Subsidiary (vii), (xiv), (xvii) 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

i) MADHUCON HEIGHTS | U45208TG2007PTCO56733 | Subsidiary (vil), (xiv), (xvii) 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

10 MADHUCON MEGA | U45400TG2007PTCO56734 | Subsidiary (vil), (xiv), (xvii) 
MALL PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

11 MADHUCON TOLL | US3000TG2008PLC060479 | Subsidiary (xiv), 
HIGHWAYS LIMITED (xvii), (xix) 

12 MADHUCON INFRA | U45200TG2006PLC049235 | Subsidiary (vii), (ix), 
LIMITED (xiv), (xvii), (xix) 

13 RANCHI U45209TG2011PLC073568 | Step down subsidiary (vil), (ix), (xiv), 

EXPRESSWAYS (xix) 
LIMITED 

For P. Murali& Co, 

Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 0072578 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 

Membership No:020085 

UDIN: 24020085BKAUHM9560 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 18-05-2024 

A 
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Annexure B to the Independen itor’s Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of the Sub-section 3 of the 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited (‘the 

company’) as of 318 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of Ind AS financial statements of the company for the 

year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting ( the “Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under 

section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit 

of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. These standards and guidance note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and performed the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur Audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of 
the risk of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion and the company's internal financial control system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detailed, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only 

in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usé, or disposition of the Company's assets that 

could have a material effect an the Ind AS financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

hot be detected. Also, Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting — to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion, the company 
has in all material respects reasonable internal financial controls system over financial reporting but not adequate and 

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were not operating effectively as at 31% March 2024 based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 

by the ICAI, 

For P. Murali& Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No; 0072575 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 
Membership No: 020085 
UDIN: 24020085BKAUHM9560 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 18-05-2024 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 

(All the amounts are in Inkhs except "No of Shares! , "Face value of Equity shore’ ond Earning per share) 

7 (Rin Lakhs) 

jate Aa at Aa at 

babedannia No Mareh 31, 2024 March 41, 2023 
ABSETS 

Non-Current Asssts 

[__te)_ Property, Plant and equipment mn 2,860.86 3,195,350 
{b) Financial Asseta 

(ij_ Investments 2.3 1,05 286.70 139,837.48 

(li) Trade Receivables 2.3 8,073.60 7,952.77 

(iii) Lean 2.4 10,112.67 12,918.41 
liv) Others Financial Assets 2.4 17,322.13 9,874.37 

{ce} Deferred tax Asset (Net) 2.6 5,579.56 4,576.05 

{b)_ Other Non-Current Assets 2.7 13,656.85 12,939.80 
Total Non-Current Assets 1,66,895.47 1,90,994.058 

Current Assctas 

Toventorica 2.8 55.09 210.23 

(b) Financial Asscta 

(i) Trade Receivables 29 4,327.78 414.15 
ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 2.10 553.99 ATA Al 

(iil) Others Financial Assets 2.1) 5,754.65 4,842.97 

fe) Current Tax Aaact (Net 2.12 6,154.15 7,650.30 
{d) Other Current Assets 2.3 9,041.10 11,338.95 

Total Current Assets 25,886.77 24,931.01 
‘Total Assets 1,92, 785.24 2,15,925.09 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

ulty 

(a) Equity Share capital 2.14 740.32 740,32 

{b)_ Other Equity 2.15 51,700.68 52,680.27 
Total Equity 52,441.01 53,420.60 

LIABILITIES 

Non-Current Liabilities 

fa) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Poyobies 2.16 8,052.79 7,214.26 

{A) total outstanding duca of micro enterprises 

and amall cnterprigea; and 

(B) etal outstanding dues of creditors other than 
inicre enterprises and arnall enterprises, | 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 2.17 50.97 71.22 

(b) Provisions 2.18 78,53 110,56 

{e)_ Other Non-Current Liabilities 2.19 13,903.68 954.01 
Total Non-Current Linbilitics 22,125.96 6,356.05 

Current Liabilitios 

{a)_ Financial Liabilities 

(i)_ Borrowings 2.20 36,739.68 53,347.94 

(il) Trade Poyobles 2.21 36,723.60 45,514.38 

(A) total cutatanding dues of micra caterprises 

and amallenterprisea; and 

(8) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
microcnterpriaca and small enterprises | 
Other Financial Li 2.22 11,815.26 13,955.78 

(b)_ Other Current Liabilities 2.23 25,390.48 34,713.03 

ic)_ Provisions 2.24 5,245.42 5,246.15 
(d)_ Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.25 23,303.44 L37715 

Tetal Current Liabilities 1,18,218.28 1,64,154,44 

Total Equity and Linbilitles 1,92,785.24 215,925.09 

Significant accounting polices & Notes to accounts 1&2 

The nccompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements 
As per our reported even date annexed 

For P.Murali & Ca, 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN ; 0072578 

A. Krishna Raa 

Partner 
Membership Number 020085 

UbiN: 24020085BK AUHM9560 

Place : Hyderabad 

Date : May 18, 2024 

N. Secthuiah 

Managing Director 

DIN-00784491 

KK. Venkateawarlu 

Directar cum CFO 

DIN-G9713108 

Fer and on behalf af the Boord 

Mohammad Shafi J. Samba alva Rao 

Director (F & A) 

DIN: 09526475 

Jt Muinaging Director 

BIN-O7 178265 

D. Malla Reddy 

Company Secretary 

ACS: 9589 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

{All the amounts are in lukhe except “No of Shares" , "Face value of Equity share* and Earning per share) 

( in Lakhs} 
Note Yoor ended Year ended 

No. March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

{ccm —— ee 
1 Revenue from Operations 2.26 95,124.33 90,080.64 
nl Other Income 2.27 25,442.41 13,404.78 

I = |Tatal Income 1,20,566,74 1,03,485,42 

Expenses ; 
Cost of Materials Consumed and Work Expenses 2.28 41,434.01 77,911.03 = 

Employee Benefirs Expense 2.29 1,874.02. 1,949.41 

Finance Coats 2.30 724.02 _ 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.1 G11.26 

Other Expenses 2.31 37,553.88 : 

Tv |Total Expenses r _ = SS EES 1,22,597.19 1,05,047.00 

Vv |Profit/Loau Before Tax before Exceptional Itema [II-TV) (2,030,45)) 0 _(1,561.58) 

vi |Exceptional items : : 
Vil (|Profit/Losa Before Tox after Exceptional Itema(V-V1} (2,030,465) (1,561,58) 

VIL Tax Exponss 

Current Tax (Income Tax} = a eee - = = 

Income Tax Refund Received - ee ee _ 
Deffered Tax (1,003.51) (2,007.69) 

; 7 (1,603.51) (2,007.69) 

Profit / (loss) for the period from continulngoperations 
rx |{ Vit-VItl) (1,026.94) 446.11 

x Profit/(loas) from discontinued operations 3 - 

XI | Tax Expense of discontinucd operations * * 
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations(After tax) 

xan | (X-Xi) ) * 

Xi | Peafit/(lesa) for the parlod (DX+XI1) - 

(1,026.94) 446.11 

XIV | Other Comprehensive Income / (Loan) 
A (ij Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

a,Remenavrement af the Defined Benefit Plans 47.35 = Pare ARNG 

(i)Income tax relating te items that will - 
not be reclassified to profit or lons 

Bi) Heme that will be reclassified to profil or lone - 

(li) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to = 

Prot oF lesa 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year ohaE 42.10 
(net of taxen) 

Total Comprehensive Income/Losa for the Year | ~ ~ 
AV | perit+2erv) (979.59) 489.21 

Earnings per share of face value of “1 each (continuing 
XVI |sperationa) 

Basie and Diluted (1.39) 0.60 

XVI |Earnings per equity share [for discontinued operations} 

Basie and Diluted é # 
Earnings por oquity share (for continuing & discontinued 

XVIii |oporations) (XVII+XVIT} 

Basic and Diluted (1.39) 0.60 

Significant accounting polices & Notes to accounts 1&2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements 

As per our reported even date annexed 

For P.Murali & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 0072575 

A.Krishna Rao 

Partnar 
Membership Number 020085 
UDIN: 24020085BKAUHM9560 

Place : Hyderabad 

Date ; May 18, 2024 

For and on behalf af the Baard 

N. Seothalsh 

Managing Director 

DIN-00784491 

Mohammad Shafi 
Jt Managing Direetar 

DIN-O7 178265 

J, Samba sive Rao 
Director (F & A} 

DIN: 09526475 

K, Venkatoswario 
Director cum CFO 

DIN-09713108 

DB, Malin Reddy 

Company Sceretary 

ACS: 9559 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(All the amounts are in lakhs except “No of Shares", "Face value of Equity share" and Earning per share) 

{2 in Lakhs) 

i Year ended Year ended 

anal 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit/ (loss) before income tax (2,030.45) (1,561.58) 

Adjustments for: 

Exceptional Item = a 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 611,26 581.96 

Dividend and interest income classified as investing cash flows (185.47) (36.75) 

Finance costs 724.02 202.97 

Change in operating assets and liabilities 

(Increase) /decrease in trade receivables (4,034.56) 337.60 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 155.13 172.20 

(Increase) /decrease in other financial asscts (8,659.44) 9,448.12 

(Increase) /decrease in other current and non-current assets 3,076.96 669.40 

Increase/ (decrease) in Loans 2,805.74 12,849.23 

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables (7,912.24) (13,365.15) 

Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities (2,145.80) (1,084.33) 

Increase/ (decrease) in other current and non-current liabilities 4,553.39 577.40 

Increase/ (decrease) in Non current Investments 30,550.68 9,001.00 

Cash generated from operations 17,509.22 17,792.07 

Income taxes paid = = 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 17,509.22 17,792.07 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Payments for property, plant and equipment (282,82) 39.20 

Payments for purchase of investments 2 f 

Dividend paid * # 

Interest received 185.47 36.75 

Net cash outflow from investing activities (97.35) 75.95 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds/ (Repayment) of long term borrowings % z 

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net) (16,608,26) (18,248.54) 
Interest paid (724.02) (202.97) 

Net cash outflow from financing activities (17,332.28) (18,451.51) 

Net increase/(decreasc) in cash and cash equivalents 79.59 (583.49) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 474.41 1,057.89 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 653.99 474.41 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 

31 March, 2024' 31 March, 2023' 

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: 

Cash and cash equivalents 553,99 474.41 

Balances per statement of cash flows 553.99 474.41 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements In terms of our report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN :; 0072578 

A. Krishna Rao 

Partner 

Membership Number 020085 
UDIN: 24020085BKAUHM9560 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date : May 18, 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board 

N. Seethaiah 

Managing Director 

DIN-00784491 

K. Venkateswarlu 

Director cum CFO 

DIN-09713108 

Mohammad Shafi 

Jt Managing Director 
DIN-07178265 

J. Samba siva Rao 

Director (F & A) 

DIN: 09526475 

D. Malla Reddy 

Company Secretary 
ACS: 9559 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Company Overview: 
Madhucon Projects Limited (MPL) or “the Company" is an integrated construction, Infrastructure development and 
management Company. The Corporate Office of the Company is located at ‘Madhucon House’ Road No.36, Jubilee 
Hills, Hyderabad, India. 

The Company is engaged in the business of development and execution of Engineering, Procurement and 
Construction (EPC) and Turnkey Projects in multiple sectors such as Transportation, Irrigation, Water Resource 
Infrastructures, Railways, development of smart citles and properties in India. Completing the projects with high 
quality workmanship and commitment to excellence made the Company a leader in the industry. The Company is 
best in innovation, creativity and technological mastery, delivering top-quality work, ahead of schedule, in all sectors. 

A majority of the development projects of the Company are based on execution of Engineering, Procurement and 
Construction (EPC) and Turnkey Projects. 

Basis of preparation: 

A) 

B) 

Cc) 

Statement of compliance 
The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time 
to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 18, 2024. 

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included In Note 1. The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied consistently to the years presented in the standalone financial statements. 

Basis of Measurement 

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain 
financial instruments which are measured at fair value in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and OCI are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in 

the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"). The statement of cash flows has been prepared and 
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to 
items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Act, are 
presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required ta be disclosed 

under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 as amended. 

Functional and presentation currency 
Amaunts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to two decimal places as 
permitted by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals 
places. 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

1.1 Current versus non-current classification 

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. 
An assetis treated as current when it is: 
+ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
* Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fram being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reparting period, 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

All liability is current when: 
= |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading 
«It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
* There is no uncanditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

1.2 Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupees. 

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions. Gains and 
losses resulting from settlement of such transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year are 

translated at year end rates. The difference in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and 
losses on foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

1.3 Fair value measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Falr value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the standalone financial statements are 

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements, the Company determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the 
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

The management also compares the change In the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources 
to determine whether the change is reasonable. On an annual basis, the Management presents the valuation results 
to the Audit Committee and the Company's independent auditors. This includes a detailed discussion of the major 
assumptions used in the valuations. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

1.4 Use of Accounting Estimates & Assumptions: 
The preparation of the financial statements requires that the management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitias and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial 
statements and the results of operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon 
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which 
are recognised in the period in which they are determined. 

1.5 Revenue recognition 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The Company has applied the 
following accounting policy for revenue recognition: 

Revenue from contracts with customers: 

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 
115: 

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties 
that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met. 

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A perfarmance obligation is a promise in a contract with 
a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts 
collected on behalf of third parties. 

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more 
than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation in 
an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
satisfying each performance obligation. 

Step 5, Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, If one of the following criteria is 
met: 

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's 
performance as the Company performs; or 

2. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or 
enhanced: or 

3. The Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and 
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of 
variable consideration) allocated toe that performance obligation. The 
transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various 
discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. 
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Contract revenue (construction contracts) 

Revenue from works contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is recognised under the percentage of 

completion method by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity. The stage of completion is 
measured by calculating the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of a contract. 
Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily invalves making estimates by the 
management. 

When the Company satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a 
contract asset based on the amount of consideration to be earned by the performance. Where the amount of 
consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised this gives rise to a contract 
liability. 

Any variations In contract work, claims, and incentive payments are included in the transaction price if it Is highly 
probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are resolved. 

Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer of goods or services and the 
receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit either to the customer or the 
Company. 

Ravenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and 
including taxes or duties collected as principal contractor. 

Revenue earned in excess of billing has been reflected as unbilled revenue and billing in excess of revenue has 
been reflected as unearned revenue. 

Operation and maintenance contracts 

Revenue from maintenance contracts are recognized over the period of the contract as and when services are 
rendered. 

Other Income: 

Dividend Income: 

Dividend income from Investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established. 

Interest Income: 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the 
Company performs its obligations by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rights became unconditional. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.¢., only the 
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due), 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration (oar an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the 
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or 
the payment is due (whichever is earlier), Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs 
under the contract. 

1.6 Taxes on Income 
Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

Current Tax 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the 
applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
Company's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

+ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
profit or loss. 

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the 
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 

reverse in the foreseeable future, 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial recognition of 
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has 
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 

1.7 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All 
other borrowing costs are expensed In the period In which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

1.8 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets 
A disclosure for Contingent liabilities is made in the notes on accounts when there is a possible obligation or present 
obligations that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. A contingent liabilities arises where there 
isa a liability that cannot be reconginsed because it cannot be measured reliably. 

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise. 
When an inflaw of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 
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1.9 Provisions 

The Company recognises provisions when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that 
there will be an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

1.10 Investments In subsidiaries and joint ventures 

The Company accounts for the investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures at cost in accordance 
with Ind AS 27- Separate Financial Statements. The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at 
amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable arnaunt is less 

than its carrying amount, the impairment loss Is accounted for. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and joint 
venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

1.11 Employee Benefits: 
Provident fund is defined Contribution scheme and contributions are charged to profit and loss account of the year 
when the contributions to the respective funds are due. Other retirement benefits such as Gratuity, leave encashment 
ete., are recognized on basis of the independent actuarial valuation. 

1.12 Financial Instruments: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at transaction values and 
where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, 
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

A. Financial Assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 
Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all 
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or 
loss is initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Subsequent Measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

(a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

(b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in case where the company has made an 
irrevocable selection based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the 
subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive Income. In any other case, financial asset 

is fair valued through profit and loss. 

(c) Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company recognizes lass allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing 
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are 
measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from 
initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetine ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or 
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be 
recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss. 

58



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 4} 

Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

(d) De-recognition of Financial Assets 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows fram the asset 
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 

entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues 
to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability 
for amounts it may have to pay. 

lf the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds 
received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity Instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

(a) Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 
issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the 
equity instrument. 

(b) Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabillties at FVPL, loans and borrowings and 

payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrewings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

(c) Subsequent Measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and 
other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate the fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

(d — De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. When an existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as 
de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

1.13 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts 
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they 
are considered an integral part of the company's cash management. 

1.14 Earnings per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the Equity 
Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per 
share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year, adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity 
shares, attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of the equity shares and dilutive 
potential equity shares outstanding during the year except where the results are anti-dilutive. 

1.15 Lease 
The Company has no leases or any contract containing lease and accordingly, no disclosure has been made on the 
same. 
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1.16 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets classified as held for sale are 

reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there Is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing 
for an asset is required, the Corporation estimates the asset's recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the 
higher of the asset's or Cash-Generating Unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 

and is written down to Its recoverable amount. 

1.17 Schedule Ill amendment disclosures: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule Ill of the 
Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial statements. 
These amendments are applicable to the Company for the financial year starting April 1, 2021 and applied to the 
standalone financial statements: 

* Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes In equity such as changes in equity share capital due 
to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period. 

+ Additional disclosure for shareholding of promoters. 
* Additional disclosure for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables and capital work-in-progress. 
* Specific disclosure such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of 

layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances to 
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties etc. 

+ Additional disclosure for relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and undisclosed income. 

1.18 Statement of Cash Flows: 

Statement of Cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect method, 
the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects of: 

i. Changes during the year in inventories and operating receivables and payables and transactions of a non- 
cash nature; 

ii. Non-cash Items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and 
undistributed profits of associates; and 

ili. All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company is segregated based on the 
available information. Gash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow 
Statement. 

1.19 Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including any directly attributable expenditure on 
making the asset ready for its intended use, attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ 

installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure 
relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. An item of 
property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to 
arise from the continued use of the asset. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous 
GAAP as at April 01, 2015 of its Property, Plant and Equipment and use the carrying value as deemed cost of the 

Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of transition i-e April 01, 2015. 
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1.20 Intangible Assets 
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future 
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. 
Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The 
estimated useful life and amortization method reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any 
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

1.21 Depreciation! Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost less its estimated residual 
value. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment have been provided on Straight-Line method in accordance 

with the Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013, based on the useful life estimated on the technical assessment as 

in force and proportionate depreciation are charged for additions/disposals during the year. In respect of additions / 

disposal to the fixed assets / leasehold improvements, depreciation is charged from the date the asset is ready to 
use / up to the date of dispasal. The asset's useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of 
each reporting period. 

1.22 Investment property 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under 
construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with the Ind AS16's requirement 
for cost model. 
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn 
from use and no further economic benefits expected from disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising an deé-recognition of the property is included in profit or loss in the period in which the 

property is derecognized. 

1.23 Inventories: 

Raw Materials: 
Raw Materials, construction materials and stores & spares are valued at lower of weighted average cost or net 
realizable value, Cost includes all charges in bringing the materials to the place of usage, excluding refundable duties 
and taxes. 

Work in Progress: 
Work-in-Progress is valued at the contracted rates less profit margin / estimates. 

1.24 Interest in Joint Operations 
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to 
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed 
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require 
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 

When a company undertakes its activities under joint operations, the company as a joint operator recognises in 
relation to its interest in a joint operation: 

1. its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly, 
2. its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities Incurred jointly, 
3. its revenue, including its share any revenue arising jointly. 
4. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred Jointly. 

The Company accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in 
accordance with the Ind AS applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. 
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1.25 Insurance claims 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that 
the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. 

1.26 Claims 
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under contingent liabilities. Claims made by 
the company are recognised as and when the same is approved by the respective authorities with whom the claim is 
lodged. 

1.27 Commitments 
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed as follows: 

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 
b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid 
c) Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and 
d) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the 

opinion of management. 
e) Other commitments related to sales/procurements made In the normal course of business are not disclosed to 

avoid excessive details. 
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Nocen forming part of Financial Statements 
2.2 Investments 

MAGBHUCON 

Aw at March 31, 2024 Aa at Mareh 31, 2023 
(2 tas Lakhin) 

Ys ant In Equity 
()) Subaidiarioa 
In Shorea of £10 cach, fully paid up (otherwise apevified) 

Madhucon Infra Limited 
Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited _ 
Namn Hotela Private 
TH (DK) Expreanwaya Limited 
Trichy Thanjavur Geprosewnye Limited 
Chhapra Hajipur Expreanwaya Limited 
Madhucon Toll Highways Limited 
Madhitean Mega Mall Private Li 
Madhican Heighta Private Lim! 
Darpeat-Krinbnngar ftxpreanways Limited, 
Ranchi Expresswaye Cimited 
PT. Madhucon Indonesia 

iF 
(ii) Othorm: 
In Shatea of € 10 cneh, fully paid up 

Madhueon Properties Limited 
In Shares of 210 each, fully pald up 

Rojnnngarain Gas Power Private Limited 
Cannra Bank Limited 

3] Other Investments * 
PT Madhucen Indonesia 

ural Tuiticorin Expreaways Limited 
aways Limiter 

Amount Wa.ot shares Amount No.of B 

1,22,20,27,045 91,652.03 1,22,20,27,045 
8,85,61,500 A,BSO15 a 

21,200 2,712.12 
= — ta.00 | 
1,00,000 10.00 
1,90,000 1,00 
30,000 3,00 
20,000 2.00 

- 2 = 2.00 
140 

14,0090 1.40 
7,60,000 a80,97 4,009,000 

750 0.21 750 

10,000 1.00 ip,000 

4,28,080 48.61 4,868,080 
4,160 Lae 4,100 

1,23,202,70 
3,856.15. 

2 
16.00 
10.00 
10,00 

3.00 
2.00 
2.00 
1.40 

140 
350,97 

0.21 

1.00 

48.81 
Lada 

573.18 
35.00 

Ot 
105,386.70 

10. 
WEICERE 

Ag nt March 31, 2034 ‘Ag ot March 31, 2023 
Cont Market Value Coat Market Value 

Aggregate market value of Quoted Inveatmenta ery 14a 
Aggregate mimotint of Unqueted Investinenta 1,09,285.27 = 139,895.94 

Total 3,09,286.79 1,39, 647.36 = 
*Q) The carrying valus of investments hold inch len unaccured Joana and advances given by the company to aubsidiarics. Certnin aubsidiagies have been incurring loanc 

worth waa fully or substantially eroded. Managomont of the company Ja of the view that carrying value of tho investmonta and loang and advances ore ceolizble at tho value 
stated in the beaks taking inte account the internal assessinent and intatives te be implemented to impreve the working of the eubsidaries in the medium to long term 

(i) The management , based an valuation reporia, has dotormined that the ‘Invesiment in Madhucon Infra Limited® hnd no valuo and deéided to written off this Inveatmenia over 
a period of 4 Mnancial years and has written off Re, 30,550.08 lokhs, being 28% of the Investment during the year ended, 

(i) The lang term unqunted investments in equity ahares of subsidiary eampanica na given 
Inan facilitates te the roapective invester companion, 

hereunder are pledged with Banks and Financial Insutudiene which have extended 

S.No Name of the Subsidiary No of 5 Hodge 
2023 -24 

1 Madurai Tulleorin Expresaways Limited 8, 85,01 ,200 §,B5,61,500 
2 Macihucan Infra Limited 56,44,77,705 56,44,77,705 
3 Nama Hoteln Private Limited, 138,411,000 1.34.9 1000 

2.3 Trade Receivables 
fein Lakhay 

Aa ot March 31, 2024 Ag ot March 31, 2023 

| en-Surrent. urrant Nan Current. Current | 
‘Un Gecured, Considered good 
“Trade Receivables 
‘from Related Parties 8,073.69 7,952.77 ry 
“From daint Ventures - | os 116.80 
"From Others - 
‘Government Companica =e => | = 2 1,832/41 = 303.66 
‘Other : 341,08. : = 

Total 8,073.69 4,327.78 7,553.77 414.15 

Particulars Guistanding for following periods frum due date of payment {FY 2023-24) 

Lass than'6 months| 6 montha «1 year 2 years 23 year More than 3 years Yotal 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables = considered good 
(1) Unilinputed Trade —which have 
increase in credit tisk - 120.02 016.00 188.00 O.Q80.77 5,073.68 

que Teadto . - ‘ = * 
(iv) Disputed Trale Recelvalites: . . : . - 
(e) Disputed Trade Receivables © which have algaificant increaue 
in credit rink . - = 4 F 

. : 1793 S600 156,00 &A8077 078.6 

Particulars nding for fatto dows from due date of payment (PY 2022-23) 

fb monihe «1 ye 1d years asd years More tan 3 years 

fi) Uasattspanted Tete rereivables = 0 A jpewrad z 

tii) Uniellappuntedd Trade Receivables « thiel have significant 
ineredee i ened rake 6.00 166.00 6,880.77 7as277 

Troe Receivables Ht impaired . . . . 
d Trade Rocelvahiles canaidered good = = : Z 

tv) Wixputed Trade Mteccivables = which have significant Increase 
in eeeddit risk = . . « = 

rs ab. = 156.00 - ‘BARU TF T5257 

2.4 Loane 
(@in takhel . 

Ae at March 31, 2034 ‘Ag at March 31, 3033 

Non-Current Current™ Non-Current Surront™ 

Unaeoured, oonaldered good 

‘Louna te Related Parties 10,112.67 = 13,518.41 - 
Total 10,112.67 = 42,918.41 - 

(ein Lakhs 
L Maat Infra & Ag at 

Marsh 31, 2024 
rine balance na on 01.04.2023 12,918.41 

id: Loon given during t the ye == = =e = 1457.44 
it (4.263,07) | 

in t] 10,112.67 
“During the year company haa written off loan given to subaidincy (madhucon infra limited) Ra. 4,263.07 Inkhs. na the subsidiary networth is won fully eroded and not 

64



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 7 ¥ 
MADHUCON 
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2.5 Qthar Financial As: 
{in Lakhs) 

Aa at Maroh 31, 2024 Aa at March 31, 2023 

Non-Current Curront® Mon-Curront Surrent® 
Unascured, considered good 
dank Depagite with more than 12 months maturity, 0) 2 663,64 = 

[_ Garnvet Money Depasite 8 0.44 181.87 Boa 
clention Money Deposit $323.43 2,562.56 2,001.64 1,376.47 

Beeurity Deposit FIRE! 173.86, iad 12.26 
Margin igney and other deposita with banka 1169.95 = 1,041.49 * 
‘Advancos- 
Related Marthe THa5e Za0e 25 THE TT 2,806.25 
Others: 
Performance Gaurantee 6,787.4 - AS7S.7o - 
Advances for OTS 2219.0 - 173.00, - 
FT Madhucen Briwijaya Power EA Bee = 75 

| NINE infer inveatinent Private Limited = HOA - 

Madhuenn Sugar and Power Industries Ltd * 200.00 5 
Retention money = 1.50 : 
‘Withheld = x Ls 

Total 47,322.13 5,754.65 9,579.97 

2.6 Deferred Tan Aaaet / (Liability) (net) 
(ein Lakhal 

Ax ot Amat 
March 31,2024 | Murch 31, 3033 

Doferred Tox Anact 

_ Bpening Baliney ASTO.05 | 2,568.9 
During the year 1,003,51 2,007.58 

Total 6,579.56 9,876.0) 

2.7 Other Nom-Current Assota 
(fm Lakhs 

As at March 31, 2024 An at March 31, 2023 

Non-Current Current* Non-Current Current 
Advance (0 suppliers and #ub-contractors 11,338.63 9,038.60 ak 
Interest Accrucd on Deposits TA9 : : 
Advance to eluted Purtica 1,967,59 - = 

MAT Credit 343.04 * . 
Rental Deposits = 244 *. 15.92 

Total 15,655.85 $5,091.10 123,539.80 11,338.95 

B Inventorice 
(£m Lakha) 

Agat Ag at 
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2024 

“Row Materials 55.05 210.24 
Tatal 86.08 210,23 

2,9 Trade Receivables 

*Raw Maoteriala ore ¥alucd af lower af Weighted ayernge coat of het realivable value 

(Si Lalla 
Am at Ag AL 

March 91, 3924 Mareh 31, 2023 

[Un Seowred, Considered good 
Trade Revelvables 
From Related Parties 874.14 - 
From Joint Ventures 1,279.74 110.49 

From Others - 
Government Camparigs 1832.8 303.66 
Others 341.0) = 

Tatal 4,327.7; 414.15 

Particulars Guisianding fur folluwing periods from due date uf payment (EA 2023-24) 

Less than & manths| & manthe -L year 1-2 years 2-3 pears Mure than J years Total 

Trade reveivalles = considered good 4770.85 447,54 400,33 m = 497,70 
inwrense Min eredit tisk fe : . . . 2 
{iit} Unctisputed radu Roceivables = credit impaired » = - - - . 
die) Al Trade Rocvivablia=considerid good - - . : = 

iv) Disputed Trade Receivables = which have significant liereasie 
ink credit else - r] 5 : : z 

3,770.95 147.51 aut. = = 4,327.74 

Particulars Dulstanding for fullawlag jerhads (rain due date of payment (FY 2022-23) 

Less than @oionihs| 4 wanths -1 year 1-2 years 24 yearn More than 3 years Total 

fi) Undispanal Trade secelvables - cunshdured quod 414,15 - - = = 418.15 
fi) Windisputed Trade Heewivables - which have wipnulicart 
increase in credit rik * . ' F - . 

(iti) Undisputed ‘rade Kteceivables = credit impaited : - - - - - 
{iv} Dispuiwd ‘Trade Heculvablon-considuced guod * - . : . 

0} Disputed Trade Receivables = which have significant incrvass! 
Ww credit risk - - . : = % 

= 414.15 = = = - EFERCY 

2.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
{&in Latha) 

ry As at 
March 31, 2024 | Murch 31, 2023 

Cash on hand 0.98 4.68 

Balances with Banke 
in Current Accourla $86.93 409,03 

Figed Deponlt Recaipta S034 53.17 
Other Dank Balances 
lieperitive Accounts 10.83 = 
Unpaid Dividend Aceaurita 5.47 6.82 

‘atal B5d.99 ATA AL 
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2.11 Other Financial An 

= Fy = 7 
1A! i HUG: 

(Pin fakhn) 
Anat An at 

March 32, 2023 
antinn Money Dapanit 2,502.56 E3767, 

curity Deport I75. 86 312.26 
dvancen= 

Heinted Parties BANGS 2 so025 
‘Othai 
NK infra Investment Prloate Limited 5.04 Fat 
Wadhu ugar and Power Induntrion Lid 300.00 = 
Retention mency. Lao = 
withherd BHa.50 
Earneel Money Deposlis Osha Aaa 

‘Total 5,764.66 a,0a3.97 

2.22 Currant Tax Assot(Net) 
(tin Lakhn) 

Ae aL 
March 31, 2024 

THe Pecewubles 
rT [__oarrinpe BT. 

[et 6,184.15 

Bid Other Current Assets 
(lin Lakh 

Aw at As at =H 
March 31,2024 | March 31, 32027. 

Rental Deposit AA 16,92 
ACWAn Ge te SUppllArA, wub-ranructora and athers 0,034.60 1 73.3,.04 

Total 5,041.16 44,338,986 

asda Eqilty Share Capital 
{Sir Lakh 

Number of Aa at Number of Aa al 
Shares March 31, 2024 Shares Merch 32, 2020 

a a aad 
quity Bhares ots i cael 30,00,00,000 3,099.00 39,00,00,000 4,000.00 

ig Peeferenor Shares, af ® 190 cagh 20.00,00,000 3,000.00 720.00,00, 000) Ey 200.00 
8,000,00 8,000.00 

ae Spiaannad and Called up Capital 
auily Shares of ffi coch 2,92,68,090 742,69 | 292,08 540 743.60 
ly pald up Capital z 
qully Shares of F& 1 enh 737 24,940 737,95 7,704,940 737.95 
aa: Ferfciied Bharen Ammuarit ariginally pote wpe 2.97, 2400 237 207.280 2.347 
Total 740.39 740,33 

a} Reconcilintian of tha Number of Equity Shares Gutetanding ut boginning and at and of the your 
{ein Lnkisn) 

As at Maroh 31, 2023 
How it No.of Gharce Amount 

5 737, 94,540. a5 EACLE) 73785 
da) Shares allonad du the yeor = = . 5 

alnnee at the one ae the yoar FExAd 7,17, 04,040) Fa7,c8- 
Bj Tarma/ Fi 
The Company has abe ane clon of paid-up cquity shores having par valuc of £1 per aharo. Each eharcholder of cquity share im cniiiled to one vole per aherc. The Company 
deeinree and paye dividend in Indian Rupees anly. 
In the avent af liquidation of the Campony, the haldora af equity aharea will be entitled to receive remaining am 
The distribution will be in prepert 1 te the number ef equity shares held ky the alierchalders. 

¢) Details of sharon hold by sharcholder holding more than 5% 

atthe Cempany, after distribution of all preferential nmaunta, 

Ae al March 31, 2624 As &t Mareh 31, 2033 
Name of tha Sharshaldar Rumibar af RAI") o orahare holding | NHMber of aharen Te of alae 

held holding 
1) Sri Nama Nageaware Raa. i ae La 107,12, 282 aA, 

[317s Madhucon Gunite Limited cae a0 10.50 av.d8,000 10.90 
Lt Sr Sani Shlenemii 5s GYPELASLL) $35 
a) 

hares held by prom 
*y Change during ihe 

SNe Pisuviter name Na, af Shares year 

1 Mame Magerwar Rac 1.07,32,262 14.58% . 
z [ecthainh 2.802 ona%, ‘ 
a Krisiinalah Naw 162,347 1.63% - 
4 Kiniadewt Nama 11,064,028 Lt - 
5 ama Chinmames 67,58,000 a4 - 
6 Prithyiteja Mama 10.51.50 142% : 
; Bhavyaleis Mama 667,300 ed 
a Bhuvaneewart Meme 67,300 o.00% . 
* bs Kadina ‘w31,500 Lat z 
in Name 35.00.0001 B.A9% - 
n Tarun Nama 30.76.2349 aah = 
1z ama Heman 11,06.928 1.50%, - 
13 oma Wtirshike 20,88,999 An, F 

Any Other (apecity 
4 sMauttue eailos Lisle! 14% - 
15 Paria 1 invita: Linrsitinad 49a : 
ie aPC Infra Investinente Timber 98%, = 

Total 56.06%) : 

2.15 Other Equity 
(in tavtehay, 

Au at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
ja) Sequsities Premium 20,015.07 39,333.07 

(Ee) General Reserve 
Openin; ee $,061.53 5,061.83 

afer (ran) SUOMI Io SUATeeNt OF PLOnn and Lana = = 
Cinring Bninnce Seana 8,061,438 081.83 

{e] Surpius in Gtntement of Profit and Loss 
cy ite JA,64 

Add: Profit far the Yenr (1,028.94) 
ion Movement = = 

reprintarin = 
Proposed Dividend = « 
Tividand Disirihution Tax = = 
Fransfer to General Reserve = = 
Glosing Walanes 17/519.97 16,G46.51 

ig] Gthar Camponants of Bquity 
femensit ever manny [ana Ties 
Expected eredi tose on fair valuevion tC inenatat aosnie (311,70) (3.1.70) 
Increasc/(Geereaac} in borrowing coai pursunni te applicalion of Effective Inicreat rate (140.02) (140.02) 

gneihod 

Total ieee oli) 01,700.68 ail bfa sty 

+ 
48] i 
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2.18 Trodo Payables 
(tin Latehiel 

Aa at Mareh 31, 2024 Aw ot March 31, 2033. 

Non-Current Current * Non-Current Surrant * 
For Supplies and Services 3,768.39 32,800.16 650.524 35,744.13 
fo) Total outstanding duca of micro enterpriges und atmall TEE turned 

fb) Total outstanding duce of creditera other than microcntes ane rpriacn 
Retuntion Monsy Dopoaslte 3,154.92 1,993.92 2,981.90 BREESE 

[-—istetal nas va Me. ctiee. ob nto entern (ise ang. seh Sfterrisss, ond 
dues of creditors other then inicroenterpriges dnd small enterprises | 

Sie 1189.52 12,409.52 3,151,840 GA4ls.07 
io} Total outstanding dues of micro citerprisea ond small enterrises, and 
bb) Total etitstirding duce of creditors other than microcnterpriava und amull enterprises, 

Total 8,002.79 36,723.60 7,214,326 45,819.08 
The Company has written back Trad: es amounting 1 Ra, S543, 15% lakh for the Ys I LO 

Uulstanding for tering periods from due date of payment (I-¥ 2023-24) 
Particulars 

Lees than I year 1-2 years 2 years Maire (haat 3 yest 

fy MEME : - F - : 
tit) Orders 205.15 Lane ie 2eul ae UND PY 
(Hi) Disjidted dies MSMIT . . . . 
fiv}Dieputed dive « Gthore : F ‘ 2 

BORE Lab 16 2 h01a8 4,092.79 

Guistanding for fallowlng perleds (rom due date of payment FEH 
Tarte lare Tam than 1 year 1 years Bb years More than 3 yearn "Foul 

fay BS . : : 5 Fs 
dH) Others, 24 Fuse LP7PAS 42ion) 721 de 
(iu) inp tuvn-NINE : : : : 
(i#)Dieputed ducw - C1 - - - a 

48a ULM 1777.08 236K 7,214 3h 

2.17 Other Financlal Liabiliudes 

(Sin Lakha| 

Au ot March 31, 2024 Aw at March 31, 2033 

Non-Current Current * Kon-Current Currant * 

Interest Acerucd and due on Borrowings = 626.72 = 1965.45 
Unpaid Dividend Accounta a 3.74 = rar 
Payable to Related Purtica = = . ri 
‘ther Payables - 
“Advance againal Arbitration award 7,604 04 5 

Lleol ee = ETT = 
uly. = 589, = 

Works Contract Tax, Central Sales Tax, ¥AT = 916.0 = 
Dividend Tax = 139.0. = 
Bai, PF = 70.40 = 
Expenses Payable = 59,99 = 
Dircetar Remuneration = 17.0: z ji 

ni huron Gra, ed. = ZA = PRIreis 
Shareholders - 1,767.85 Fy FARO 
Employees 50.07 = 7122 ale = 

Total 56.97 11,815.26 712 13,566,78 

* efor Note No 2.22 for Other Current Financial Linbiliticn 

2.18 Provisions 

Provinion for Employns Da: 

Granuity 
Compensated absences 

Total 

2.19 Other Non-Ciirrent Liabllitica 

{8 in Lakhs) 

Aa at March 31, 2024 Au at March 31, 2023 

Non-Current ‘Current * Non-Current Current * 
Mobilization Advance 3,749.32 110.33 945.24 3,116.81 

: Liza : : 406.96 
Material Advance 8.72 : 8.72 = 
Revenue Received ii advance a 185.40 3 245,30 
Advuncea from Related Parties : Psi 5 25,004.95 2 31,083, 
Other Linbllities - Fines & Panaltiea $15.58 7m a ar 
‘Other Linbilitles - Retention 1,496.42 = 5 + 
Other Linbilities - Royatry _ = ae ee = ee | | =F = 2 - 

T. Withheld = = - 
Other Liubilities - Withheld 6 733. 02 = = - 

1 13,903.68 pS4.01 34,713,065 

2.20 Dorrowings 
(tii Lakhs 

An ot Ag at 
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2033 

Loans repayable on demand 
Secured: . 
Fram Batis 93,369.17 98,830.25 
Current maturities for Long term debt (NBFC} 3,370.51 4,508.69 

Total 35,739.68 53,347.94 

BRE) Equipment Finance Limited (NBFC) fled tw “NCLT* for resteradon of application of Corporate Insolvency Resoludion process (CRIFY against the Company, hich hua been 
admitted vide its erder dated 08, 12.23. 

Subsequently, “the Company” filed an appeal with NCLAT and the impugned order dated 08.12.2023 of NCLT was set aside and remanded back to the NCLT for freah review vitie 

order duted 12.12.2023, The financial creditor and the Company have initiated the process ef settlement on 18.01.2024 by restructuring the existing loan and mubmitted a joint 

meme before “The Hon'ble Notional Company Law Tribunul® (NCLT) an 05.02.2024. 

SREL Equipment Finunee Limited how approved fur Reatructuring of exiating loan dues fur o final actilement of Ra. 4,952.00 Lukha, vide ity letter duted 02.02.2024. 

Tho SREL Equipment inance Limited fled withdrawal memo on 28.03 2024accking [eave of thin *NCLT* te withdraw the campuny petition, NCLT by an order dated 28,03,2024 
allowed the company petition stands disposed of ax withdrawn, 
Cosh Gredit/Overdraft facilities availed from banke are secured by! 

o) Piral pari-puaau hypothecation cliurge te ull working capital Lanka in Multiple gf Arrange ot all ond future 
current aeagia 

b) Second pari-pasau on all the xed assets of the Company both present and future, 
* Secured by hypothecation of Assets purchased on finance 
Outstanding balances as on March 31, 2024 

67



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

Notes part af Fi Bt 
(Sint Lakh) 

Nama of the Manik iui ae rey 

ICICI Bank = —— 20,140.15 22,732.65 
State Bank of India® < 4,214.38 
Punjob National Bank ee 5.24120 241,20 

Kotak Mahindra Bank 2,036.26 2,036.26. 
IDBI Bank * . 5,627.80 
Gant of Indin® = 2,661.70 

AXIS Bank** - 73,62 

Canara Bank 5,951.56 5,051.56 

Total 93,369.17 438, 839,35 
Campany has defaulted in repayment of dues to the banks on at 31st March 2024 and oll the outstanding Joany wero cloanified ax NPA by the banka. The company hog not 
provided the interest for the your ended Aint March 2024 an ita lnann. 
* During the year, balances incase of some banks were settled through OTS, 
“* In case of axle bonk, the loan hos been settled and Credit Limite have been renewed. 

Betaila of delay in repayment of prinelpal and interest to Banka and Pinancial Institutions a6 on March 31, 2024 

Principal Int it 
Name of the Bank / Finanolal Inatitution (ein Lakhs) Pariod of dolny [tin Lain Perlod of dolay 

Roiak Mahindra Bank 2,036.96 2665 days 7 7 
Punjab National Bank 4,091.86 1976 daya 249.40 1976 dayo 
1CIe! Book 16,032,485 2433 doy 4,107.30 2453 days 
Canara Bank S758 5h LRA2 days 194.00 LAK? dyn 

Since the company hoe T in repay at nfbornvings in banks whear were declared ox NPAs by banka. Hence entire borrewings are shown in Current Liabilities 

3.91 Trade Payablea 
(itt Lakhs) 

Ag at As at 
Maroh 31, 3034 March 21, 3033 

Por dupplics and Bervicea 22,890.16 35,794.18 
[a] Toto! otitatanding dics of miere enterprises and amall enterrises, and 7 
{bj ‘Total outstanding dica of creditara other than oe enlerpriaed and amall enterprises, 
Retention Money Deporite 1,993.92 3355.22 
(9) Total auintending duca of micro enterprises and amall cnterriaca, and 

{b) Total outstanding dues of creditora other then micro enterprises and amall enterprises 
Others 12,439.52 6415.02 

(aj Total outstanding dues of miere enterprises and small enterrises, and 
(is) Total outstanding dues of ereditara other than 1 erprinnd and small enterprises. 
Total 36,723.60 $5,514.38 

‘Ouitktanding far tiods fram dua date of payment (FY Had2 
Farirulars Leas than 1 year 42 Tre 2a} yeara More than 3 yra Total 

i) MeME Ba 7a? 19132 - M71 
(i) Others 1988072 3.82.10 18a 07 11,073.01 36.518.90 
(ili) Disputed dues-MSME 
{iv}Cleputed cuor - Cihers A . 

US APL AS 300,87 1979.4 11,072.01 34,735. 

Peadcuiare Outstanding ine inlinwing perinds trem due date ef payment (FY 202272!) 
Lose than | year 1-2 yaare 23 years Aiore than 3 years Total 

ty Maan - A = 
(1) Onhere Tes? 18 10,6. 02 4qnan 45,5148 
(11) Disputed duea-MeRI - - 
(UY DHsptited dies . Cher E: 3 

13,647.08 10,506.02 4.10240 45,514.38 

2.22 Other Finnncial Linbilitics 
dts Lakhs) & 

Al 

Interert Arcrund snc. on Borrowings 
Unpaid Dividond Accounts 
Other Payables- - - 
‘Advance Againat Arbitration award 4,604.04 4,004.64 
Employees 981.99 1,050.36 
Royalty - 589.35 644.05 
Works Coniraci Tax, Contrnl Sains Tax, VAT 416.01 606.79 
Dividend Tox 130.93 = 110.93 
ESI, PF 7To.30 om4B 
Expenat bale: 39,90 45,85 
Director Remuneration 17.05 5.12 
Modhucan Granites Limited 2,982.28 

areholders 3,158.04 
Total 13,955.71 

*NHAl challanged the award in Hanarable High Court againat which the company submitted the bank gurantee and recovered award amount In port an advance 

2.29 Other Currant Linhilitios 
(tin Lakha 

Ag at As at 
M a Maroh 31, 3033 

Revenue Keecived in advance 185,80 245.30 
Mobilizntion Advance 110.33 a\i6.8l 
Machinery Advance * 306.96 

vances cL Parties 25,009.33, 3,043,908 
Total 25,390.45. 34,713,056 

2.24 Proviniane 
(tin Latch 

(An at Aa at 
March 31, 3024 Mareh 31, 2033 

Provision for Employee Benefita 
Gratuity = - 64.80] 69.94 
Compensated abroncon 14.79 14,78 
Other Provisions 

Provision far Bad Debits 4,128.46 4,128.46 
Provision for Others- 

A70.63 BTO,63 
168.05 1640S 

5,245.82 | 646.16 

2.25 Currant Tax Linbilitios (Not) 
(tin Loki 

As at Aa at 
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

TOS Payable 2,303.44 Lars 

Total 2,303.44 1,377.18 
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2.26 Revenue from Operations 

{ in Lakhs) 
mided Year ended 

mi Marsh 31, 2023 
Income from Conteoeis and Services 94,508.82 BG.338.09 
Other Operating Incoma- 

Stipply of Materiala and fo Sub Contractors AGB7S 1498.47, 
Sule of Scrap and Aguregate 146,75, 152.68 
Income Tax Refund : 2,090.31 | 

Total $5,124.33 90,080.64 

3.27 Other Income 

Yonr ended Yoar ended 
Mareh 31, 2024 Match 31, 2023 

Interest Income S675 
Et REE 55.83 

Benefit an OTS 1 x 
Baluncea Write Boel: 1 11,213.77 
Miscellaneous Income “ EREEEE 

Total 25,442.41 13,404, 78 

2,28 Cost of Materials Consumed and Work Expen: 
{tin Lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Construction Materiala, Stores and spares 
Opening Steck 210.23 ELFEE 

rch ca 17,422.89 14,511.58 

Leas : Closing Stack 55,00 210.24 
Total Consumption 17,577.97 14,683.78 

Work Expenngn 4,256,045 64,256.04 63,227.24 63,297.94 

Tatal 61,634.01 77,911.03 

2.29 Employee Benefits Expense 
(Sin Lakhs 

Year ended Your onded 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Ealuriew A Wages and Bonus 1664.60 1,732.12 | 
Contribution to provident and other funda 30.57 12.36 
Stail Welfare Expenses 178.86 194.92 

Total 1,874.02 1830.41 

2,30 Finance Cont 

Mareh 31, 2024 Mi 

(Sin Lakh 
Your andad Year ended 

larch 31, 2033 

Interest Expe: 724.03 202.97, 
Total 724.02 202.57 

2.31 Other Itxpenses 
{fin Lakhs) 

Year ended Year anded 
ind Margh 31, 2023 

Rent 312.89 396.66 
Rates & Taxes 108.50 75.77 

‘Travelling Expenses 144.02 117.26 | 
5 247,49 119.40, 

Linstirenee Charme Abit 172.32 
Conaultancy charges 627,83 BBB 
Amounts written Of 4,057.03 21,976,86 
Investment Written Off 30,550. = 

Administrative Expenses: 597.08 SUL12 

Foreign Exchange Loss * 443.61 
Donati 14,48 = 
Bank Guarantee Commission 241.01 364,48 
Toul 37,553.88 24,411.64 
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2.32 Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 

=. = 
al 

i=] zr, i fe) G4
 

z 

terms related disputes, pending before various courts in India 
as well as arbitratian proceedings. It is not possible to make a 
fair assessment of the likely financial impact of these pending 
disputes / litigations until the cases are decided by the 
appropriate authorities 

ascertainable 

(2 in Lakhs) 

S.No | Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

1 Bank Guarantees** 22,177.40 24,105.61 

Disputed Sales Tax (on appeal) - 637.42 

Entry Tax 8.85 8.85 

4 | Service Tax “4,655.75 4,655.75 

5 Provident Fund 1,083.64 1,083.64 

6 | Work Contract Tax 396.86 Fi 

7 | Interest on TDS paid 542.99 - 

8 Arbitration award claim ES = 6,792.88 - 

9 The Company isa party to legal suits on construction contract | Amount not Amount not 
ascertainable 

“Includes issued on behalf of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 

2.33 Employee benefits 

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("the Gratuity Plan") covering eligible 
employees of Madhucon. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of 
employment with the Company. 
Liabilities with regard to these defined benefit plan are determined by actuarial valuation, performed by an external 
actuary, al each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. These defined benefit plans expose the 

9,914.55 

Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market risk. 

Provident Fund: Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the 
eligible employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified 
percentage of the covered employee's salary. 

2.34 Remuneration to auditors: 

10,157.85 

(2 in Lakhs) 

S.No Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 

1 Statutory Audit Fee 8.00) 8.00 
2 Tax Audit Fee 2.00 2.00 

3 GST Audit Fee 3.00 3.00 

2.35 Segment Reporting: 

The Company's operations predominantly consist of construction/project activities. Hence there are no reportable 
segments under Ind AS 108. 
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2.36 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 115 Construction contracts 

(? in Lakhs) 

Parealars 2023-24 2022-23 
Contract revenue recognized 94,508.82 BG 338.99 

Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognized profits (less recognized 6,22,045.77 5,61,627.75 
losses) up to the reporting date for Contracts in progress 

Amount of advances received for contracts in progress 2,743.33 2,975,12 

Amount of retention money for contracts in progress 3,211.64 154.24 

Gross amount due from customers for contracts in progress 2,299.23 414.15 

2.37 Confirmation of balances as at 31* March 2024 could be obtained only for some of the Trade Payables, Trade 
Receivables and various advances, loans and borrowings. Further, in view of the management no material 
adjustments would be required in the Books of Account upon receipt of these confirmations. 

2.38 Earnings per Share: 
(2 in Lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, March 31, 

2024 2023 
Net Profit after tax available for equity shareholders (1,026.94) 446.11 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 7,37 ,94,940 7,37 94,940 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 7,37,94,940 7,37,94,940 

Face Value per Share (°) 1.00 1.00 
Basic and Diluted EPS * (") (1.39) 0.60 

‘The Company has no dilutive instruments. As such Diluted Earnings per share equals to Basic Earnings per 
share. 

2.39 Related Party Transactions: 

|, Following are the list of related parties 

a) Madhucon Tall Highways Ltd 

b) TN (DK) Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

¢) Trichy-Tanjavur Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

d) Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

S.No. Particulars 

Subsidiaries 

1) Madhucen Infra Limited [Incudes Subsidiaries (a to i}, mentioned below] 
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é) Ranchi Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

f) Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Limited (audited by others) 

g) Rajauli-Bakthiyapur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

h) Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

i) PT Madhucon Indonesia (unaudited) 

2) Madurai-Tuticorin Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

3) Madhucon Mega mall Pvt Ltd 

4) Nama Hotels Pvt Ltd 

5) Madhucon Heights Pvt Ltd 

(I) Related party transactions during the year as follows 

(= in Lakhs) 
2023-24 2022-23 

Revenue from Contracts and Services 

Step-down subsidiaries 9,243.98 2,659.68 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures _ . 7 __ 2,871.94 ~ 642.23 

Remuneration 

Key Management Personnel 151.87 134,53 

Director Sitting Fee _ | 2.60 1.75 

Loans/Advances Given 

Subsidiaries (2,789.46) (6,740.22) 

Step-down subsidiaries 4194.97 957.69 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures OO to (9.14) | 2544.41 

Loans/Advances Received 

Subsidiaries . r 530.97 

Step-down subsidiaries (1,545.47) 1,476.78 

Retention Money 

Step-down subsidiaries 462.17 132.98 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures _ 871.45 35.21 

UD} Related Party balances outstanding at the end of the year as follows 

(2 in Lakhs) 
2023-24 2022-23 

Trade Receivables 

Step-down subsidiaries 8,947.84 7,952.77 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 4,279.74 110.49 

Outstanding Receivables 

Subsidiaries en 13,352.25 | 16,146.21. 
Step-down subsidiaries 2,330.55 2,256,50 

Jointly Contralled/entities and ventures 2,833.83 = 
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Key Management Personnel » 64.78 

Outstanding Payables 

Subsidiaries - 4.50 

Step-down subsidiaries 9,456.74 15,786.78 
Bank Guarantees 

Step-down subsidiaries 4,335.00 4,335.00 
Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 5,579.55 5,822.85 

2.40 Some of the Bank Accounts at closed projects which are in dormant and have not been reconciled due to non- 
availability of statements. 

2.41 Some of the entries as per 26AS not reflected in books of accounts and the same is under reconciliation with books 
of account. 

2.42 Certain accounts are pending from long times which are not recoverable/payable as per limitation Act, passed 
necessary entries in books of account. 

2.43 A portion of the balance receivable fram Madhucen Infra Limited (subsidiary company) has been written off in the 

books of account based on the internal assessment. 

2.45 Going Concern 
In Preparing the financial statements the Board of Directors have considered the operations of the Company 88 going 
concern notwithstanding that the Company incurred a net loss of Rs.979.59 Lakhs (Previous Year a net Profit Rs.489.21) 

Lakhs for the financial year ended 31st march 2024, and as at that date, the Company is in net current liabilities position 

of Rs, 92,331.50 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1, 29,223.44 Lakhs) as at 31st March 2024, and has defaulted in payments of 

dues to Banks. However, the management believes the use of going concern assumption on the preparation of the 

financial statements of the company is still appropriate in view of closing some of the liabilities on OTS basis and 

implementation of OTS agreements already entered into in case af some banks, and its continuing discussions with its 

other lenders to obtain approval for and an appropriate debt resolution plan and also, that the company will continue to be 

in operation in the foreseeable future. 

2.46 Additional Regulatory Information 

i) Title Deeds of all immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

ii) The Company is not in possession of any Investment property. 

iii) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

iv) No loans and advances were granted to promoters, directors, KMPs 

v) There is no capital work-in-progress 

vi) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company for halding any benami property under the 

Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

vii) The company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets but those borrowings have been 
declared as NPAs by the banks. Borrowings from some of the Banks were settled on OTS. 

vili) The company was not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution. 

ix) The company did not enter into any transactions with struck off companies. 
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x) There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period 

) 
oa

 3 <
a] 

xi) The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, 

xii) There are no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

xili) Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium: 

(A) The company didn't advance or lend or invest funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies),including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall 
(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(il) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
(B) The company didn't receive any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), Including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall 
(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

xvl) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

xiv) Ratios 

$l 

no Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st March | 31st March | Variance 
2024 2023 

1 | Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.219 0.162 35% 
2 | Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 2.575 2.942 12% 

3 | Debt Service Coverage | Earnings available for Debt Service 1.576 0.595 165% 
Ratio debt service 

4 | Return on Equity Nat Profits after taxes Average Shareholder’s (0.019) 0.008 331% 
(ROE) Equity 

5 | Trade receivables Revenue Average Trade 11.906 11.696 2% 
turnover ratio Receivable 

6 | Trade payables Purchases of services Average Trade Payables 2.105 1.603 31% 
turnover ratio and other expenses 

7 | Net capital turnover Revenue Working Capital (1.030) (0.697) 48% 
ratio 

8 | Inventory Turnover Revenue Average Inventory 717.02 303.986 136% 
Ratio 

9 | Net profit ratio Net Profit Revenue (0,011) 0,005 318% 

10 | Return on capital Earnings before interest Capital Employed (0.023) (0.023) 4% 
employed (ROCE) and taxes 
Return on 

Investment(ROl) 
11. | Unquoted Income generated from Time weighted average NIL NIL | There 

investments investments was no 

income 

from the 

investmen 
ts 

12 | Quoted Income generated from Time weighted average NIL NIL | There 
investments investments was no 

income 

from the 
investmen 
ts 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Comments: 

Current Ratio: 

Current Ratio is improved due to come down of Current Liabilities due to settlament/ payment of some of the liabilities 

and also slight increase in the Current Assets, 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio: 

Significant improvement in the ratio due to increase in the revenue from operations and reduction in the liabilities by 
clearing long pending dues. 

Return on Equity Ratio: 

Reduction in the Return on Equity Ratio due to net loss incurred by the company during the current financial year. 

Trade payables turnover ratio: 

Improvernent in the Ratio due to reduction in the Trade Payables by clearing the Trade creditor's dues. 

Net capital turnover ratio: 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio is improved due to increase in the Sales turnaver and reduction in liabilities by clearing the 
dues. 

Inventory turnover ratio: 

Inventory Turnover Ratio is increased as result of better utilization of materials and effective management policies. 

Net profit ratio: 

Net profit Turnover Ratio is negative due to incurring of net loss by the campany during the year 

Undisclosed Income 

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in 

the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

xvi) Corporate Social Responsibility 

Since the company Is incurring losses in current year and consecutively for preceding 2 financial years CSR is not 

applicable 

xvii) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 
The company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year 

2.47 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/re-classified to conform to the figures of the current year. 

In terms of our report attached 

For F.Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 0072578 

A. Krishna Rao N. Seethaiah Mohammad Shafi J, Samba siva Rao 
Partner Managing Director Jt Managing Director Director (F & A) 
Membership Number 020085 DIN-00784491 DIN-07178265 DIN: 09526475 

UDIN: 24020085BKAUHM9560 

Place: Hyderabad K. Venkateswarlu D, Malla Reddy 
Date: May 18, 2024 Director cum CFO Company Secretary 

DIN-09713108 ACS: 9559 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of 
M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

1. Qualified opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of MADHUCON 

PROJECTS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as 'the Holding Company’), its subsidiaries (the Holding 

Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “The Group") which comprise the Consolidated 

Balance Sheet as at 31°! March,2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including the 

statement of other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the Consolidated 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘Consolidated Ind AS financial statements’). 

The Consolidated Financial statements includes the following entities 

Subsidiaries 

1) Madhucon Infra Limited [Which includes its Subsidiaries (i to ix), 
mentioned below] 

2) Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited (audited by other auditors) 

3) Madhucon Mega mall Pvt Ltd 

4) Nama Hotels Pvt Ltd 

5) Madhucon Heights Pvt Ltd 

Subsidiaries of Madhucon Infra limited 

i. Madhucon Toll Highways Ltd 

ii. TN (DK) Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

iil. Trichy-Tanjavur Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

iv. Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

v. Ranchi Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

vi. Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Limited (audited by others) 

vii. Rajauli -Bakthiyapur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

vil, Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

PT Madhucon Indonesia (unaudited) x
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for 

the possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the 

aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2013('the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated 

state of affairs of “The Group", as at 31% March,2024, Its consolidated loss and consolidated total 

comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on 

that date. 

2. Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements of "the Group” in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements of "the Group” 
section of our report. We are independent of “the Group" in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements of “the Group" under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
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with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us in 
terms of the report referred to in sub-paragraph A & B of the Basis for Qualified opinion and audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph a & b of 
other matters paragraph section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
qualified audit opinion on the financial statements of "the Group" 

We draw your attention to the following paragraphs reproduced below, included in the audit report on 
the financial statements of the Holding company and the subsidiaries audited by us. 

A. In case of the “Holding Company”, matters as reported in Basis of Qualified Opinion 
on the Standalone Financial Statements, are reproduced below: 

i. We refer to the carrying value of Equity Investments of Rs 1,03,662.52 lakhs held in 

subsidiaries/other companies and other investments of Rs 5624.18 lakhs held in 
subsidiaries/other companies, some of these have been incurring losses and in case of some of 
the subsidiaries, net worth was fully or substantially eroded / Going Concern is affected. We are 
unable to comment upon the carrying value of investments and other investments whether any 
provision for impairment in the value of Equity Investments and other investments is required; the 
effect of same upon the profitability could not be ascertained in the absence of fair valuation. 

In the case of Madhucon Infra Limited, a subsidiary, the management basing on the valuation 
Reports on “Investment in Madhucon Infra Limited" concluded that the value of this Investment is 
Nil and has written off an amount of Rs. 30,550.68 Lakhs being 25% of the Investment held, 
instead of writing off complete value of investment, For the balance 75% of the Investment no 
provision for impairment is made in the books of account as at 31st March, 2024. 

However, In the books of Madhucon Infra Limited, the share capital of Madhucon Projects Limited 
is continued to be shown at original value of Investment and being consolidated. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the basis of such partial write 
off. 

ii."The Company “has written off loan given to Madhucon Infra Limited a subsidiary amounting to 
Nil/Rs.4,263.07 Lakhs for the quarter ended/ Year ended 31St March, 2024 respectively, being 
partial amount of loan, instead of writing off the total outstanding of Rs.12,918.41 lakhs. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the basis of such partial write 
off. 

iii. "The company has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial institutions amounting to 
Rs 33,369.17 lakhs and Rs 3,370.51 lakhs respectively as per books of account and the same 
were classified as NPA by the lenders. Interest on these loans have not been provided for the FY 
2018-19 to FY 2023-24. Dues in case of some banks were settled through “One time settlement" 
and an amount of Rs. 12,503.97 Lakhs, being the benefit of OTS, has bean accounted during the 
quarter ended 31st March, 2024. 

Further, in case of other banks excapt in case of Canara bank, OTS agreements have been 
entered. Balance confirmation in respect of the loan from Canara Bank has not been obtained. 

iv."The Company “has written back Trade Payables amounting to Rs. 8,103.63 Lakhs and 
Rs.9,542.19 lakhs for the quarter ended 31St March, 2024 and for the Year ended 31St March, 
2024 respectively. 

v."The Company “has written back Other Payables (including Interest payable) amounting to Rs 
1,921.36 lakhs and Rs 2,089.20 lakhs for the quarter ended 31St March, 2024 and for the Year 

ended 31St March, 2024 respectively. 

vi. "The Company" has written off advances to Other Parties amounting to Nil/Rs. 393.95 Lakhs for 
the quarter ended/ Year ended 31St March, 2024. 

vii. The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 3.73 Lakhs 
relating to Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from unpaid dividend account to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

viii. Undisputed Statutory dues in case of following are outstanding: 
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S.No Name of the Status Nature of Due Period Rs, 

in Lakhs 

1 The Income Tax Act, 1961 | Dividend Distribution Tax 2011-12 ta 2016-17 139.93 

& Interest on it 

2 The Employees Provident Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 70.24 

funds and Miscellaneous 

provision act 1952 

3 Works Contract Tax Works Contract Tax 2014-15 to 2017-18 396.86 

ix. In view of losses incurred by “The company” and in the absence of prior approval from the lender 
banks and financial Institutions, managerial remuneration of Rs. 138.68 Lakhs paid by the 
company during the year is in excess of the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule 
V of Companies Act,2013. 

x.The Turnover, Output GST and Input GST credits as per the books of account are subject te 
reconciliation with the GST returns filed. 

xi. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 1st April 2023 to 31st March 2024. 

xii. 

xiii, 

xi <=
 

XV. 

xvi. 

xvii, 

The Company has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable properties (lands) 
held. 

SREI Equipment Finance Limited filed to “NCLT” for restoration of application of Corporate 
Insolvency Resolution process (CRIP) against "The Company”, which has been admitted vide its 
order dated 08.12.23. 

Subsequently, “the Company” filed an appeal with NCLAT and the impugned order dated 
08.12.2023 of NCLT was set aside and remanded back to the NCLT for fresh review vide order 

dated 12.12.2023, Later on, the financial creditor and "the Company” have initiated the process of 
settlement on 18.01.2024 by restructuring the existing loan and submitted a joint memo stating 

the same to “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) on 05.02.2024. 

SREI Equipment Finance Limited has approved for Restructuring of existing loan dues for a final 
settlement of Rs. 4,952.00 Lakhs, vide its letter dated 02.02.2024. As per agreed terms & 
conditions, “the company” has paid upfront payment of 20% of Restructured loan and one 
instalment, total amounting to Rs. 1685.65 Lakhs as of 31st March, 2024. 

On 28.03.2024 the SREI Equipment Finance Limited filed withdrawal memo seeking leave of this 

“NCLT" to withdraw the company petition. NCLT by an order dated 28.03.2024 allowed the 
company petition stands disposed of as withdrawn. 

. In case of "Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL)", a step-down subsidiary of the company, CBI has filed 
FIR against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 under Prevention of Corruption Act 

and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate has raided the premises of 
“the company” on 11-06-2021 and the investigation is still under progress. 

As per the press release dated 02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022 The Directorate of Enforcement has 
provisionally attached 105 immovable properties and 28 other assets worth Rs.96.21 Crore and 

Rs.80.65 Crore respectively belonging to Madhucon Group of companies, its directors and 
promoters which included the properties of Madhucon Projects Limited and group companies in a 
case against M/s Ranchi Expressway Ltd, under the provisions of PMLA, 2002. 

In case of Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) a step-down subsidiary of Madhucon Projects Limited, 
“The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 22.12.2023 admitted 
the Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), for a petition filed by State Bank of India. 
Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) has made an appeal to "The Hon'ble NCLAT" and "The Hon'ble 
NCLAT" has deferred the impugned order given by NCLT and posted hearing on 07.06.2024. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.1.40 lakhs and has Trade 
Receivables of Rs.8,073.69 lakhs in the above step-down subsidiary for which provision has not 
been made. 

In case of M/s. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited a step-down subsidiary of Madhucon 
Projects Limited, “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 
22.08.2023 admitted the Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which "The 
Hon'ble NCLAT has passed an order and directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next 
hearing on 18.06.2024 
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Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.10 lakhs and advances of Rs. 42.82 
lakhs in the above step-down subsidiary for which provision has not been made. 

xvili.In case of Barasat — Krishnagar Expressways Limited a step-down subsidiary of Madhucon 
Projects Limited, “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 
28.11.2023 admitted the Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which "The 
Hon'ble NCLAT has passed an order and directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next 
hearing on 26.06.2024, 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs,1.40 lakhs in the above step-down 
subsidiary for which provision has not been made. 

xix.In the absence of confirmation of some of the Trade payables, Trade Receivables and various 
advances/loans, we are unable to comment on the extent to which such balances are 
payable/recoverable. Some of the payables to parties are shown by netting off with the other 
receivables. 

xx. Balance confirmation of current accounts, which have become Dormant, are not obtained in case of 
Bank Branches at various project sites. 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 
“The Company's" current liabilities exceeded current assets amounting to Rs. 92,331.50 Lakhs and 
“The Company" has defaulted in payment of dues to banks and financial institution. All these events 
indicate a material uncertainty existing that may cast a significant doubt on “The Company's" ability 
to continue as a going concern. However, the management believes the use of going concern 
assumption on the preparation of the financial statements of “the company’ is still appropriate in view 
of settlement of dues under OTS in case of some banks and approval for restructure of loan for 
settlement of dues by the financial institution and its continuing discussions with its other lenders to 
obtain approval for and an appropriate debt resolution plan and also, that "The company” will 
continue to be in operation in the foreseeable future. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current period. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in 

our report 

The carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans and advances given by the company 
to its subsidiaries, which have been incurring losses and in case of some of these companies, net 
worth was fully or substantially eroded. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

We have examined the kay controls in place for investments made in subsidiaries. We assessed the 
net worth of subsidiaries on the basis of latest available Ind AS financial statements. It is concluded 

that, we are unable to comment upon the carrying value of Equity investments and other investments, 
as to whether any provision for impairment in investments is required. In case of a subsidiary, 
Madhucon Infrastructure Limited, the company has obtained a valuation report, based on which 25% 
of the investment is written off instead of writing off complete value of investment. For the balance 
75% of the Investment no provision for impairment is made in the books of account as at 31st March, 
2024. 

“The Company" has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial institutions All the loans 
outstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks and Financial Institutions. Interest on these loans 
have not been provided for the financial years 2018-19 ta 2022-23. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 
The company has settled the dues in case of SBI, IDB] Bank and Bank of India through OTS and 
entries for the same has been passed in the books of account accordingly. 

In case of other banks’, except Canara bank, the company has entered into OTS. 

*Other banks includes ICICI] Bank, Punjab National Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank. 

B. In case of the Subsidiaries, matters as reported in their respective Basis for Qualified 
Opinion Para on financials are as reproduced below: 
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a. Madhucon Infra limited 

i. The Company's Current Liabilities exceeded Current Assets by Rs. 73,083.29 Lakhs and net worthis 
fully eroded which indicates a material uncertainty that cast a significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, 

ii.We refer to the carrying value of investments of Rs 9,406.97 lakhs held in subsidiaries/other 
companies and other investments (Unsecured Loans and advances) of Rs 45,477.81 lakhs given by 
the company to its subsidiaries/other companies, Some of these have been incurring losses and in 
case of some of the subsidiaries, net worth was fully or substantially eroded / Going Concern is 
affected. We are unable to comment upon the carrying value of investments and other investments 
(Unsecured Loans and advances); whether any provision for impairment in the value of investments 

and other investmants (Unsecured Loans and advances) is required; the effact of same upon the 
profitability could not be ascertained in the absence of fair valuation. 

ili, Has made a provision of Rs. 1,957.96 lakhs and Rs.7963.30 lakhs for the quarter ended 31st 
March, 2024 and for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 respectively towards impairment on 
investment in equity and other investments made in its subsidiaries. In the absence of fair valuation 
of the same, we are unable to comment on the adequacy of the provisions made. 

iv. Has written back loan fram Madhucon Projects Limited amounting to Nil for the quarter ended 31st 
March, 2024 and Rs.4,263.07 Lakhs for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 respectively, being partial 

amount of loan, instead of writing off the total outstanding of Rs.12,918.41 lakhs. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the basis of such write back. 

v. Has written back other Payables amounting to Rs. 0.55 lakhs and Rs. 1.67 Lakhs for the quarter 
ended 31st March, 2024 and for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 respectively. 

vi. Has written off Property, Plant and Equipment amounting to Nil and Rs 5.77 lakhs for the quarter 
ended 31st March, 2024 and for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 respectively. 

vii. Has written off Investment in Madhucon Tell Highways Limited amounting to Nil and Rs 5,126.20 
lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2024 and for the Year ended 31st March, 2024 respectively, 

viii. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period fram 1st April,2023 to 31st March, 2024. 

ix. In case of M/s. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited a subsidiary of Madhucon Infra Limited, "The 
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) by an order dated 22.08.2023 admitted the 
Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which “The Hon'ble NCLAT has passed an 
order and directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 18.06.2024 

Madhucon Infra Limited has given an advance of Rs. 5,000.35 Lakhs to the above subsidiary. As of 
the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 1,492.61 Lakhs is only made against the said advance in the 
books of accounts. 

x. In case of Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) a subsidiary of Madhucon Infra Limited, “The Hon'ble 
National Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) by an order dated 22.12.2023 admitted the Corporate 

Insalvency resolution process (CRIP), for a petition filed by State Bank of India. Ranchi 
Expressways Ltd (REL) has made an appeal to “The Hon'ble NCLAT" and "The Hon'ble NCLAT"” 
has deferred the impugned order given by NCLT and posted hearing on 07.06.2024. 

Madhucon Infra Limited has given an advance of Rs. 26,668.16 Lakhs to the above subsidiary. As of 
the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 8,000.45 Lakhs is only made against the said advance in the 
books of accounts, 

Madhucon Infra Limited has an Investment of Rs. 1.60 lakhs in the above subsidiary. As of the date, 
Impairment Provision of Rs. 0.48 Lakhs is only made against the said advance in the books of 
accounts, 

xi.ln case of Barasat — Krishnagar Expressways Limited a subsidiary of Madhucon Infra Limited, “The 
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) by an order dated 28.11.2023 admitted the 
Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which “The Hon'ble NCLAT has passed an 
order and directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 26.06.2024. 
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Madhucon Infra Limited has given an advance of Rs. 7,459.50 Lakhs to the above subsidiary. As of 

the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 2,237.85 Lakhs is only made against the said advance in the 
books of accounts. 

Madhucon Infra Limited has an Investment of Rs. 1.60 lakhs in the above subsidiary. As of the date, 
Impairment Provision of Rs, 0,48 Lakhs is only made against the said advance in the books of 
accounts. 

xii. The IFCI Ltd had approved one-time settlamant (OTS) of its outstanding dues of Rs.190.96 Crores 
vide its letters dated 24th February,2020. In terms of settlement, OTS amount of Rs.70 Crores was 
to be paid by the company in three instalments. However, the company made total payment of 15.5 
crores up to 31st March,2023 and has represented to IFCl to reduce the OTS amount from Rs 70 
Crores to Rs 51 Crores. 

Subsequently, IFC! Ltd had approved full and final settlement of dues of Rs. 51 crores to be paid 
within 9 months vide its letter dated 19th June, 2023. During the year Company has defaulted in 
payment of these dues as per terms and conditions. Out of Rs. 51 crores an amount of Rs. 29.5 

crore is only paid during the year. 

Interest has not been provided on the amounts payable to IFC! for the current FY 2023-24 and the 

same is not quantified by the management. 

xiii. Balances as at 31st March,2024 in respect of certain Debtors and Creditors in case of some of the 

subsidiaries are subject to Confirmation and Reconciliation. 

xiv. The Commercial Tax Officer, Circle -1, Nellore issued an VAT penalty order/notice dated 
30.04.2021 to Madhucon Infra Limited in the case of contract awarded with Simhapuri energy 
limited in F¥ 2014-15. Madhucon Infra Limited has filed a Writ Petition dated 04.11.2023 at "The 

Hon'ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh”. 

xv. The Campany has not obtained MSME status from trade payables during the year ended and we are 
unable to comment upon the same. 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 

The company, has accumulated losses and its, current liabilities exceeded current assets and the 
company has defaulted in respect of instalments and interest on loans and debentures, affecting the 
company's ability to continue as a going concern. However, the management believes the use of 

going concern assumption on the preparation of the Ind AS financial statements of “the company” is 
still appropriate as company is in discussions with its lenders to obtain approval for and 
implementation of an appropriate debt resolution plan and will continue to be in operation in the 
foreseeable future. 

Emphasis of Matter 

The company has not appointed company secretary. 

Our opinion is net modified in respect of above matter. 

b. Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 

The accumulated losses of “the Company”, have completely eroded the Net worth of the company. 
The Current liabilities of the company exceeded Current Assets by Rs. 177.74 thousand. As such, the 
eroded Net worth significantly affects the company’s ability to continue as a going concern unless it 
raises capital in order to fund the operations. The accounts of the Company have been prepared on 
the basis of going concern assumption. 

c, Madhucen Heights Private Limited 

i. In absence of valuation report of capital werk in progress, the realizable value is not ascertainable. 

However as per the management representation, the case in connection therewith is still pending in 

the Hon'ble High court of Telangana. 
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d. Nama Hotels Private Limited 

In absence of Fair valuation report of capital work in progress, the realizable value is not 
ascertainable. 

e. Madhucon Toll Highways Limited 

i. We refer to the carrying value of investments of Rs.19,617.26 Lakhs held in subsidiaries/other 
companies and other investments (Unsecured Loans and advances) of Rs. 7,636.19 Lakhs given by 
the company to its subsidiaries/other companies, some of these have been incurring losses and in 
case of some of the subsidiaries, net worth was fully or substantially eroded / Going Concern is 
affected. The Company has made provision for impairment on the basis of internal evaluation. But, 
in the absence of fair value, we cannot ascertain whether the impairment made is adequate. 

ii, In case of M/s. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited a co - company of Madhucon Toll Highways 
Limited, “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal" (NCLT) by an order dated 22.08.2023 
admitted the Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which “The Hon'ble NCLAT 
has passed an order and directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 18.06.2024. 

Madhucan Toll Highways Limited has an investment of Rs. 1,532.00 lakhs in Trichy-Thanjavur 
Expressways Limited (As of the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 306.40 Lakhs is only made 
against the said advance in the books of accounts). 

iii. In case of Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) a co - company of Madhucon Toll Highways Limited, “The 
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 22.12.2023 admitted the 
Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), for a petition filed by State Bank of India. Ranchi 
Expressways Ltd (REL) has made an appeal to “The Hon'ble NCLAT"” and "The Hon'ble NCLAT" 
has deferred the Impugned order given by NCLT and posted hearing on 07.06.2024. 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited has given an advance of Rs, 2,895.23 Lakhs in Ranchi 
Expressways Ltd (As of the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 579.05 Lakhs Is only made against 
the said advance in the books of accounts). 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited has an investment of Rs, 8,075.00 lakhs in Ranchi Expressways 
Ltd (As of the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 1,615.00 Lakhs is only made against the said 
advance in the books of accounts) 

iv. In case of Barasat — Krishnagar Expressways Limited a co - company of Madhucon Toll Highways 
Limited, “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 28.11.2023 
admitted the Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against which "The Hon'ble NCLAT 
has passed an order and directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing on 26.06.2024. 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited has made advances of Rs. 1,700.00 lakhs in Barasat - Krishnagar 
Expressways Limited (As of the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 340.00 Lakhs is only made 

against the said advance in the books of accounts) 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited has an investment of Rs. 4,335.00 lakhs in Barasat — Krishnagar 
Expressways Limited (As of the date, Impairment Provision of Rs. 867.00 Lakhs is only made 
against the said advance in the books of accounts) 

Material uncertainty related to going concern of “The Group” 

“The Group's” current liabilities exceeded current assets and “The Holding Company" has 

defaulted in payment of dues to banks and financial institution and there are adverse observations 
in the Audit Reports of “The Holding Company” and Subsidiaries/ Sub-Subsidiaries. All these 

indicate a material uncertainty existing that may cast a significant doubt on “The Group's" ability to 

continue as a going concern. However, the management believes the use of going concern 

assumption on the preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of “The Group” is 

still appropriate in view of settlement of dues under OTS in case of some banks and having 

received approvals for restructure of loan for settlement of dues by the financial institution and its 

continuing discussions with its other lenders to obtain approval for and an appropriate debt 

resolution plan by the “The Holding Company” and also, that "The Group" will continue to be in 

operation in the foreseeable future. 
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3. Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Halding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 

with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance including consolidated other 

comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of "The Group in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in “The Group" are responsible for maintenance 

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 

"The Group” and for preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 

and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the directors of the holding company as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 

included in “Tha Group" are responsible for assessing the ability of “The Group" to continue as a going 

concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate "The Group" or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in “The Group" are responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of “The Group”. 

4, Auditor's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nota 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists, Misstatements can arise frorn fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

ii, Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

Procedures that is appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such 
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause “The 

Group" to cease to continue as a going concern. 

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

vi. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within "The Group" to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the 

financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of 

which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We 

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic dacisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We 

consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evaluating the statements of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 

included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal contral that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

athical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable, related 

safequards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period 

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

5, Other Matter Paragraph: 
a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of one subsidiary and, seven 

step-down subsidiaries included in the statement, whose financial statements together comprise 
total assets, before elimination, of Rs. 3,44,273.02 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total Revenue 

of Rs. 15,641.21 Lakhs and Rs. 21,558.21 Lakhs and Total Comprehensive loss of Rs, 425.27 Lakhs and 
Rs. 4,222.78 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March 2024 and for the period from 1st April, 2023 to 31st 

March, 2024 respectively. The financial statements and other financial information of these subsidiaries 

have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and 
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial results, to the extent they have been derived fromm such 
financial statement is solely based on the reports of the other auditors. 

b) The financial statements and other financial information of PT Madhucon Indonesia, a Foreign stepdown 
subsidiary of the company included in the statement, whose financial statements comprise total assets, 
before elimination, of Rs. 27,560.47 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024, total Revenue of Nil and Nil and Total 
Comprehensive loss of Rs. 5.58 Lakhs and 17.70 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March 2024 and for 
the period from 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024.The Financial statements / financial information of this 
company are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect 

of this Foreign step down subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of section 143 of 
the Act, in so far it relates to the aforesaid stepdown subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial 
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statements / financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 
to us by the Management, these financial statements/inancial information are not material to “The Group’, 

Our opinion on the statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on 
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/financial information 
certified by the Management. 

The “QOpinion"/" Emphasis of Matter Paragraph"/" Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” in such audit reports are reproduce below: 

a) Barasat -Krishnagar Expressways Limited ("BKEL') 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for 

the possible effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended, (Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

M/s State Bank of India has filed petition U/s 7 of IBC 2016, against the Company at the Hon'ble NCLT, 

Hyderabad Bench. The Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench passed the order by admitting the petition and 
appointed Interim Resolution Professional. In this regard Company has approached the Hon'ble NCLAT, 

seeking relief and the Hon'ble NCLAT has given stay on COC proceedings till 26-06-2024. 

The above conditions associated with the outcome of CIRP proceedings indicate the existence of material 

uncertainties which casted significant doubt on the Company's abilities to continue as going 

concern, 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statemants under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's 

Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 

However, in view of the above we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to comment on 

the adjustment, if any, that may be required to be made and the consequential impact thereof on the 

accompanying financial statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

.We draw attention to note no. 1 in the financial statements ‘The construction work is delayed due to 
pending approvals and right of way to be provided by NHAI. The Company had issued notice for 

termination of the project ta NHAI on s31st December, 2015, The company and NHAI entered into a 

Supplementary Agreement to the 'Concession Agreement dated 20th June, 2011' on 2nd May, 2016 far 

inclusion of the clause of ‘Society for Affordable Redressal of Disputes’ (SAROD) Committee for arbitration. 

NHAI had also issued notice for terminations of the project vide its letter dated 3rd May, 2016 and the 

company had replied that the notice Is not valid. Both Company and NHAI appointed arbitrators. The 

Arbitration proceeding are in progress with SAROD. 

il, We draw our attention to note no. 2.10 where the borrowings from secured lenders have been declared as 

non-performing assets by the lender. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year on both long 

term and short-term portions of loans. The balances lying in the Bank current accounts are subject to 
external confirmation. 

86 

a 3 v
l]



I) 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
JAD} = ue a iS} 

iii, We draw our attention to note no. 5 the cost incurred on the project till the closure of the financials dated 

31-03-2024 is Rs, 5,82,52,97,106/-. The amount has been accounted as 'NHAI| Claim Receivables’ under 

the head ‘Other Financial Assets’ which is in contravention to Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 
and Contingent Assets), as the claims are In the nature of contingent asset. This has resulted in 

aver-statement of other financial assets and understatement of cumulative loss by the same amount in the 

Statement of Profit & Loss. 

iv. We draw our attention to note no. 26(a), as per the arbitral tribunal award dated 05-05-2022, the company 
is liable to pay the awarded claim to EPC contractor M/s Madhucon Projects Limited amounting Rs.396.06 

crores. As this liability, which has been raised due to tribunal award has not been challenged by the 

company in any forum till date. As a result, the company needs to record the same as Liability in books of 
accounts. 

v. Receivables and payables are subject to external confirmation by the parties. 

vi. Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of Companies Act 2013 regarding 

the appointment of Key Management Personnel, as well as provisions of 177 and 178 concerning the audit 

committee and nomination remuneration committee, section 138 concerning Internal Audit, appointment of 

company secretary and section 149 concerning to appointment of Independent Director. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

CARO Report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks 

* The company has failed to adhere to the provisions of Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013, in respect of 

loans to directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, 

investments made, guarantee or securities given. 

* The Company is irregular in depositing wit appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 

Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory dues applicable to it. 

b)Rajauli-Bakthiyarpur Expressways Limited (‘RBEL') 

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note no 25 of the standalone financial statements, which indicates that the project 

awarded to M/s Rajaull - Bakhtiyarpur Expressways Limited by Bihar State Road Development 

Corporation Limited (BSRDC) with a Concession Period of 30 years which included a construction period 

of 30 months has been foreclosed with mutual consent due to the non-handling over of Right Of Way 

(ROW) as per terms of the Contract by BSRDC. These events or conditions, indicate that a material 

uncertainty exists that casted a significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. Based on our audit procedures and evaluation of the entity's financial statements and other 

relevant information, we have concluded that the entity is not a going concern, the financial statements 

have been drawn accordingly. Our conclusion is based on several factors, including the entity's financial 

position, cash flows from operations, and its ability to meet its obligations as they come due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

. We draw our attention to Note 4 where the cost incurred on the project till the closure of the financials 

dated 31-03-2024 is Rs. 8,19,97,531/-. The amount has been accounted as ‘Claims Receivable from 
BSRDC against Expenditure incurred on the project’ under the head ‘Other Financial Assets’ which is in 

contravention to Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets), as the claims are in 

the nature of contingent asset. This has resulted in over-statement of other financial assets and 

understatement of cumulative loss by the same amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss. Further, the 

amount receivable from BSRDC has not yet been ratified and has not been reconciled with that of 
BSRDC's books. 

. We draw attention to Note 27 to the Standalone financial statements, the company has approached 

BSRDC by invoking arbitral clause to initiate arbitration proceedings for the expenses incurred for the 

project. As informed and explained to us, statement of claims was initially filed on 04-03-2020 with BSRDC. 

The arbitration proceedings are currently in progress. 

iii. Bank balances, receivables and payables are subject to external confirmation. 
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matters. 

c)Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited (MTEL) 

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note no. 49 of the standalone financial statements, which states that the project 
awarded to M/s Madurai-Tuticorin Expressways Limited has been terminated by NHAI on 17-03-2023 

though company has commenced Periodic Maintenance works and its obligations. These events or 

conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that casted significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on our audit procedures and evaluation of 

the entity's financial statements and other relevant information, we have concluded that the entity is nota 
going concern, the financial statements have bean drawn accordingly. Our conclusion is based on several 

factors, including the entity's financial position, cash flows from operations, and its ability to meet its 

obligations as they come due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. As detailed in Note 48 to the Standalone financial statements, the company has submitted claim to NHAI 

for the works already completed. The company has Initiated arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the 

arbitration proceedings commenced. 

ii. As detailed in Note 2.09 to the Standalone financial statements, company has taken loans from banks and 

financial institutions. Those loans became NPAs. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year on 

both long term and short-term portions of loans. The balances lying in the Bank current accounts are 

subject to external confirmation. 

iii. As detailed in Note 52 to the Standalone financial statements, since the contract has been terminated in 

Financial Year 2022-23: 

® Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets have been completely written off; 

® Provisions created for Operations and Maintenance have been reversed; 

* Capital grant Income has been recognized in full. 

As a result, there is a significant impact on the financial statements and its ratios. 

iv. Receivables and payables are subject to external confirmation by the parties. 

v.As mentioned in Note 51, Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of 

Companies Act 2013 regarding the appointment of Key Management Personnel, as well as provisions of 

177 concerning the audit committee, section 178 concerning in to nomination and remuneration committee, 

section 138 concerning internal audit, Section 148 concerning maintenance of cost records and cost audit, 
appointment of company secretary and section 149 concerning in to appointment of Independent Director 
and women Director. 

vi. The adequacies of the IND AS adjustments as per applicable IND AS are not corroborated and is subject 

to other Ind AS adjustments carried out during the year. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matters. 

CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks 

The company has failed to adhere to the provisions of Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013, in respect of 

loans to directors including entities in which they are interested and given. in respect of loans and 

advances given, investments made, guarantee or securitles 

d)Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Expressways Limited 

Material Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern 

Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Expressways Limited was formed for Design, Build, Finance, Operate and 

Transfer of 4-laning of Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Section of NH-9 from Km. 0.000 to Km. 63.800 in the 
state of Andhra Pradesh under NHDP Phase Ill on Toll basis and to carry on the business of O&M 

(operation & Maintenance) contracts relating to the road works. NHAI has not handed over the ROW and 

the project was terminated. 
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These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that casted a significant doubt 

on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on several factors, including the 

entity's financial position, cash flows from operations, and its ability to meet its obligations as they come 

due, 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. Bank balances, receivables and payables are subject to external confirmation by the parties. 

CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has failed to 

adhere to the provisions of Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loan to directors including 

entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made, 

guarantee or securities given. 

e)TN (DK) Expressways Limited 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. As detailed in Note 1 to the Standalone financial statements, the company has submitted claim to NHAI for 

the works already completed, The company has initiated arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the 

arbitration proceedings commenced. The arbitration is currently in progress. 

ii. As detailed in Note 2.09, TN (DK) Expressways Limited (TNDK) has taken loans from banks and financial 

institutions. Those loans became NPAs. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year on both long 

term and short-term portions of loans. The balances lying in the Bank current accounts are subject to 

external confirmation. 

iii. Receivables and payables including GST Account are subject to confirmation by the parties and share of 

gross collections to be deposited with NHAI has not been provided. 

iv.As mentioned in Note 52 Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of 

Companies Act 2013 regarding the appointment of Key Management Personnel, section 177 concerning 

the audit committee, section 178 concerning to nomination and remuneration committee, appointment of 

company secretary, section 149 concerning in to appointment of Independent Director, Section 138 

concerning Internal Audit and Section 148 concerning maintenance of cost records. 

v. Litigations: NCLT Order has been adjourned - Details of the same to be shared by the client. 

vi. As detailed in Note 50 to the Standalone financial statements, the company has failed to adhere to the 

provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. 

vil. The adequacies of the IND AS adjustments as per applicable IND AS are not corroborated and also are 

subject to other Ind AS adjustments carried out during the year. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matters. 

f) Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for 

the possible effects of the matter described in the 'Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 

Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

M/s IDB| Bank Limited has filed petition U/s 7 of IBC 2016, against the Company at the Hon'ble NCLT, 
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Hyderabad Bench - 1, The Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench — 1 passed the order by admitting the petition 

and appointed Interim Resolution Professional. In this regard Company has approached the Hon'ble 

NCLAT, Chennai seeking relief and the Hon'ble NCLAT has given stay on proceedings till 06-03-2024. 

The above conditions associated with the outcome of CIRP proceedings indicate the existence of material 

uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Company's abilities to continue as going 

concern, 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's 

Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 

However, in view of the above we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to comment on 

the adjustment, if any, that may be required to be made and the consequential impact thereof on the 

accompanying financial statements for the year ended March 2024. 

Uncertainties relating to Going Concern 

Trichy - Thanjavur Expressways Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on 13th April, 

2006 as a Special Purpose Vehicle of Madhucon Projects Limited for execution of four lanes Trichy - 
Thanjavur section road Project on NH-67 in the state of Tamil Nadu on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) 

basis. Due to delays in undertaking periodic maintenance works NHAI terminated the project on 

17-03-2023 through issue of termination notice. 

Based on our audit procedures and evaluation of the entity's financial statements and other relevant 

information, we have concluded that the entity is not a going concern, the financial statements have been 

drawn accordingly. Our conclusion is based on several factors, including the entity's financial position, 

cash flows from operations, and its ability to meet its obligations as they came due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

i, As detailed in Note 1 to the Standalone financial statements, the company has submitted claim to NHAI for 

the works already completed. The company has Initiated arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the 

arbitration proceedings commenced, The status of the arbitration is currently in progress, 

ii, As detailed in Note 2.09, Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited (TTEL) has taken loans from banks and 

financial institutions. Those loans became NPAs. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year an 

both long term and short-term portions of loans. The balances lying in the Bank current accounts are 

subject to external confirmation. 

iii. As detailed in Note 52, Since the contract has been terminated on 17-03-2023: 

® Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets have been completely written off; 

® Provisions created for operating and maintenance (O&M) expenses have been reversed; 

® Capital grant income has been recognized in full. 

As a result, there is a significant impact on the company's financial statements and Its ratios. 

iv. Receivables and payables are subject to external confirmation by parties. 

v.As detailed in Nate 51, Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of the 

Companies Act 2013 regarding the appaintment of Key Management Personnel, as well as provisions of 

177 and 178 concerning the audit committee and nomination and remuneration committee, section 138 

concerning internal audit, section 148 concerning maintenance of cost records, appointment of company 

secretary and section 149 concerning in to appointment of Independent Director. 
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vi. The adequacies of the IND AS adjustments as per applicable IND AS are not corroborated and also are subject to 
other Ind AS adjustments carried out during the year. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matters. 

g) Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for 

the possible effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the 

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2024, the loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for 

the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

1. Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited has been incorporated on 2nd day of Juné 2010 as Special 

Purpose Vehicle for design, build, operate, Finance and Transfer of 4 laning of Chhapra-Hajipur section of 

NH-19 from KM 143.200 to Km 207.200 in the state of Bihar on annuity basis for a concession period of 15 

years (2.5years of construction period and 12.5 years of operating period). 

This contract was awarded by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). The company shall hand over 

project to the NHAI on expiry of concession period. The Concession Agreement, on execution, will entitle 

the company to take a fixed sum of annuity every 6 months, in arrears, starting from the date of 

commencement of commercial operations (COD) from NHAI. However, the company has not commenced 

the commercial operations till the date of balance sheet. 

In this scenario, the management must recognise the amount receivable form NHAI as per IND AS 115 

“Appendix D - Service Concession Arrangements” 

As per Ind AS 109 interest must be calculated using the effective interest method which is to be recognised 

in profit or loss, 

With reference to notes to accounts stated in the financial statements 3, and the above stated accounting 

measurement as per IND AS, we differ our opinion, as the company has not complied with respective IND 

AS for arriving at the amount stated as “Project cost" in Non-current Assets amounting Rs. 1,16,847.60 

Lakhs for FY 2023-24 and Rs.1,03,683.77 Lakhs for FY 2022-23. 

2. The company has not recognized revenue of Rs. 79 lakhs which is in violation of IND AS 115. 

3. With reference to notes to accounts stated in the financial statements 17 comprising of Borrowing Cost 

Rs. 2301.46 lakhs, the company has failed to deduct TDS under Section 194A. 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 

we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's 

Code of Ethics. 

However, because of the matters described in the above paragraphs, we were unable to obtain sufficient 

and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these Financial Statements. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

i. We draw attention to Note 36.12 to the Standalone financial statements, loans taken from banks and 

financial institutions have become NPAs. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year on both 

long term and short-term portions of loans except NHAI loan. The balances lying in the Bank current 

accounts are subject to external confirmation. 

ii. Receivables and payables are subject to confirmation by the parties. 

iii. As mentioned in Note 36.21, Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of 

Companies Act 2013 regarding the appointment of Key Management Personnel, as well as provisions of 

177 and 178 concerning the audit committee and nomination and remuneration committee, appointment of 

company secretary, section 138 concerning Internal Audit and section 149 concerning in to appointment of 

Independent Director and Women Director. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matters. 

h)Ranchi Expressways Limited 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

i. No Internal audit was conducted for the financial year as applicable under section 138 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder. 

ii. The Company has not complied with the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard Ind AS 37 (Provisions, 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) Claims being Contingent asset in nature. This has resulted in 
over-statement of Current Assets by Rs. 1,33,794 Lakhs and understatement of Cumulative loss by the 

same amount. 

iii. Note 14 to the Financial Statements which describes the Outstanding balances of loans and interests 

thereon from Banks or financial institutions for which no Confirmations were received from banks. 

lv. The Company has defaulted on payment of Statutory Dues (PF & Professional tax), which was due and 
pending for more than 6 months. 

v. The company has not been complying with Chapter XVII-B of Income tax related to deposit of TDS 
deducted with the income tax authorities. 

vi. The company had not deposited works contract tax amounts to Rs.20.74 crores with the government 

authority. 

vii. During the year, South Indian Bank came forward for one time settlement and company paid amount of 

Rs. 5.68 Cr as last instalment on 26.06.2023 in full and final settlement. Company had taken NOC from the 

South Indian Bank. We have not received any confirmation Certificate of bifurcation of Principal and 

Interest amount from the South Indian Bank. We cannot be able to certify the interest claim of Rs,8.05 Cr 

with the NHAI Claim related to South Indian Bank. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

However, because of the matters described in the above paragraphs, we were not able to obtain sufficient 

and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. 

Emphasis of matters: 

We draw your attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements: 

Ranchi Expressways Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on 29th Day of March 

2011 as a Special Purpose Vehicle for Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) of Four 

Laning of Ranchi-Rargaon-Jamshedpur Section of NH-33 from Km. 114.000 to Km. 277.500 in the state of 
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Jharkhand on DBFOT (Annuity) basis for a concession period of 15 years. This contract was awarded by 

National Highway Authority of India. The Company shall hand over the Project Highway to NHAI on expiry 

of the Concession Period. Note- 1 to the financial statements which describe the suspension of rights of 

concessionaire pursuant to Article 36 of the Concessionaire Agreement with NHAI. 

ii) The company has achieved physical progress of 50.24% and about 10% is in WIP and approached NHAI 

for One Time Fund Infusion (OTFI) for completion of the remaining stretch. NHAI initially sanctioned an 

amount of Rs.223 Crs as One Time Fund Infusion and subsequently NHAI has gone back by cancelling 

the already sanction OTFI amount of Rs.223 Crs. Lenders and the company have preferred One Time 

Settlement (OTS) with NHAI for the works already completed. 

iii) While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated the Concession Agreement on 

30/01/2019 without following the termination procedure laid down in the Concession Agreement and called 

for tenders from public to complete the balance work on EPC basis. Since the project got terminated, 

Lenders are seeking for One Time Settlement. Company and Lenders agreed and requested the NHAI to 

refer the matter to Conciliation Cammittee of Independent Engineers. 

iv) The NHAI had given its consent for referring the matter to CCIE vide its letter dated 18-04-2019. The 

company has submitted the claim to NHAI. The proceedings of CCIE commenced on 25-09-2019. CCIE 

vide their order dated 10-08-2020 informed that Both parties, despite their attempts at reaching an 

amicable settlement of their disputes through conciliation before this committee, have not been successful. 

The committee hereby records the failure and closure of the conciliation proceedings on this matter. The 

company has initiated arbitration clause the arbitration committee formed, and arbitration proceedings 

commenced. EPC contractor has made claims against the company. On receipt of arbitration award the 

company will negotiate with the EPC Contractor to settle the claims. Note - 5.2 to the financial statements 

which describe the reconciliation of outstanding balances of loans including interest thereon between 

books and confirmations from banks or financial institutions. 

Vv —
 CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Fromoters, Directors and Holding Companies on 12/03/2019 

under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate 

has raided the premises of the Company on 11-06-2021 and the ED is collecting information and 
investigation is under progress. 

vi) Banker, the State Bank of India which Disbursed Loans to the Ranchi Express Way Ltd has filed a petition 

under IBC Cade, 2016 herewith referred as Financial Creditor with the National Company Law Tribunal 

(Hyderabad Bench-1), The Bench is satisfied that the bank has established an existence of financial debt 

of sum exceeding one crore rupees payable by the respondent, the Ranchi Expressways Limited. In the 

process, the honourable bench appointed IRP and declared the moratorium under section 14 of IBC Code 

on 22nd Dee 2023, 

vii)Later, Kamma Srinivas Rao, director of the Company, filed an appeal against the order of NCLT 

(Hyderabad Bench — 1) with the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal — (Chennai Bench). The 

Honourable NCLAT raised an argument that petition was not maintainable against the Carporate Debtor 

(Ranchi Express Ways Ltd) in the absence of any specific board resolution passed by the board of 

directors of financial creditor (State Bank of India). As a result of this, Honourable NCLAT has deferred the 

impugned order given by NCLT for a period of two weeks from 29.01.24. As a result, the Company is in the 

position of status quo as before 22nd Dec 2023. 

viil)Again NCLAT had passed the order dated 19.03.2024 directed to list the matter on 07.06.2024 which 

implied that interim order passed by the NCLAT dated 29.01.2024 shall continue. 

ix) Cast incurred on the project up to 31st March 2024 Rs.1,33,794 Lakhs instead of writing-off, has been 

accounted as Claims receivable under the head “Other Financial Assets” which is in contravention of the 

provisions of Indian Accounting Standards Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets) Claims being Contingent asset in nature. This has resulted in over-statement of Current Assets by 

Rs, 1,33,794Lakhs and understatement of Cumulative loss by the same amount. 

In view of the above, the termination of the Concession Agreement indicates that existence of material 

uncertainty that casts significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a Going Concern. 
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x) Interest on Loans is not provided for during the year under Audit except interest amount of Rs.34,15,904 

related to south india bank which came forward for one time settlement. Respective interest amount had 

been added to claim receivable from NHAI. 

xi) We draw attention to Note 13 to the Financial Statements which indicated that the Company has 
accumulated losses of Rs.20,946 Lakhs and Its Net worth has been substantially eroded. 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above 

matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a) wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified opinion, in our opinion 
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as appears from our 
examination of those books; 

c) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified opinion the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Consolidated Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated statement 
of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified opinion, The aforesaid 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued their under. 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, and taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, fram being 

appointed as a director In terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A"; and 

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 

Information and according to the explanations given to us; 

i. The Group has disclosed the pending litigations which would impact its financial position in its notes 

to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

ii. The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses, 

ill. The Holding Company’ has not complied with the provisions of section 124(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 regarding the remittance of unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 3.73 Lakhs 

relating to Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from unpaid dividend account to Invester Education 
and Protection Fund (IEPF) within the stipulated period. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds {which 

are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by The 

company or “The Group" to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company or 

"The Group" from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly 

or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come (0 our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (il) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 

contain any material misstatement. 

v. None of the companies in "The Group” has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. 

vi, Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31% March, 2024, which 

has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facillty and the same has operated throughout the 

year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit 

we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 

For P. Murali& Co, 
Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 0072575 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 

M.No:020085 
UDIN: 24020085BKAUHN7488 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 18-05-2024 
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ur the Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) of the 

Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) 

In conjunction with our Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the company as of and for 
the year ended 31*! March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

Madhucon Projects Limited (‘the Halding company’) and its subsidiary companies which are Incorporated 
in India, as of the date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal + 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICA\). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing 

deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. 

These standards and guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
performed the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our Audit of Internal 

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the Auditor's Judgment, including the Assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the 

Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion and the company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detailed, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorization of 

management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the Financial Statements. 
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Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

aver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 

{!n our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Bas/s for qualified opinion to the 

consolidated Independent Auditor's Report, reasonable internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting but not adequate and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at 31°! March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

Other Matters 

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, in so far as it relates to one subsidiary and seven step down 

subsidiaries of "The Group” audited by other auditors, is based on the reports of their respective auditors. 

For P, Murali& Go, 
Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 0072578 

A Krishna Rao 

Partner 
M.No:020085 

UDIN:24020085BKAUHN7488 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 18-05-2024 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 

(All the amounts are in lakhs except "No of Shares" , "Face value of Equity share* and Earning per share) 

(Zin Lakhs) 
Note Ag at Aa at 

No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 20233 
ASSETS 

Non-Curront Assats 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 4,917.98 5,261.33 

{i) Capital Work-in-Progross 2.1 8,708.53 5,708.53 
Thtangible Aameta Z.1n 11,956.49 F 

ii) Intangible Assets under Development = 14,499,223 
iii) Inweatment Properties = iy 

{b) Financial Azseta 
(i) Inveatinenta 2.2 54.58 54.58 

ii) Trade Receivables 23 = = 
(iii) Loans 2.4 10,123.94 15.31 
fiv) Others Financial Assets 2. 1,94,125.63 113,224,668 

te) (Dolerred Tax Assets (Net) : 5,570.56 4,576.08 
(da) Other Non-Current Assets 2. 17,435.86 15,838.41 

Total Non-Curront Asscts 1,92,902.47 1,62,128.11 
Current Asacta 

{a) Inventories 2.8 208.89 372.83 

{b) Financial Aawata 
(i) Investments. 2.9 = # 
fii) Trade Reeeivablos 2.10 3,571.61 807.19 

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 241 3,909.16 6,238.12 
fiy) Bank Balances other than above 2.12 2 A 
(y) Loans 2.18 10.16 609.73 
(vi) Others Financial Assets 2.14 196,414.50 196,743.55. 

{c) Current Tax Asact (Net) 3,18 6,164.24 7,396.12 
(dj Other Current Asscts 2.16 1B,07 1.6L 34,977.30 

Total Ctirront Asaata 3,28,360_17 2,48,844.84 
Total Asacta 4,21,262.04 410,972.95 

[EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
| Equit: 

a) Equity Share Capital 217. 740,42 740.42 

{b) Other Equity 2.18 (151,012.64) (1,92,690, 36) 
Less : Profit / (Loss) from Associates : = 

Equity Attributable ta Shareholders of the Company (150,272.32) (191,950.04) 

{ce} Non-Controlling Interests (48,514.82) (43,769.41) 

Total Equity (198,787.14) (2,35,7 19.45] 
Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

{a} Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrawinga 219 157,530.47 166,367.26 
(ii) Trade Payables 2.20 8,092.84 7,214.44 
(A) total outstanding diea of micto entceprisca 

andsmall enterprises; and 
(B) total outstanding duca of ereditora other 

ihan microenterprises and small enterprises | 
(iijJOther Financial Liabilitics 221 2,024.52 2,148.69 

(b) Provisions 2.22 14,644.30 17,259.98 
{e}) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) = - 
{d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 2.23 13,903.72 954.01 

Total Non-Current Linbilition 1,96,195.85 1,93,944.98 
Current Liabilities 

{o) Finansin! Linbilities 

i) Barrawinga 2.24 2,23,800.54 165,530.65 
(ii) Trode Payables 23.25 36,884.42 45,737.14 
A) total outstanding duca of micro enterprises 

andsmail enterprises; and 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other 

than microenterprises and small enterpriaea.| 
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 2.26 AZ 361,02 126,571.65 

(iv) Employee Benefit Obligations - = 
ib) Other Current Linhilities 23.27 69,854.30 80,216.00 

{c) Fravisions. 2.38 49,595.35 43,854.38 
(dj Current Tax Linhilities (Net) 2.29 2,341.70 837.98 

Total Current Liabilitics 3,323,843 93 4,52, 748 03 
Total Equity and Linbilities 4,21,252.64 4,10,972.95 

Significant accounting polices & Notes te aceaunts 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
Aa por aur reported even date annexed 

For P.Murali & Co, For and on behalf of the Bonord 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN : 0072575 

A.Hriahna Rao N. Seethoinh Mohammad Shafi J. Samba siva Rao 
Partner Managing Director Jt Manoging Director = Director (F & A) 
Membership Number 020085 DIN: 00784491 BIN: 07178265 DIN: 09526475 

UDIN: 2402008SRKAUHN 7488 

Place : Hyderabad K, Venkatoswarlu D, Malla Reddy 
Date ; May 18, 20234 Director cum CFO Campany Sceretary 

DIN: 09713108 ACS: 9859 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2024 

(All the amounts are in lakhs except “No of Shares" , "Face value of Equity share" and Earning per share) 

(2 tn Lakhs) 
Note Your ended Your ended 
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

ja) Revenue 

ti) Revenue from Operations 2.30 116,375.27 116,930.46 

(ii) Other Income. 2.31 30,140.46 90,153.51 

Total Revenue 146,515.73 2,06 383,97 

b) Expenses 

ti) Coat of Materials and Work Expenaos 2.42 94,955.68 103,075.48 

jil) Changes in Inventory and work-in-progress 2.33 = = 

(iii) Employee Benefits Expense 2.34 2,279.01 2,996.83 

{iv) Finance Coata 2.35 4,142.37 4,712.18 

vy) Depreciation and amortization expense 2.1 4,181.01 79,893.93 

(vij Other Expenses 2.36 49,043.43 35,419.83 

Total Expenaca 1,59,601,50 2,26,098.25 

Profit before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tox (7,085.77) (19,714.28) 

Exceptional Items 5 5 

Share of [Losal from Associate Company - - 

Profit Before Tax (7,085.77) (19,714.28) 

Tax Expense 

Current Tax = 3.91 

Adjustment of Tax relating to eurlier periods (7.36) 

Deffered Tax (1,003.51) {2,007.69} 

(1,010.87) (1,998.78) 

Loss) / Profit for the Year (6,074.90) (17,715.50) 

Attributable to 

Sharcheldera of the Company (4,511.67) (14,369,90) 

Non-Controlling Interests (1,563.24) : (3,345,60) 

Other Comprehenalve Income 

Re-Classification of Employee Defined Benefit Obligation 47.35 43,10 

Exchange differences on translation - . 

Armouyit Not Reelaasifiable ta PAL 5 2 

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 47.35 43,10 

Total Comprehensive (Lowa) / lieome for the year (4,464,33) (14,926.80) 

Attributable to 

Shareholders af the Company (4,464.39) (14,326.80) 

|Non-Controlling Interests (1,563.24) (3,545.50)! 

Total Comprehenalve Incama (4.46432) (14,526.80) 

Earnings per share of Face Value of ' 10/- each 

Basic and Diluted (6.11) (19.47) 

Signifleant accounting polices & Notes ta accounts 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
In terms of our report attached 

For Murali é& Co. For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN ; 0072578 

A.Hrishno Roo N. Seethoiah Mohammad Shafi J. Samba aiva Rao 

Partner Managing Director Jt Managing Director Director (F & A) 
Membership Number 020085 DIN: 00784401 DIN: 07178265 DIN: 09526475 

UDIN : 240200B5BKAUHN74B8 

Place ; Hyderabad K, Vonkateswarlu D. Mulla Reddy 

Date : May 18, 2024 Director cum CFO Company Secretary 

DIN: 09713108 ACS: 9559 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2024 
(All the amounts are in lakhs except "No of Shares” , "Face value of Equity share" and Earning per share} 

"G
al
l 

(Sin Lakhs) 

Year ended 

A |Cash flow from operating activities 
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 

Year ended 

(Loss) / Profit before tax (7,085.77) (19,714.27) 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,181.01 79,893.93 

Dividend Income : (0.08) 
lnterest Income (223.07) (138.07) 

Receivables / Advances Written Off = 2 

Exceptional Items : = 

Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss * = 
Finance costs 3,901.36 4,712.19 

6,859.30 84,467.97 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (226.47) 64,753.70 

Change in Working Capital 

(Increase) /decrease in Trade Receivables (3,064.42) 1,115.95 

(Increase) /decrease in Inventories 163.94 180,76 

(Increase) /decrease in Other Financial Asscts (20,571.91) (16,789.71) 

(Increase) /decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets 16,540.10 (16,669.35) 

Inerease/ (decrease) in short term borrowings {net} 68,275.88 22,880.01 

Increase / (decrease) in Trade Payables (7,974.30) (14,043.69) 

Increase / (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (79,334.41) 54,040.55 

Increase / (decrease) in Other Current and Non-Current Liabilities 1,213.93 (119,609.05) 

Cash generated from operations (24,977.67) (24,140.82) 

Income taxes paid 

Net cash from operating activities (24,977.67) (24,140.82) 

E |Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP (344.83) 14,368.98 

Change in other equity 46,827.67 3,008.67 

Changes in Investments - 75,348.23 

(Increase) / decrease in other bank balances - 2,035.35 

Dividend Received - 0,07 

Interest Received 223.07 138,07 

Not cash used in investing activitics 46,705.92 94,899.37 

¢ |Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds /(Repayment] of long term borrowings (12,646.79) (67,897.73) 

Increase / (decrease) in Loans (9,509.06) 590.94 

Dividend paid - 3 

Interest paid (3,901.36) (4,712.18) 
Net cash used in financing activities (26,057.21) (72,018.97) 

Net increage/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,328.96) (1,260.42) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 8,258.12 9,498.55 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3,909.16 8,238.12 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per with the Balance 3,909.16 8,238.12 

Cash and Cash Equivalents end of the Year 3,909.16 8,238.12 

Significant accounting polices & Notes to accounts 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated {mancial statements 
In terms of our report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN ; QO72575 

A.Krishna Raa 

Partner 

Membership Number 020085 

UDIN: 24020085BKAUHN7488 

N. Seethaiah 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00784491 

K. Venkateswarlu 

Director cum CFO 

DIN; 09713108 

Place ; Hyderabad 

Date ; May 18, 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Mohammad Shafi 
Jt Managing Director 

DIN: 07178265 

J. Samba siva Rao 

Director (F & A) 

DIN: 09526475 

D, Malla Reddy 

Company Secretary 

ACS: 9559 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Company Overview: 
Madhucon Projects Limited (MPL) or “the Company” is an integrated construction, Infrastructure 
development and management Company. The Corporate Office of the Company is located at 'Madhucon 
House’ Road No.36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, India. 

Basis of preparation: 

A) Statement of compliance 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division || of Schedule Ill ta the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 
May 18, 2024. 

Details of the Group's accounting policies are included in Note 1. The accounting policies set out below have 
been applied consistently to the years presented in the consolidated financial statements. 

B) Basis of Measurement 
These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual 
basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given 
in exchange for goods and services. 

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and OCI are prepared and 
presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The 
Consolidated statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 
"Statement of Cash flows". The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and 

Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Act, are presented by way of notes 
forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified 
Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 
amended. 

C) Functional and presentation currency 
Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to two decimal 
places as permitted by Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian 
Rupees to two decimals places. 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements of the group comprise the financial statements of the Madhucon 
Projects Limited ("Parent Company") and its subsidiaries and associates ("the group") as at 31st March 2019. 

Subsidiaries: 
Entity which is directly or indirectly controlled by Parent Company is treated as subsidiary. Control exists 
when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee, is exposed to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 

The Parent Company starts consolidation of a subsidiary when it obtains control over the subsidiary (directly 
or indirectly) and ceases when It loses control (directly or indirectly) of the subsidiary. 

Consolidation procedure: 

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmonised to ensure the consistency with the policies 
adopted by the Parent Company. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting 
date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31st March, When the end of the reporting period of 

the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, 
additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the 

parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines the financial statements of Parent Company 
and its subsidiaries on line by line basis by adding together the like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income 
and expenses. 

Unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions, Intra-group assets, liabilities, income and expenses are 
eliminated In consolidation. Parent's Investment in each subsidiary and the Parent's portion of equity of each 
subsidiary are eliminated in consolidation. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent 
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the 
owners of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling 
interests having a deficit balance. 

Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of subsidiaries 
attributable to interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by Parent Company. 

1.1 Current versus non-current classification 

The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. The operating cycle is the time between the 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 
+ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
* Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

All liability is current when: 
«It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
+ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

1.2 Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 

The functional currency and presentation currency of the Group is Indian rupees. 

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions. 

Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, 

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the 
year are translated at year end rates. The difference in translation of monetary assets and liabilities and 
realised gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

1.3 Fair value measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transactionbetween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
- In the absence of a principal market, In the mostadvantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must beaccessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured Uusingthe assumptions that market participants would 
usewhen pricing the asset or liability, assuming that marketparticipants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takesinto account a market participant's ability to 
generateeconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest andbest use or by selling it to another market 
participant thatwould use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that areappropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficientdata is 
available to measure fair value, maximising the useof relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
ofunobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measuredor disclosed in the consolidated financial statements 

arecategorised within the fair value hierarchy, described asfollows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significantto the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in activemarkets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level 2- Valuation techniques. for which the lowest levelinput that is significant to the fair value measurement 

isdirectly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements, the Groupdetermines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities 
which are required ta be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this 
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information 
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external 
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.On an annual basis, the Management presents 

thevaluation results to the Audit Committee and the Group's independent auditors. This includes adetailed 
discussion of the major assumptions used in thevaluations., 

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
thebasis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assetor liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy 
asexplained above. 

1.4 Use of Accounting Estimates & Assumptions: 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires that the management to make astimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported period. 
Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, 
actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the period in which they are 
determined, 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

1.5 Revenue recognition 

The Group has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The Group has applied the 
following accounting policy far revenue recognition: 

Revenue from contracts with customers: 

The Grouprecognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a fivestep model as set out in Ind AS 
115: 

Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more 
parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be 
met. 

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a 
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the 
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, 
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has 
more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each performance 
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in 
exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. 

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following 
criteria is met: 

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's 
performance as the Group performs; or 

2. The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created 
or enhanced: or 

3. The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and 
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price 
(net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold 
and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered 
by the Group as part of the contract. 

Contract revenue (construction contracts) 

Revenue from works contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is recognised under 

thepercentage of completion method by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity. The 
stage of completion is measured by calculating the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the 
estimated total costs of a contract. Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method 
necessarily invalves making estimates by the management. 

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a 
contract asset based on the amount of consideration to be earned by the performance. Where the amount of 
consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised this gives rise to a 
contract liability. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Any variations in contract work, clalms, and incentive payments are included in the transaction price if it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once associated uncertainties are 
resolved, 

Consideration |s adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer of goods or services 
and the receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit either to the 
customer or the Group. 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue Is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually 
defined terms of payment and including taxes or duties collected as principal contractor. 

Revenue earned in excess of billing has been reflected as unbilled revenue and billing in excess of revenue 
has been reflected as unearned revenue. 

Operation and maintenance contracts 

Revenue from maintenance contracts ara recognized over the period of the contract as and when services 

are rendered. 

Income from toll contracts 

Toll collections from the users of the infrastructure facility constructed by the Company under the Service 
Concession Arrangement is accounted for based on actual collection. Revenue from sale of smart cards is 
accounted on cash basis. 

Other Incoma: 

Dividend Income: 
Dividend income from Investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been 
established. 

Interest Income: 
Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, 
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that 
assel's nel carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If 
the Group performs its obligations by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised forthe earned consideration that is 
conditional. The contractassets are transferred to receivables when the rightsbecome unconditional. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Group's right to anamount of consideration that is unconditional (i.6., onlythe 
passage of time is required before payment of theconsideration is due). 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goodsor services to a customer for which the Group 
hasreceived consideration (or an amount of consideration isdue) from the customer. If a customer pays 
considerationbefore the Group transfers goods or services to thecustormer, a contract liability is recognised 

when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever isearlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as 
revenuewhen the Group performs under the contract. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

1.6Taxes on Income 

Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

Current Tax 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance 
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the Group's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

* When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of 
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and It is probable that the temporary differences 
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be 
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the 

initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the 
accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that 
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax 
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same 
taxation authority. 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT): 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in 
the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence 
that the entity will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset when it is highly 
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the entity. 

1.7 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily 
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost 
of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed In the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

1.8 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets 

A disclosure for Contingent liabilities is made in the notes on accounts when there is a possible obligation or 
present obligations that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. A contingent liabilities 
arises where there isa a liability that cannot be reconginsed because it cannot be measured reliably. 

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits 
will arise. When an inflaw of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the 
consolidatedfinancial statements. 

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

1.9 Provisions 
The Grouprecognises provisions when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable 
that there will be an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

1.10 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 

The Group accounts for the investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures at cost in 
accordance with Ind AS 27- Separate Financial Statements. The Group reviews its carrying value of 
investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If 
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the Impairment loss is accounted for. On disposal of 
investments In subsidiaries and joint venture, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amounts are recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

1.11 Employee Benefits: 
Provident fund is defined Contribution scheme and contributions are charged to profit and loss account of the 
year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. Other retirement benefits such as Gratuity, 

leave encashment etc., are recognized on basis of the independent actuarial valuation. 

1.12 Financial Instruments: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at transaction 
values and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 

assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value 
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Financial Assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments. Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are 

expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose 

abjective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on 
the principal amount outstanding, 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, Further, in case where the 
group has made an irrevocable selection based on its business model, for its investments which are 

classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other 
comprehensive income. In any other case, financial asset is fair valued through profit and loss. 
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Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets 
which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant 
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected 
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount 
of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the 
amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or 
loss. 

De-recognition of Financial Assets 
The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received. 

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of 
the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are 
recorded at fair value of the equity instrument. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings 
and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of 
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate 
the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

1.13 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management. 
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1.14 Lease 
The Group has no leases or any contract containing lease and accordingly, no disclosure has been made on 
the same. 

1.15 Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets classified as held for 
sale are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If 
any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testingfor an asset isrequired, the Corporation 
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or Cash- 
Generating Unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

1.16 Gash flow statement: 
Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under the indirect 
method, the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects of: 

Changes during the year in inventories and operating receivables and payables and transactions of a non- 
cash nature; 

Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and 
undistributed profits of associates; and 

All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group is segregated based on the 
available information. Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in the 
Cash Flow Statement. 

1.17 Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including any directly attributable expenditure 
on making the asset ready for its intended use, attributable interest and finance costs, If any, till the date of 
acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 
Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably, An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the 
previous GAAP as at April 01, 2015 of its Property, Plant and Equipment and use the carrying value as 
deemed cost of the Property, Plant and Equipment on the date of transition |.e April 01, 2075. 

1.18 Intangible Assets 

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Group controls the asset, it is probable that future 
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured, Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. The estimated useful life and amortization method reviewed at the 

end of gach reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective 
basis. 
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Rights under Service Concession Arrangements 

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are 
stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative 
impairment. 

1.19 Depreciation! Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost less its estimated 

residual value. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment have been provided on Straight-Line method 
in accordance with the Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013, based on the useful life estimated on the 
technical assessment as in force and proportionate depreciation are charged for additions/disposals during 
the year. In respect of additions / disposal to the fixed assets / leasehold improvements, depreciation is 
charged from the date the asset is ready to use / up to the date of disposal. The asset's useful lives are 
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. 

1.20 Investment property 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property 
under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in accordance with 
the Ind AS16's requirement for cost madel, 
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently 
withdrawn fram use and no further economic benefits expected from disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property is included in profit or loss in the period in which the 
property is derecognized. 

1.21 Inventories: 

Raw Materials: 
Raw Materials, construction materials and stores & spares are valued at lower of weighted average cost or 
net realizable value. Cost includes all charges in bringing the materials to the place of usage, excluding 
refundable duties and taxes. 

Work in Progress: 
Work-in-Progress is valued at the contracted rates less profit margin / estimates. 

41.22 Interest in Joint Operations 
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have 
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement, Joint control is the 
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. 

When a Group undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises 
inrelation to its interest in a joint operation: 

1. its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly, 
2. its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly, 
3 its revenue, including its share any revenue arising jointly. 
4. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses relating to its interest in a joint 
operation in accordance with the Ind AS applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues, and 
expenses. 

1.23 Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the 

extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate 
collection. 
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1.24 Claims 
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts are disclosed under contingent liabilities. Claims made 
by the group are recognised as and when the same is approved by the respective authorities with whom the 
claim is lodged. 

1.25 Commitments 
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed as 
follows: 

Estimated ammount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided far 
Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid 
Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and 
Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the 
opinion of management. 
Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed 
to avoid excessive details. 

1.26 Earnings per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to the 
Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year, adjusted for the effects of 
dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of 
the equily shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year except where the results 
are anti-dilutive. 

1.27 Segment Reporting: 
Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 
operating decision maker. Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under each 
reportable segment. Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reporting segment are allocated on 
the basis of associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which are not 
attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed as un-allocable expenses. Assets and liabilities that are 
directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment and all other 
assets and liabilities are disclosed as un allocable. Property, plant and equipment that are used 
interchangeably among segments are not allocated ta reportable segments. 

1.28 Toll Projects (Right to charge users): 
Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, represent the right to 
collect tall revenue from the users of the public service (road) during the concession period in 
respect of Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT") project undertaken by the Group. Toll collection rights are 
capitalized as intangible assets upon completion of the project at the cumulative construction costs plus the 
present value of obligation towards negative grants and additional concession fee payable ta National 
Highways Authority of India ("NHAI")/State authorities, if any. Till the completion of the project, the same is 
recognised under intangible assets under development. 

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scope per Concession agreement (normally referred as 
"Change of Scope") is capitalized as intangible asset under development as and when incurred. 
Reimbursement in respect of such amounts from NHAI/State authorities is reduced from the carrying amount 
intangible assets to the extent of actual receipts. 

Extension of concession period by the authority in compensation of claims made are capitalised as part of 
Tall Collection Rights at the time of admission of the claim or when there is a contractual right to extension at 
the estimated amount of claims admitted or computed based on average collections whichever is more 
evident. 
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Any Viability Gap Funding (VGF) in the form of equity support in connection with project construction is 
accounted as a recelvable and is adjusted to the extent of actual receipts. 

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses that are directly 
attributable to the development or acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalized as part of 
cost of the intangible assets. 

Intangible assets that are not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as 
"Intangible assets under development”. 

1.29 Impairment of Assets: 
At the end of each accounting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of Intangible assets and 
property, plant and equipment whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is determined at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value in use in case 
of an individual asset and at higher of the cash generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and the value in use. 

Impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the 
carrying amount of the asset or CGU js reduced to its recoverable amount. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset CGU is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is. recognised for the asset or 
CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

1.30 Schedule Ill amendment disclosures: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule III of the 
Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Group in its financial 
statements. These amendments are applicable to the Group for the financial year starting April 1, 2021 and 
applied to the consolidated financial statements: 
* Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital 
due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period, 

+ Additional disclosure for shareholding of promoters. 
+ Additional disclosure for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables and capital work-in-progress. 
* Specific disclosure such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number 

of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of Group, loans and advances to 
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties etc. 

+ Additional disclosure for relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and undisclosed income. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 
2.2 Investments 

(2 in Lakhs} 

Anat 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

1) Investment in Equity Instruments 

bridiacies: il Bast 
In Shores of $10 cach, fully paid up jotherwise specified) 

Simbapurl Energy Limited 
Madhucon Natural Resources Limited (Singapore) 0.21 0.21 
Shares of $$ 1/-each 

Othera-Subsidiary Companiea* 

fii) Azsointen: 
In Shares of 810 each, fully paid up (otherwise specified) 

Madhucon Agra Joipur Expressways Limited 313 3.12 

Madhucon Properties Limited 

Chhapra Hajipur Expressways Limited 

1,00 1.00 

(iil) Othera: 
In Shares of 210 each, fully paid up (otherwise specified) 

Rajanogoram Goa Power Private Limited 48.81 A881 

Canara Bank Limited 1.44 1.44 

iv) Provision for impairment on investment 

Total 54.58 54.58 

2.3 Trade Receivabler 
(Ein Lakhs: 

March 31, 2024 

Aa at As ot 

March 31, 2023 

Non-Current Current Noen-Current Cursent | 
Un Secured, Considered good 

From Related Parties 

From Joint Ventures L.a97.71 110.49 
From Others - 

From Government Companies 1,832.8) 303.66 

From Others 341.09 9a.04 
Total 3,671.61 507,19 

iD
 

MADHUCON 

Porticulars 

Lesa than 
G months 

F wl erode fram due date of paymant F.¥ 2023-24 

1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 
(i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables = which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
iii) Undiaptited Trike Recelvables -— credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good 
increase in credit risk 

Particulara 
Less thon 
6 months fi months | year 

Outstanding for follawlig perioda 

1-2 years 

from duo date of payment FY 2022-23 

Mare tua 
2-3 years Byeara Tatal 

{i) Undisputed Trade rece = tor it good 

(il) Undisputed ‘Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increase In credit risk 

iii) Undisputed Trade civublen — credit impaire 

lv) Disputed Trade Recelyables=considered good 
(\) Disputed Trade Reecivablea = Which have aignificant 
increase In credit risk 

2.4 Loane 
it in Lakhs) 

Ag at March 31, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2023 

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current 
Unsecured, considered good 
Lonns to Related Parties 

Lonns to Related Parties 10,112.67 

Security Deposits 10.23 10.16 15,31 312,26 
Othors- 1.05 : < 297.47 

Total 10,123.94 10.16 16.31 609.73 

2.5 Othor Financial Assote 

12 in Lakhs) 
are O24 An ot March 31, 2023. 

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current 
Unsecured, considered good 

Bank Deposila with matunity more than 12 months 612.06 = 663.64 = 
Earnest Money Deposits 191.87 = 191,87 - 

Retentian Money Deposit 5,694.60 z 2,061.64 = 

Receivable under service concession arrangements 1,17,216.84 = 104,111.16 = 
Advances Recoverable 10,410.26 . 5,871.46 - 

Recelvable from Orhera = 184.03 324,91 867.37 

Receivable From NHAI = 4,055.29 = = 

Claims Receivable from NHAI" . 1,85,388.89 - 192,598.62 

Retention Money Deposit = 2,762.26 - 1,425.14 
Other mccivablos from related purtiog = 423.59 = 1,922.42 

Total 1,34,126.63 1,96,414.06 113,224.68 1,96,743.55 
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2.6 Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) (net) 

As at Anat 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Deferred Tax Asact 
Opening Balance 4,576.05 2,568.36 

Buring the year 1,003.51 2,007.69 

Total 5,579.56 4,576.05 

2.7 Other Non-Current Asacte 
(tin Lalehs| 

at eh 31, 2024 Aa at March 31, 2023 
Nan-Current Current Non-Gurrent Currant 

Capital Advances = : - E 

Advance to suppliers and sub-contractors 11,339.15 9,038.66 10,695.63 11,323.04 

Othera 2 is 

Retention Money 6.57 - 

Deposits and Refunds 21.48 & 
Related Party Advances 262,33 187.54 

Other Receivables 5,779.41 4,700.85 

Rental Deposit - 2.44 15.92 

Employee Advance Ef 10.26 14.26 

Intangible Assets Under Develapment = - - 5.33 

Prepaid Expenses . 5.86 E: 7.58 

Prepaid Insurance - 1.96 = 9.24 

Advanera to relnted parties = : 20,289.74 

OTS Payment te IFC Limiter 2,950.00 

Statutory Ducs Reccivable 20.92 4,067.74 284,39 1,202.24 

vations ather than Capital Advances 2,394,67 2,109.96 

Total 17,435.06 18,071.61 15,838.41 34,577.30 

2,8 Inventorica 
{tin Lakhs 

Aa at ‘Ag at 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

Raw Materials 208,89 372,83 

Work-in-Progress = x. 

Total 208.89 372.83 

2.9 Investments 
iin Lakhs) 

Ap at As at 
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

In Inimavable Properties = = 

In Murual Funds : : 
Total . : 

2.10 Trade Receivables 
[2 in Lakha} 

As aot Anat 
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Un Scoured, Considered good 
Trade Recelvablen 

From Related Partina Ls 
From Joint Ventures 1,397.71 110.49 
Fram Others - 

Government Companies 1,532.8] 303.66 

Others 341,09 94,04 
Total 3,571.61 507.19 

Particulara Sutatanding for following parloda from due date of payment F.¥ 2023-24 

canines Serena 1-2 years 2-d yeors Mors than 3 yeara Tatal 

(Undisputed ‘Trade recoicnblos — considered good 3,570.10 . 7. = 1.54 3,371.6) 
(il) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant 
increnge In credit risk cs = = . * = 
iii) Undisputed Trade Reecivablea = eredit Impalred . = - - = . 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good E - = = . * 

{v} Disputed Trade Receivables = which have significant e 
increnac in credit riak * : : - 2 

3,570.10 = = . 151 3571.61 

Fartioulars Sutatanding for fallowing péeriada from due date of payment F.¥ 2022-23 

ieee 4 months | year 1-2 years 2-3 years Move than Total 

i) Undisputed Trade reecivabloa — canaidered paad 505.67 = : o,03 148 50714 
(i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables = which hove significant 
incrense in credit risk ed = = . = . 
iii) Upped pis ter ade Receivables — credit impaired = A - - - - 

iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables—considered Rood za = = . : = 
tv) Disputed Trade Receivables = which have significant 

Latierease increta 2 z = = = = 
$05.67 = = 0.03 148 507.19 
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2,11 Cash and Gash Equivalents 

{2 in Lakhs) 
Aa at Aa at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Cash on hand 11.55 15.98 

Balances with Banks 

In Current Accourta 3,229.13 7,598.03 

Jn Deposit Accounts with Maturity less than 3 months 652.28 617.48 
Inoperative Accounts 10.83 _- 

Unpaid Dividend Accounts 5,37 6.62 

Tee 3,909.16 8,208.12 

2.12 Hank Bolanee other than above 
(£ in Lakhs) 

Aa at As at 
March 31, 2024 Margh 31, 2023 

Margin money and other depoalta with banks - 

Total - = 
Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of the financial statements 

2.19 Leana 
(in Lakhs} 

Ag at Ap ak 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Unuceured, conaldered good 

Security Depasit 10.16 312.26 

Other loans & advances - 207.47 

Total 10.16 600.73 

2.14 Other Financlul Auscts 

(2in Lakhs} 
Amat As at 

March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 __| 
Receivable From Others 184.03 | BGT aT 
Earnest Money Deposits O44 . 

Recelvable Fram NHAL 4,655.29 : 
Other receivables from related parties 423,59 1,922.42 

Clnims Receivable from NHAI* 188,386.89 __1,92,528,62 

Retention Money Deposit 2,762.26 1,425.14 
Total 1,96,414.50 196,743.55 

2.15 Current Tax Asset(Net) 

Agat Ag at 
Mareh 31, 2024 Ma 

TDS Receivables 5,332.83 6,943.40 

OST Input 83141 226,36 

Total 6,164.34 7,169.76 

2.16 Other Current A: ft in Lata) 
As at Ags at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Prepaid Expenses 5.88 7.58 

_ Prepaid Inaurance 1.96 9.24 
Advance to suppliers, sub-contractors 9,034.66 11,323.04 

Rental Deposits 2.44 15.92 
Intangible Aasseta Under Development - 3.43 

Emoloyee Advance 10.26 14.26 

Statutory Dues Receivable 3,667.74 1,202.24 
Advances to related parties _ - 20,289.74 

OTS Payment to [FCI Limited 2,950.00 . 

Advances other than Capital Advances 2,394.07 2,109.96 

Total 18,071.61 34,977.30 
Madhuson Infra Limited 
Notes farming part of the consolidated financial atatnments 

2.17 Equity Share Capital 
[& in Lakh) 

Asat Ag at 
Number of March 31, 2024 Number of Marek 31, 2023 

Shares Bharea 

Authorised 

Equity Shares af © 10/- each 41,50,00,00,000 4,50,000,00 4,50,00,00,000 450,000.00 

Total 4,50,000.00 4,50,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed ond Called up Capital 

Equity Shares of § 10/- each - - 

Fully paid up Capital 
Equity Shares of 2 Equity Shares of 

Equity Shares of 8 10/sench Lf/-each __ 737.95 |@ 1/- each 737,95 

Ade 2 Borfelted Shores Amountoriginally paid up 2,37. 2.37 
Total 740.32 740.32 
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a) Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares Outstanding at beginning and at end of the yeur 

@ in Lakhs) 

As at March 31, 2024 Aa at March 31, 2023 
No.of Shares Amount No.of Sharer Amount 

Balance at the boginning of the year 1,26,77,77,0495 128,777.70 \,28,77,77,045 1,28,777.70 

Add: Equity Shares alloted during the year : = : : 

Shares bought back during the year - = . . 

Balance at the end of the your 1,28,77, 77,045 1,28,777.70 1,28,77,77,045 1,26,777.70 

b) Torma/ Rights attached to Shares: 

The Company has only one class of paid-up equity shares having par value of $10 per share, Each aharcholder of equity share is entitled te ane vete per share, 
The Company deelarce and pays dividend in Indian Rupees only, The Dividend proposed by the Board ef Directors ia subject to approval of the shareholders in 

the Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation af the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, aller distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity shares held by the shareholders, 

«) Bonus Shares/ Buy back shares for consideration othor than cash issued during the past five yoora: 

(1) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant ta contracts without payment being received in Cash - Nil 
(2) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of Bonua shares - Nil 

{3) Aggregate number and class of Shares bought back « Nil 

Notes forming part of the financial statements 
2.18 Othor Equity 

(2 ia Lakhs) 
As at March 31, 2024 Aa at March 31, 2023 

(a) Securities Premium ___ 29,313.07 | a 29,313.07 

(6) Copital Rasorve 
Less: Capital Grant Defferment 

(b) Gonoral Resorvs : ———— _ = 
5,061.53 §,061.53 

5,061.63 5,061.53 

(c] Surplus in Btatoment of Profit and Loss = : 
Opening Balance (2,28,679.16) 8) == 

Add: Profit for th (12, > (14,408.62) 
Add: Capital Grant = = _ {8,8 50,62) 
Correction in Profit and Loss (7,440.74) 
Less: Appropriations 

Proposed Dividend = = 
Dividend Distribution Tax = = 

aa tl Transfor to Reserves = i ci 
Closing Balance (1,82,289.59) __(2,28,675.16) 

Other Components of Equity = 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans and others (153.87) (201.23) 

alatements of forcign operations - aa 1,006,248 _ ab a8 
Increase/ (Decrease) in borrowing cost pursuant to 4 4 

application of Effective Interest rate method i : mal _ 
712.35 _ (12.93) 

(dj) Reserves on Consolidation = 1,927.15 

Equity Component of Unaccured Loan (4,410.00) (3,810.00) : 

Total (1,51,012.64)| (192,690, 36) 

2.19 Borrowings 
(Lin Lakhs) 

Aa ut Ag at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Secured: _ a a a ee a — 

Debentures 

Term Leona 

From Banks" 

From Financial Institutions 

“1,10,098,.66 24,352.22 

From Olhera** 26,979.86 “ 

Unueeured: 

Loana from related parties 1,517.56 22,727.81 

Loans from Financial Institutions 10,357.89 285.90 

Total 157,530.47 166,367.26 
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“Represents the loans extended by Banks to Subsidiaries/Step down Subsidiories 

“Reproaonte the term loan from NHAI (includes Interest} 

Madhucon Infra Limited 
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 

Total amount payable nx at 31,03.2024 ta IFC] waa Ra, 14,596.40 lakhs na per books of account, The company has submitted One tine settlement praposal 
with IFC] and it was ogreed to necepts Re.7000Lalchs towards full ond final settlement, The company haa paid Ra,1550 Lakha and it Wus adjusted towards 

pringipal amount, The company requested to revise the OTS amount to 251 Cr and the same hos been approved. OTS amont to be paid with in 9 months 
from 19th June 2023. 
i) No Interest has been provided on the amounts payable ta [FC for the current FY 2023-24, pending OTS 

fii) Chhapra- Hajipur Exp: 
Term loans from banks - The loan is repayable in 17 seminnnual unequal installments atarting fromi June,2022, NHAI Loan - The loan is repayable at the time 
of recelat af aeml annuitica afer PCOD 

Unascured Lown - Repayinent shall bo made only after the Final Setlement date, on which all the Secured Obligations have been diacharged. 

a_of 8 of ae 

herreWed from 4 consortium of O5 bankers & from NHAl as per common loan agrement dated 03-12-2010 fer an amount of Rs,585 crores, ancl further 

enhanced loan facility agreement dated of 30-01-2016 for an amount of Rs,176.83 crores, further enhanced loan facility agrement dated on 09-01-2018 for 

an amount of Rs.171.99 crores and from NHAI oa per triportiote agreement dated on 21-10-2016, During the yeur the company has not provided the 

interest on to the term loans due to term loans became NPA. Interest hos been provided for loan from NHAIL. 

The Company has executed Ioan documents and created aecurity na per common loan agreement dated 03-12-2010 and enahnanced loan faciltiy agrement 
dated 30-01-2016 and 09-01-2018. 

(iii) Ranchi Expressways Limited 

Terma of Security of Beeured Term Loans 

Indian Rupee Term Loans Consists of Louns borrowed from oa consortium of 13 bankers & one financial inatitution as per common loan agrenicnt dated 31- 

102011. The entire outstanding debt ag per common loan agreement was re-structured and the loan amount was payable a3 per master amendernient to 
common laon agreeement dated 28-03-2017. The company has eneterd In OTS with one ef the consortium bank and payments were made as per repayment 
aehedule 

Tormes of Security 

The Campany has executed loan documenta and created security os per common loon agreement doted 31-10-2011 and amendment te common loan 

Ogresment dated 28-03-2017. 
Terms of Repayment 
Un Secured Loan from Related Parties: The unsecured loans are provieded by the promoters of the company os per common loun agreement with Seniar 

Lenders by way of Sub-ordinote loan auch aub-Ordinate loang intereal and principle repayment shall be made after final settlement dote. The date on which 

ull the secured obligutions have been discharged in full to the satisfaction of the lenders, 

{iv) TN (DE) Expressways Limited 

Terma ef Repayment of Becured Loan: 
Indian Rupees Term Loans consists of Loans borrowed from a consortium of 4 banks aa per commen loan agrecment dated 11.10.2006, The entire outstanding 

debt o4 per common loan agreement wag re-atructured and the loan amount was payable os per master restructure agreement dated 30,03,2013, Company 

has not provided intereat during financial year, 
The Lenders adjusted an amount of Ra.380.77 Cra fram Eacraw Account directly towards interest and principal as at March 2024 againat the term loan of 
Re.224,08 Cre given by the Lenders. 
Terma of Becurity: 

The company has executed lean decuments and created seeuirty a8 per common loan gareement dated 11.10.2006 and master restructure agreement dated 
30.03.2012. 
Terms of Repayment of Unsecured Loans: 

The unsecured lonna are provided by the promoters of the company os per common loan agreement with senior lendera by way of suberdinate loan, Such sub: 

ordinate louns interest and principal repayment shall be made after final settlement date. The date on which all the secured obligations have been discharged 
in full to the satisfaction of the lenders. 

{v. Madurai-Tuticorin Expressways Limited 
Terma of Repayment - Secured Loans 

Indian Rupees Term Loans consists of Loans borrowed from o consortium of § bankers & ane financial inatitution aa per commun loan agreement dated 
13,01,2007 , The sntire outatanding debt as per common Ioan agreement was resstructured and the loun amauit was payable aw per master restructure 
agreement dated 28.03.2012. 

The Lenders adjusted an amount of Rs.801.60 Cra fram Escrow Account dircetly towards interest and principal as at March 2024 against the term loan of 
R4.598.00 Cru given by the Lenders. 
Terma of Security 

The company hat executed loan documents and created security os per common loan agreement dated 13.01.2007 and master restructure agreement dated 
28.04.2013 
Terma of Repayment - Unascured Loan - fram related parties 

The unsecured loans are provided by the promoters ef the company ag per the common loan agreement with Senior Lenders by way of Sub-ardinate loan. Such 

Sub-Ordinate loang interest and principal repayment shall be made after final settlement date.The date on which all the secured obligations have been 
discharged in full to the satisfaction of the lenders, 
Terma of Ropaymont - Unascured Loan - from others: 

The company has availed Ioan from M/s Innovations Payment Services Limited and the amount was utlised for cloaing the term loan account availed from 
SBI. 

va Limited 
Terme of Repayment - Secured Loans 
Indian rupees Term Lonns consists of Loans borrowed [rom a conaortlum of § bankera & ong financial institution as per common loan agreement dated 
02.12.2006. The entire outstanding debt as per common loan agreement was re-atructurcd and the loan amount was payable as per master restructure 
agreement dated 28.03.2013. The company has not provided jnterest. 
The Lenders adjusted an umount of Rs.3B6.60 Cra from Escraw Account direetly towards interest and principal as at March 2024 against the term loai of 
Rs.261.00 Crs given by the Lenders. 

Terma of Sacurity 

The company has executed Joan documents and created security as per common lean agreement dated 02.12.2006 and muster restructure opreemenc dated 

28,03,2013, 

Terme of Ropayment- Unseoured Loan - from reinted parties 

‘The unsecured laana are provided by the prometera of the company aa per the common loan agreement with senior lendera by way of sub-ordinate loan, Such 
sub-ordinated loans interest and principal repayment ahall be made after final setdement date, The date on which all the secured oblingtions have been 
discharged in full to the satisfaction of the lenders. 
‘The company has availed loan from M/a innovatlona Payment Services Limited and the amount wae utilised for closing the term loan account avuiled froin 
SBI. 
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(vii) Borasat-Krishnagar Expressways Limited 

Rupes Loana Cenaista af Loans berrewed from a consortium of 7 bankers & one financial institution as per common Ioan agremont dated 26-09-2011, The 

entire putstanding debt aa per commen loan agrement was omended ond the loan amount was poyable as per manter agreeoment dated 24-06-2015, 
During the yorr the company has not closed the any term loan account. The company has not provided the interest during the financial year due to the term 

loans became NPA. 

The Company hae executed loan documents and created accurity aa per commen loan agreement dated 26-09-2011 ond master agreement amended on 

dated 24-06-2015 
Terma of Repayment - Un Secured Loan from Related Parties 

The unsecured loans are provieded by the promoters of the company as per commen loan agreement with Senior Lenders by way of Sub-ordinnte loan such 

sub-Ordinate Inane interest and principle repayment ahall be made after final settlement date. The date on which all the secured obligations have been 

discharged in fall to the satisfaction of the lenders 

2.20 Trade Payables 
in Lakhs) 

Ag at March 31, 2024 Ag at March 31, 2023 

Non-Curront Current __Nen-Current Current 

For supply and Services 3,768.40 23,050.98 680.71 35,744.13 

Retention Maney Deposits 3,134.92 1,393.92 3,381.93 3,365.22 

Others 1,189.52 13,439.52 4.151.80 6,415.02 

Due to Other Payables 222.76 

Total 8,092.84 86,884.42 7,214.44 48,737.13 

Particulars Oututanding for following perloda fram due date of payment F.Y 2023-24 

oo i 1-2 yours 2-4 years More than 3 yeara Total 

MEME 2 = Z = 
|) Others E 2,905.15 2386.16 2,801.83 4,092.84 
(titi) Dinpiited diica-MSME Ej a a = 
{iv|Disputed dues = Others = = = : 

= 2,505.15 2,386.16 2,801.53 8,093.84 

Particulars Outstanding for fallawing periada fram due date of payment F.¥ 2022-23 

a : 1-2 yoorn 2-4 yours Mare than 3 years Total 

(i) MSME 

TEAL 3,807.00 533.15 2,557.24 7,274.61 

iapiited diuca-MEME 

v)/Disputed dues = Others 
77,12 3,807.09 533.15 2,857.24 7,274.61 

23.21 Other Financial Liabilities 
{Ein Lath) 

O24 As at March 31, 2023 

Non-Current Currant Non-Current Current 

Amounts payable to related parties = = : 1,914.40 

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings = 9,969.25 : 79,163.91 

Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings = 4,440.92 - 27,216.82 

Interest accrucd but not duc a: = = = 

Othor Payables 2.024 82 = 2,144.69 £ 

Audit Fee Payable - O.71 - 0.90 

Retention Money Payable - 367.58 = 349.38 

Security Deposit = 1.30 = = 

Madhucon Infva Limited- Holding company of Holding company = 880.33 - 866.60 

Salary Payable = 22.24 = - 

‘Other Financial Liobilities : 13,672,938 = 564.98 

“Advance againat Arbitratian award = 4,664.64 c 4,664.64 

Ennployces = 981.99 € 1,050,236 

Royalty = 589.35 - 644.05 

Works Contract Tax, Central Sales Tax, VAT - 416,01 = 696.79 

Dividend Tax : 139.94 : 139.93 

ESI, PF = 70.30 = 98.48 

E Payable - 59.90 - 45.85 

Director Remuneration = 17,05 = 5.12 

Madhucon Granites Limited = 2,477.78 = 2482.28 

Sharcholders . 1,767.85 = 2,158.05. 

Other Payables = 6,770.06 a 6,971,935 

Unpaid Dividends = A735 - a.75 

Trade Payables S - = = 

Payobles to Related Parties = A751 = A704 

Total 2,024.62 47,361.62 2,148.69 126,571.88 

2.22 Provisions 
(2 in Lakh) 

As at Aa at 

March 31,2024 | __ March 31,2023 | 
Provision for Employee Benefits 

Gratuity 93.23 130.76 

Compensated absences 24,21 44.52 

Provision for Major Maintenance and Repairs 14,526,856 17,084.70 

Total 14,644,390 17,259.98 

aD
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Madliucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of the finaneia) statements 
2.23 Other Non-Current Linbilities 

(2 in Lakhs) 
Agat March 31, 2024 | —_Aa at Marsh 81, 2028 

Non-Currant Current Non-Current Current 

Mobilization Advance 3,789.32 110.33 945.29 3,116.81 

Materlil Advanec 8.74 : B72 - 

Machinery Advanee * - - 306.96 

Statutory Diics Payable = 23,997.47 - 2518.22 

Other Liabilities - 50,880.85 = 46,837.88 
Other Liabilities - Machinery Recavery 117.31 - = = 

Omer Linbilitics - Fines und Penalties 515.58 = - - 

Other Liabilities - Retention 1,496.42 - - - 

Other Liabilities - Royalty 219.64 2 : - 

Other Linbilities - GST Withheld 1,022.77 : : 2 

Other Liabilities = Withheld 6,733.92 = 5 = 

Revenue Received in Advances : 183.80 = 245.40 

Other advanees from related partics = 15,679.85 - 26,890.85 

Total 13,903.72 69,854.30 954.01 80,216.00 

2.24 Borrowings 

(ln Lakhs) 
Ap at Anat 

Mareh 31,2024 | Mar 

Seoured: 

Loana repayable on demand 

From Banks 

ICICI Bank 30,140.15 29 732.65 

Punjab National Bank 5,241.20 5,241.20 

Kotak Mahindra Bank 2,036.26 2,036.26 

Canara Bank 5,951.56 5,951.56 

IDB! Bank . 5,627.89 

Bank of India = 2,661.70 

AXIS Bank = 373.62 

State Bank of India = 4,214.38 

From Banks [Othera}* 157,005.65 63,730,682 

From Financial Institutions 

From NBFC** 20,916.92 4,508.69 

Fram Others 13,514.80 36,451,89 

Total 2,23,800.54 1,85,590.65 
‘Term Loon availed by Subsidjarlea/Step down Subsidiaries from banks for which details are not mentioned in respective 

Subsidiary/Step down Subsidiary financials 
**Term Loan availed by Subsidiaries from Srei Equipment Findfies Limited & IFCI 

2.25 Trade Poyobles 

Qin Lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

For Supplies and Services 23,050.98 35,744.13 

Retention Money Depanits 1,393.92 3,355,232 

Others 12,439.52 6,415.02 

Due to Other Payables = 222.76 

Total 36,884.42 45,737.13 

Particulars jutetanding for following periods from due date of payment F.¥ 2023-24 
Lous than 
iiear 1-2 yeurs 23 yeara More than 3 yeara Total 

(i). MEME 5,62 7.77 191.32 aa 204,71 

(ui) Others 20,007.54 3,992.10 1,588.07 11,072.01 36,079.71 
(ii) Disputed ducs-MSME x : et = 

iWiDidputed dues - Orhers - : = = 

20,033.16 3,999.67 1,778,358 11,972.01 36,884.42 

Particulars ariel Mowing periods from due date of payment F.¥ 2022-23 

redirag 1:3 years 2:3 yeora More than 3 years Total 

(i) MSME 

[{ii) Olors 13,469.83 10,906.02 4,103.50 16,798.48 45,737.19 
iii) Diaputed diica-MSME 

ivDisputed dues - Others 
13,869.83 10,966.02 4,102.40 15,798.88 48,797.13 
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2.26 Other Financial Linhilities 
(2 in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 | jareh 31, 2023 

Current Maturities of Lang Term Borrowings 9,969.25 79,163.91 

Interest Accrued and due on Borrowings 4,490.92 27,216.82 

Payables ta Related Parties A781 AT.04 

Unpaid Dividends 3,73 4.768 

Other Payables 

Audit Fee Payable O71 0.90 

Retention Money Payable 367.58 349,38 

Security Deposit 1,50 = 

Madhucon Infra Limited- Holding company of Holding company 480.43 666.60 

Salary Payable 32.24 = 

Other Financial Liabilities 15,672.98 564,98 

“Advance against Arbitration award 4,664.64 4,664.64 

Employees 981.99 1,050.36 

Royalty 589.35 4d4,05 

Works Contract Tax, Central Sales Tax, VAT 416.01 696.79 

Dividend Tax 139,93 139,93 

ESI, PF 70.30 98,48 

Expenses Poyable $9.90 45.85 

Direetor Remuneration 17,05 5.12 

Madhucon Granites Limited B.A77,78 2,482.28 

Shareholders 1767.85 2,158.05 

Other Payabins 6,770.06 6,371.93 

Total 47,361.62 1,26,571.88 

2.27 Other Current Liobilitles 
(€in Lakhs) 

Ag at Asat 
Mareh 31,2024 | March 31,2023 __| 

Suirutory Dues Payable 2,097.47 2,818.22 

Other Liabilities £0, 880.85, A6,837.88 

Machinery Advance = 306.96 

Mobilization Advance 110,33 3,116.81 

Revenue Received in Advances 185,80 245,30 

Other advances from related parties 15,679.85 26,890.83 

Total 69,854.30 89,216.00 

2.28 Provialona 

Qin Lakha) 
As at Ag at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Provision for Employee Benefite 

Gratuity 84.58 87.50 

Compensated absences 21.09 24.46 

Provision for Baddebta 4,128.46 4,128.46 

Provision for Expenses 38,308.14 1,470.79 

Provision for Expected Credit Loss 870.63 870.63 

Provision for Sub Cantractora 168.05. 168.05 

Provision fer Poriedic Maintenance 13,40 37,105.49 

Total 43,595.35 43,854.38 | 

2.29 Current Tox Linbilities (Net) 

{tin Lakhs) 

Ag at Ag at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

TDS Payable 2,341.70 837.08 

Total 2,341.70 837.96 

2.30 Revuneu from Operations 
(in Lakha) 

Year sided Year onded 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Operating Income 

Income from Contracts and Services 1,07,750,94 AY,081,22 
Toll Fee Collection 7,987.70 23,180.67 

Othera L5.f4 1498.07 

Supply of Materials and Machinery hire services to Sub Contractors AGE 7S 162.88 

Sale of Scrap and Aggregate 146,75 2,090.31 

Rental Income 5.48 

Income Tax Refined = 226,93 

Total 116,375.27 1,16,230.46 
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2.31 Other Income 

(Li Lakhs) 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Interest Income 223,07 138.07 

Miscellaneous Income 

Other Non-operating Income - 29,691.40 

Balances Write back 15,936,587 = 

Insurance Claim 3.08 - 

Miscelleaneous Income 1,007.88 = 

Other Incame #4a.45 G5. 654.63 

Capital Grant Deiferment 268.39 669,33 

Dividend Income - 0,08 

Benefit on OTS: 12,503.97 7 

Profit on Sale of Asset 114,75 - 

Other Non Operating income : . 

Total 30,140.46 90,153.51 

2.92 Coat of Materials and Work Exponsoe 
(ein Lakhs) 

Yoar ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 | 

|__ Stores und Spores 17,577.97 14,683.78 

|_ Work Expenses 77,377.71 88,391.70 

Total 94,955.68 1,05,075,48 

2.33 Changes in Work-in-progress and Stock 

jin Lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 

Opening Stock 

Opening Werk-in-Propress 

Closing Stack 

Closing Work-insProgresa 

(neronse)/Dogrense in Work-in-Progress 

2.34 Employee Benefits Expense 
(Rin Lakhs) 

Yeor ended Yeur ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Salaries & Wages Honus and Provident Fund 2,081.94 2,750.11 

Stalf Welfare Expenaeca 197.07 246.72 

Total 2,279.01 2,996.83 

2,35 Finance Cost 
(tin Latha) 

Year ended Year ended 
Mareh 3], 2024 March 31, 2023 

Interest Expense 3,901.36 4,700.37 

Bank Guarantee Commission 241.01 co: 3 

Total 4,142.37 4,712.18 

2.36 Other Expenaca 

Rin Lakhs) 

¥our ended ended 
March 31,2024 | Mareh 31,2023 | 

Administrative Expenses 7,505.17 1,428.11 

Insurance Charges: 59.10 182.67 

Consultancy charges 686.35 368.03 

Rent, Rates & Taxes 488.91 553,23 
Advances & Investments written off 40,333.90 32,444.66 

Foreign Exchange Loss = 442.51 

Total 49,093.43 35,419.83 
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2.37 Subsidiaries companies considered in the financial statements are: 

= 3 5 <7
 

o a
q
 

Zz
 

S.No, | Name of the Entity Country of Proportion of Ownership Interest 

Incorporation Madhucon Madhucon Madhucon 

Projects Infra Toll 

Limited Limited Highways 
Limited 

4 Madhucon Infra Limited India 94.89% ee a - 

2 Nama Hotels Private Limited India 99.96% - 

3 Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited India 66.67% - 

4 Madhucon Heights Private Limited India 66.67% | - - 

5 Madhurai Tuticorin Expressways India 64.12% - 24,48 % 

Limited —_ | 
6 Madhucon Toll Highways Limited India 0.01% 99.98% - 

7 Ranchi Expressways Limited India 0.02% 0.02% 99.94% 

8 Barasat Krishnagar Expressways India 0.03% 0.04% 99.88% 
Limited 

9 TN(DK) Expressways Limited India 0.13% | 50.97% 48.86% 

10__| Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited | India|. 18% | 76.10% Bd 
4 Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited India 0.08% 27.86% 23.41% 
12 Vijayawada-Machllipatnam India 1.78% 13.33% 80.44% 

_Expressways Limited a | eee ——— 
43 Rajaull Bakhtiyarpur Expressways India 4.80% 4.00% 83.20% 

Limited 7 

14 PT Madhucon Indonesia Indonesia 4.86% 85.00% - 

2.38 (a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 
C ® in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 

31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

Bank Guarantees* 22,177.40 24,105.61 

Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of its subsidiaries - - 

and others 

Disputed Sales Tax (on appeal) a oe - ___ = 637.42 
Entry Tax 8.85 8.85 

Service Tax 4,655.75 1,655.75 

Provident Fund 1,083.64 1,083.64 

Work Contract Tax 396.86 - 

Interest on TDS Paid 542,99 - 

Arbitration Award Claim - 6,792.88 

Levied penalty of Rs.14,436.00 and Rs.60,632.00 Lakhs in Trichy-Tanjavur 75,068.00 - 
Expressways Ltd and Madurai-Tuticorin Expressways Ltd respectively delay 
in undertaking of periodic maintenance work. However the NHAI has 
terminated the project on 17-03-2023 a 
Levied penalty for delay in undertaking of periodic maintenance work in TN 26,101.00 - 

(DK) Expressways Ltd. og — z 
The Group is a party to legal suits on construction contract terms related Amount not Amount not 
disputes, pending before various courts in India as well as arbitration ascertainable ascertainable 
proceedings. It is not possible to make a fair assessment of the likely 
financial impact of these pending disputes / litigations until the cases are 
decided by the appropriate authorities 

“on behalf of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 9,914.55 10,157.85 
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2.39 The long term unquoted investments in equity shares of subsidiary companies as given hereunder and 

included in Schedule V are pledged with Banks and Financial Institutions which have extended loan facilitates to the 

respective investee companies. 

S.No Name of the entity No of Shares No of Shares 

pledged pledged 

as at 31.03.2024 as at 31.03.2023 

4 Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited 13,98,20,500 13,98,20,500 
2 Nama Hotels Private Limited 1,38,41,000 1,38,41,000 

3. Madhucon Infra Limited 51,74,77,705 §1,74,77,705 
4 Madhucon Toll Highways Limited 12,00,00,000 12,00,00,000 
§ Madhucon Heights Private Limited 9,000 9,000 

6 TN (DK) Expressways Limited 6,04,87,600 6,04 ,87,600 
7 Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited 4,59,30,000 4,59, 30,000 
8 Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited 4,74,96,637 4,74,96,637 
g Barasat-Krishnanagar Expressways Limited 2,21,34,000 2,21,34,000 
10 Ranchi Expressways Limited 7,52,08,000 7,52,08,000 

2.40 Deferred Tax Asset / (Liabilities) (net) 

Significant components of deferred tax Asset /(Liabilities) for the year ended March 31, 2024: 
(2 in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Deferred Tax Asset 
Opening Balance 4,576.05 2,568.36 
During the Year 1,003.51 2,007.69 

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) (net) 5,579.56 4,576.05 

2.41 Disclosure in accordance with IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

(C2 in Lakhs) 
2023-24 2022-23 

Contract revenue recognized : _ _ 94,508.82 86,338.99 
Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised 6,22,045,77 5,61,627.75 
losses) up to the reporting date for Contracts in progress 
Amount of advances received for contracts in progress 2,743.33 2,975.12 

Amount of retention money for contracts in progress 3,211.64 154.24 
Gross amount due from customers for contracts in progress 2,299.23 414.15 

2.42 Micro & Small Enterprises: The management has not identified the enterprises which have provided goods 

and services to the Group and which qualify under the definition of Micro and Small Enterprises, as 

defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in 

respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as on 31% March, 2024 has not been made in the 

financial staternents. Further, in the view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be 

payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. 

2.43 Earnings per Share: 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, March 31, 

2024 2023 
Net Loss after tax available for equity shareholders (4511.67) (14,369.90) 
(in Lakhs) 
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 7,37,94,940 7,37 ,94, 940 
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Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 7,37,94,940 7,37,94,940 

Face Value per Share (") 1.00 1.00 
Basic and Diluted EPS * (*) (6.11) (19.47) 

*The Company has no dilutive instruments. As such Diluted Earnings per share equals to Basic Earnings per share. 

2.44 Related Party Transactions: 

|. Following are the list of related parties and relationships 

s. Particulars 

Enterprises where significant influence exists 

Madhucon Estates Limited 

MBN Anchored Earth Limited 

Joint Ventures 

Madhucon Sino-Hydro JV 

Madhucon Shreehari Hule JV 

MPL SCCPL SSBBC JV 

Madhucon = Kored JV 

Key Management Personnel 

Sri Nama Seethalah - Managing Director 

Sri K. Venkateswarlu - Director cum CFO 

Sri J. Samba Siva Rao - Director (F&A) 

Sri Md Shafi = Joint Managing Director _ 

Sri D Mall Reddy - Company Secretary =
"
 
B
a
e
 

e
n
 
B
o
n
a
n
a
 

B
w
 

= 
P
l
s
 

Il. Related party transactions during the year as follows 

(_= in Lakhs) 

2023-24 2022-23 

Revenue from Contracts and Services 12,115.92 3,301.91 

Remuneration 

Key Management Personnel 151.87 134.53 

Sitting Fee 2.60 1.75 

Loans/Advances Given 

Jointly Contralled/entities and ventures _ (9.14) | 2,544.41. 

Loans/Advances Received 

Associates - 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their | 
relatives - 

Retention Money - 

Step-down subsidiaries 462.17 132,98 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 271.45 35.74 
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lll. Related Party balances outstanding at the end of the year as follows ( 2 in Lakhs) 

2023-24 2022-23 

Trade Receivables 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 1,279.74 110.49 

Outstanding Receivables 

Associates a + ' 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 2,833.83 = 

Key Management Personnel - 64.78 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their - 
relatives 

Outstanding Payables 

Jointly Controlled/entities and ventures 5,579.55 5,822.85 

Key Management Personnel 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their . - 
relatives 

i) Barasat — Krishnagar Expressways Limited 

A subsidiary company entered into an agreement with National Highway Authority of India for undertaking the 

work of Four Laning of Barasat - Krishnagar Section of NH- 34 (km. 31.000 to km. 115.000) on Design, Build, 

Finance, Operation & Maintenance and Transfer (ODBFOT-Annuity) basis, in the State of West Bengal. The 

construction work is delayed due to pending approvals and not handing over of Right of Way by NHAI to 

concessionaire. Hence the Company has terminated the Contract on 31st December, 2015 as NHAI was not 

able to provide ROW. Both company and NHAI appointed arbitrators and the arbitration proceedings are in 

progress with ‘Society for Affordable Redressal of Disputes’ (SAROD). 

The borrowings from secured lenders have been declared as NPA by the lenders and no no interest has been 

provided for on the borrowings from institutions. 

Cost incurred on the project up to 31-3-2024 at Rs.5,82,52,97,106/- instead of writing-off to profit & loss have 

been accounted as NHAI Claims receivable under the head "Other Current Financial Assets" which is In 

contravention of the provisions of Indian accounting standard Ind AS 37. This has resulted in over-statement of 

Current Assets and understatement of loss for the year accordingly and Cumulative loss to that extent. 

M/s State Bank of India has filed petition U/s 7 of IBC 2016, against the Company at the Hon'ble NCLT, 

Hyderabad Bench, The Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench passed the order by admitting the petition and 

appointed Interim Resolution Professional. In this regard Company has approached the Hon'ble NCLAT, 

seeking relief and the Hon'ble NCLAT has given stay on COC proceedings till 26-06-2024. 

ii) Ranchi Expressways Limited, 

A subsidiary company entered into an agreement with National Highway Authority of India for undertaking the 

work of Four laning of Ranchi-Rangoan-Jamshedpur section of NH-33 from KM 114.00 to Km 277.500 in the 

state of Jharkand on annuity basis. The company has achieved physical progress of 50.24% as certified by IE 

and unmeasured progress of about 10% in respect of works in progress. 

NHAI terminated the Concession Agreement on 30/01/2019 without following the termination procedure laid 

down in the Concession Agreement. Since project got terminated, the company has initiated arbitration clause 

and arbitration proceedings commenced. The loans taken financial institutions became NPAs and interest on 

these loans have not been provided for. 

CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters and Directors on 12/03/2019. CBI is collecting information 

and investigation is going on. Subsequently ED raided the premises of the company on 11-06-2021 and the ED 

investigation is going on. 
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Banker, the State Bank of India which Disbursed Loans to the Ranchi Express Ways Ltd has filed a petition 

under IBC Code, 2016 herewith referred as Financial Creditor with the National Company Law Tribunal 

(Hyderabad Bench-1). In the process, the honorable bench appointed |RP and declared the moratorium under 

section 14 of IBC Code on 22nd Dec 2023. 

vil) Later, Kamma Srinivas Rao, director of the Company, filed an appeal against the order of NCLT 

(Hyderabad Bench — 1) with the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal — (Chennai Bench). As 4 result of 
this, Honourable NCLAT has deferred the impugned order given by NCLT for a period of two weeks fram 

29.01.24. Again NCLAT had passed the order dated 19.03.2024 directed to list the matter on 07.06.2024 which 
implied that interim order passed by the NCLAT dated 29.01.2024 shall continue. 

iii) Madurai — Tuticorin Expressways Limited 

During the year the NHAI has levied penalty amount of Rs.606.32 Crs far delay in to carry out the operation and 

periodic maintenance obligations in the project stretch. The company has commenced Periodic Maintenance 

works and its obligations however the NHAI has terminated the project on 17-03-2023 through termination 

notice issued. 

The company has taken loans fram different financial institutions. Now those loans became NPAs. Interest on 
these loans have not been provided for. 

lv) Trichy — Thanjavir Expressways Limited 

NHAI has levied penalty of Rs.144.36 Crs for delay in undertaking of Periodic maintenance works. The 

company has commenced Periodic Maintenance works. However the NHAI has terminated the project on 17- 

03-2023 through issue of termination notice. 

M/s IDBI Bank Limited has filed petition U/s 7 of IBC 2016, against the Company at the Hon'ble NCLT, 

Hyderabad Bench - 1. The Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench — 1 passed the order by admitting the petition and 
appointed Interim Resolution Professional. In this regard Company has approached the Hon'ble NCLAT, 
Chennai seeking relief and the Hon'ble NCLAT has given stay on proceedings till 06-03-2024. 

V) TN (DK) Expressways Limited 

During the year the NHAI has levied penalty of Rs.261.01 Crs for delay in to carry out the operation undertaking 

of Periodic maintenance obligations in the project stretch. The company has commenced Pariodic Maintenance 
works and completed the major portion of the Periodic maintenance works and its obligations as per the notice 

given. 

The company has taken loans from different financial institutions. Now those loans became NPAs. Interest on 
these loans have not been provided for. 

2.45 Segment Reporting 

The details of primary segment information for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are given below: 

The Group is currently focused on three business segments Construction, and Toll Collection 

(In Lakhs) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Segment Revenue 

Construction 95,250.26 90,335.68 

Energy _ a —_ 
Tall Highways ; 21,125.02 | 25,928.08 | 

Others 

Less : Inter Segment Revenue (33.30) 

Total 116,375.27 | 1,16,230.46 
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Segment Results before Interest and Taxes 

Construction (1,893.79) 11,886.92 

Energy - 

Toll Highways (1,049.28) (26,889.01) 

Others (0.33) z 

Total (2,943.40) (15,002.09) 

Less : Interest Expenses 4,142.37 4,712.18 

Profit Before Tax ; (7,085.77) (19,714.27) 

Segment Assets* 

Construction 1,52,329,75 77,388.87 

Energy 

Toll Highways 4,72,299.11 3,53,794.56 

Others 11,450.44 8,734.30 

Less: inter Segment Elimination (2,20,460.79) (33,575.44) 

4,15,618.51 4,06,342.29 

Segment Liabilities** 

Construction 2,25,457,13 2,46,345.78 

Energy : ; ; - 

Toll Highways 5,01,999.86 §,05,285,01 

Others 3,234.84 3,242.41 

Less : Inter Segment Elimination (1,10,652,06) (108,180.85) 

620,039.77 6,46,692.35 

* Segment Assets excludes current and non-current investments, deferred tax assets 
** Segment Liabilities excludes deferred tax liabilities 

2.46 Some of the Bank Accounts in Holding Company at closed projects which are in dormant and have not been 

reconciled due to non-availability of statements 

2.47 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/re-classified to conform te the figures of the current year. 

In tarms of our report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 0072575 

A.Krishna Rao N. Seethaiah Mohammad Shafi J. Samba siva Rao 

Partner Managing Director Jt Managing Director Director (F & A) 

Membership Number 020085 DIN: 00784491 DIN: 07178265 DIN: 09526475 
UDIN : 24020085BKAUHN7488 

Place : Hyderabad K. Venkateswarlu D. Malla Reddy 
Date : May 18, 2024 Director curn CFO Company Secretary 

DIN: 09713108 ACS: 9559 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: L74210TG1990PLC11114 

Reg off: Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507002 
Tel: 040-235569001, Fax: 040-23556005, Website: www.madhucon.com 

\We hereby record my/our presence at the 34" annual general meeting of the company being held on 27" September, 
2024 at 3:00 P.M. at its registered office. 

Mamber Folio/DP ID- Client ID No. Member /Proxy's name in Block Letters Signature of Member/Proxy 

Read. Folio/ Client ID: 
*Applicable for members holding share in Electronic Form. 
Note to be signed and handed over at the antranca of the Meeting Venue 
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MADHUGON 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: L74210TG1990PLC11114 
Reg off: Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507002 

Tel: 040-235569001, Fax: 040-23556005, Website: www.madhucon.com 

FORM NO.MGT-11 
PROXY FORM 

Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Campanies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014) 

Name of the Member(s): | Folio No/client id: 

Registered Address: 

E-mail id: | DP Id: 

lWwe, being the mamber (8) Of .............sseeecseerseseeverseveees shares of tha above names Company hereby appoint: 

VT. NAME hteereerssseeeereeseesseeereres E-mail id: .......cecerreeereee 
Acree icici ceeds ELEY RARE eengeiet ERAN RTI lad 
GOTACUIG ov cicsssvusssusapirensayesssasemmanenensd Or rua him. 

2. Name: ..... ..E-mail id: 
78 (8 [polo He ene RE ane HER a ere  o eea ree Eee rar ee EERE CE RET CRT ane Cit Tr if eC onc Ceca sccorcer tt rt ree 

signature 

As my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 34'" Annual General Meeting of the 

Company, be held on Friday, the 27" day of September, 2024 at 3:00 P.M. at Registered Office: Madhucon Complex, 1-7- 
70, Jublipura, Khammam — 507 002 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution No. Resolutions Vote™* 
Ordinary Business For__| Against 

To receive, consider and adopt Annual Accounts FY ended 31st March, 
1,Ordinary Resolution | 2924 

a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company in 
IND AS format for the financial year ended 31" March, 2024 
together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ 
thereon; and 

b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company in 

IND_AS format for the financial year ended 315 March, 2024 together 

130



an 

= 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED SUS 

MADNUGCON 

Po 

74 = 
MADHUCON 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: L74210TG1990PLC11114 

Reg off: Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507002 
Tel: 040-235569001, Fax: 040-23556005, Website: www.madhucon.com 

with the report of the Auditors’ thereon 

2. Ordinary Resolution | To appoint a director in place of Mr. K. Venkateswarlu (DIN: 09713108), who 
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

Special Business 

3.Ordinary Resolution Re-appointment ratification of Mr. Mohammad Shafi, (DIN: 07178265) as 
Joint Managing Director of the Company 

4 spacial Resolution Ratification for continuation approval of Mr. Ramadas Kasarneni (DIN: 
02182093) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company beyond 
the Age of 75 (seventy five) years. 

5.Ordinary Resolution To appoint and approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the 
financial year ending on 31* March, 2025. 

6.Ordinary Resolution Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on Warking Capital Loans & 
Unsecured Loans of the Company. 

SIQn@d......cccceee day of ....0.. 2024 

affix ona 
Signature of the shareholder(s)........000.......00.00. ee rupee 

stamp 
Signature of the Proxy holder(s)...............000.00:c6: sere 

Notes: 

43 

MN 

The proxy duly completed should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 (forty 

eight) hours before the time fixed for holding the Meeting. 

A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

A person can act as proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 (Fifty} and holding in the aggregate not 

more than 10% (Ten percent) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding 

more than 10% (ten percent) of total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 

person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

“This is only optional. Please put an ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If 

you leave the 'For' or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in 

the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. 

In the case of joint holders, the Signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders 

should be stated. 
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If undelivered please return to: 

“Madhucon House”, Road No. 36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad - 500 033, INDIA


		2024-09-03T12:20:01+0530
	Malla Reddy Dargabavi




